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To strengthen India's Defence Capabilities
under ‘Atma Nirbhar Bharat' & to ensure a
larger global presence: For ourselves as

well as for our Nation.

AWEIL is committed towards timely
product delivery with highest standards of
quality, prompt service, transparency,
accountability and grievance redressal
mechanism.
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AWEILAT GLANCE

Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited [AWEIL) is one of the seven (7) new Defence PSUs incorporated by converting
the Ordnance Factory Board into a fully owned Government of India Enterprise,

. Incorporated on 147 August 2021 and commenced its business on 1" October 2021,

. It comprises of eight productions and one non-production unit.

. Conversion into DPSU gives AWE India Ltd, autonomy, allowing it to explore new
opportunities in the global defence market.

. Comprehensive product range of Weapons and Equipment.

- Integrated State of the Art facilities for high-quality, cost-effective production.

- Extensive facilities for inspection and material testing with NABLAccredited Labs.,

a. Production units :
Rifle Factory Ishapore,
Small Arms Factory, Kanpur,
Gun & Shell Factory, Cossipore,
Ordnance Factory Tiruchirappalli,
Ordnance Factory, Kanpur,
Field Gun Factory, Kanpur,
Gun Carriage Factory, Jabalpur,
Ordnance Factory Project Korwa

b. Han-Production unit:
Ordnance Factories Institute of Learning, Ishapore

The Company is invelved mainly in the manufacture of the following Weapon Systems and Ammunition Hardware:
fi. Large Calibre Artillery Gun Systems like 155X45mm Dhanush Guns, Upgrade of
130mm Gun to 155mm Sharang, 105mm LFG.

i. Tank Gun Articles for T-90, T-72 and Arjun Tanks.

it Overhauling of T-90, T-72, LFG and IFG Guns,

i 120mm, 81mm and 51mm Mortars.

v 40mm Air Defence Gun Systems.

i, Ak-630 Maval Guns & 12.7mm SRCG.

wii. Wide range of Small Arms including Medium Machine Guns, Light Machine Guns,
like Assault Rifles, Snipers, Carbines, Pistols, Revolvers, and Sporting Rifles.

wiii, Anti-material rifles of 14.5mm & 20mm.

iX. Ammunition Hardware ranging from 30mm to 155mm.

X. Spares for Large, Medium B 5mall Calibre Weapons.

AWEIL is a market leader in the weapon manufacturing ecosystem in India with the expertise and capabilities to fulfill the
reguirements of the Armed Forces, Central Armed Para-Military forces, State Police Forces, exports and also the civilian market
for Non-prohibited Bore weapons.

AWEIL has core competencies in Small, Medium and Large Calibre Weapons, Mortar Equipment and Ammunition Hardware
including Shell, Fuzes, primers and stabilizer assembly.
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Dear Members,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Advanced Weapaons and
Equipment India Limited, | welcome you all to the 2™ Annual
General Meeting of the company and present before you the
Annual Report of our company for the Financial Year 2022-23
comprising:

(i} Audited Annual Financial Statements, the Report of

the Statutory Auditors and the comments of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India; and

(if) Directors Report and Annexures thereto.
In the field of defence production of the country, AWEIL started
functioning in its new form on October 1, 2021, two years ago,
with the resolve that we will provide weapons and war
equipment to our Armed Forces and all forces as per their
reguirement and by researching and developing state-of-the-
art armaments and munitions as per the demand of all our
national and international customers. We will do our best to
ensure a timely supply of products and provide excellent after-
sales services, We will also fulfill the respansibility of protecting
our motherland along with the commitment of safety and security to all our countrymen while producing defense with a sense of
dedication and loyalty.

Financial Performance

In 2022-23, Profit Before Tax increased from Rs. 5.98 crore in 2021-22 to Rs. 14.28 crore in 2022-23, and Profit After Tax (PAT) of
the Company isat Rs. 4.52 crore for 2021-22 and Rs. 7.86 crore for 2022-2023 showing remarkable growth.

We are determined to shape the future of defence system, breaking new ground and embracing cutting-edge technologies. As we
continue on this remarkable journey, we remain steadfast in our promise to deliver exceptional value to our esteemed
customers, shareholders, and stakeholders and thereby to our great nation,

Our order book position at year end was worth Rs. 7,524 Crore. We have orders worth Rs 2,340 crore in the pipeline. In the year
2023-24, we have set a target of producing Rs. 2750 crore out of this.

Recognition

AWEIL has received a quality confirmation certificate from Bofors Test Centre, Sweden. They highly appreciated the qguality of
AWEIL supplies, stating that the 155 mm = 52 caliber barrels supplied by AWEIL conform to STAMAG requirements and are
designed towards 155 mm joint ballistic MoU. The barrel Bofors, with respect to the duration of use, metallurgy, capacity and
overall gquality parameters, fully meets the rigorous quality expectations of the test center. The appreciation of the prestigious
Bofors Test Centre proves that our products meet the best global standards,

Export Focus

Exports has been a key focus area for your Company, in line with the policies of the Government of India. The company has
received 06 export orders worth Rs. 447 crore including Rs. 0.09 crore spare for Artie gun and Rs. 47 crore for ammunition
hardware from European countries. Orders worth about Rs. 400 crores were finalized with friendly countries (FFCs).

We are looking to expand our global footprint by aggressively pursuing business opportunities for the Defence system in friendly
foreign countries besides making a foray into the export of arms.

Key Achievements

We have had some special achievements during this period,
« OF, Trichy has met the target of establishing production of 12.7 mm SRCG SKD and CKD on time.
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«  Trichy assault rifle and Trichy carbine passed the tests conducted by NSG and Andhra Police.

+ we have also received an order for 10000 nos. Trichy assault rifies from CRPF.

« |tis a matter of great pride for us that AWEIL, along with L&T, has become a major bidder for the supply of 40mm CIWS
for the Indian Air Force. This will have a very significant impact on our top-line and will be an exemplary example of
public private partnership.

= Rifle Factory Ishapore has received the 'Golden Peacock Award' in the Innovative Product Range for the 7.62x51mm
Ishapore assault rifle.

R&D Initiatives

Your Company has continued its efforts towards the Design and Development of new platforms/products/technologies and
activities to enhance its capability with a view to bring technological superiority to its products and to cope up with the future
technological challenges. These efforts have resulted in major achievements such as indigenous production of 12.7 mm SRGC
fun through SKD & CKD route, establishing overhauling of 105 mim Indian Field Gun at Field Gun Kanpur, the successful
establishment of Recoil System production, the successful trials and commercialization of 7.62 x 39 mm Trichy Carbine ete.

Looking Ahead

The pilot batch of 60 mm mortar ammunition shell, fuse and tail unit manufactured by Gun and Shell Factory (G5F) has been
successful in firing at OF Bolangir and has achieved the expected range. Recently, the same manufacturer has fully indigenously
manufactured and successfully tested the highly complicated AD-18 sub-assembly of the AK-630 gun, which proves our technical
capability once again.

A commonality board headed by Commandant 506 ABW is working to evaluate the similarity in bow assembly and components for
suitability of fitment in Bofors gun. Similar firing of guns was also successfully carried out by the Commonwealth Board at LPR
Khamaria. The results will give a big boost to indigenization and solve the major problem that has been going on for a long time
for the Indian Army.

AWEIL's products in the form of small arms, medium calibre guns, large calibre guns and ammunition weapons have tremendous
export potential in the country and abroad. Keeping in view the demand for key products, we have made a comprehensive plan.

Strategic Initiatives

During the last two years, we have faced many challenges and had to bring transformattonal changes in every field. With the

entry of state-of-the-art technology, R&D, export contribution, and competitive bidding into the new world, administrative

rutes and working style had to be changed. After coming into the new form, to some extent, we changed the entire functioning of

every Department and brought in a completely new system. It was a difficult task, but with our commitment, everyone's:
support, and strong team spirit, we have made it a success.

Focusing on exports, we still have a lot of work to do in this area. Along with bringing changes in our thinking, we also have to

change our work culture according to the demands of the time. Only then we will be able to compete. | am confident that with

the cooperation of all, together we will be able to achieve big goals by creating a new work culture,

Corporate Governance

AWEIL maintains a robust system of checks and balances to ensure that the authority of decision making is exercised with due
care and respansibility, to meet the aspirations of stakeholders and society. Your Company complies meticulously with all legal
requirements and Government guidelines regarding Corporate Gavernance. AReport on Corporate Governance and Management
Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

AWEIL believes in doing well by doing good. It is our firm belief that the long-term success of a corporate depends on ensuring its
operations are sustainable & giving back to the society in it operates. AWEIL spent amount of Rs.11.96 Lakh on C5R Projects
fActivities during financial year 2022-23, as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Human Resource
We have the power of skilled, gualified and experienced officers, staff and skilled workers and the support of unions and
associations. It is our endeavour to reach the pinnacle of success as per the aspirations of the country by making optimum use of
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all our human resources and working closely with all the concerned establishments.

We are confident that together we will be able to face all the challenges with determination and establish AWEIL as a strong,
credible, progressive, self-reliant and state-of-the-art arms manufacturing organization not only in the country but all over the
world and will brighten the name of AWEIL.

Acknowledgments

in the end, | would like to mention that all the achievements of AWEIL would not have been possible without the wholehearted
support provided by all the employees of the Company who have contributed in achieving all the goals in the last two years and
firmiy setting this organization in a new perspective.

| am grateful to the Board of Directors and members of the Management Committee for their unwavering support and guidance.
Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Defence Services, and Paramilitary & State Police Forces have been
continuously providing valuable guidance and support, bestowing their confidence in us. | deeply appreciate our shareholders,
esteemed customers and business associates for providing opportunities to earn their confidence.

At the same time, | would like to compliment the office bearers of all the unions and associations who have maintained a cordial
atmosphere in all units of AWEIL and | look forward to similar cooperation from them in the future also.

Thank you for the continuous support to Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited.

Jai Hind!

Chairman & Managing Director
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OUR PRODUCT PROFILE

Advanced Weapons and Equipment |ndia Limited (AWEIL), the ultimate weapon system provider in India, has a
comprehensive product matrix ranging from small caliber 5.56 mm Rifles to 155 mm Artillery Guns, Tank Guns viz.
Arjun Tank, T-90 Tank, T7-72 Tank as well as Mortars, Naval Guns and Anti-Aircraft Guns. It also manufactures
ammunition hardware ranging from 30 mm to 155 mm.

DHANUSH
155 mm x 45 CAL ARTILLERY GUN SYSTEM

« Indigenized Artillery Gun System for the
Indian Army.
Range * 36 km
AGSS- Advance Gun Sighting System
Shoot and Scoot Capability
GPS-aided INS -Inertial Navigation System
Direct Firing Capabilities: Day and Night
Rate of Fire :
Burst : 3 rounds in 30 sec
Intense: 12 rounds in 3 min
Works with wide range of
ammunition and charges

130mm to 155 x 45 Cal

Developed by AWEIL through in-house R&D
for up-gunning the existing 130 mm M46
Gun System.

Range > 36km

Capable of firing all existing standard
155 mm

Wark under all climatic conditions

AVery Cost Effective Selution
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LIGHT FIELD GUN

(LFG)
105 mm
Calibre: 105 mm

Range: 17.2km
Elevation: -5deg to 73 deg

Traverse: 360 deg on firing platform

MORTAR
120 mm

= Light Artillery Weapon
* Range: 8.9km

= FiresHE, smoke and llluminating
ammunition

MORTAR

81 mm

Light and powerful weapon designed to
increase the fighting power of infantry
Range: 5 km

RL MK-ill

B4 mm

Sophisticated and precise Infantry
Weapon B4 mm Carl Gustaf Recoilless
Gur MK-1I

Range: 700 m to 1000 m

Capable of firing varieties of ammunition
including anti-tank.
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AK-630 NAVAL
GUN

« Caliber-30mm
Range - 5000 m
Rate of Fire - 5000 rds/min

STABALIZED REMOTE

CONTROL GUN SYSTEM
(SRCG)

Caliber: 12.7mm

Effective Range - 1.89 km

Rateof Fire-  450-630 rds/min

Fully remotely controlied, deck mounted
Belt Fed

7.62 x 51 mm

BeltFed

Effective Range - 1800 m
Rate of fire - 1000 rds/min

7.62 %51 mm

Beit Fed

Effective Range - 800 m
Rate of fire - 600 rds/min
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TRICHY ASSAULT
RIFLE

7.62 % 39 mm

Effective Range - 350m

Rate of fire - 600 rds/min

Single shot and Automatic mode
Comparable to AK-47

ISHAPORE ASSUALT
RIFLE

7.61% 51 mm

Effective Range - 500m

Rate of fire - 700 rds/min

Single Shot and Automatic mode
Customers. CAPFs & 5P0s

JOINT VENTURE
PROTECTIVE CARBINE
(JVPC)

5.56 % 30mm

Effective Range- 100m

Rate of fire - 800 rds/min

Single shot and Automatic firing mode
Customers: CAPFs, SPOs, Coast Guard

TRICa

7.62 %39 mm

Effective Range - 140m

Rate of fire - 600 rds/min

Single shot and Automatic firing mode
Customers: 5POs
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CQB CARBINE

5.56 x 45 mm

Effective Range - 200 m

Rate of fire - 700 rds/min

Single shot and Automatic firing mode

SNIPER RIFLE

7T.62x 51 mm

Effective Range - 800m

Single Shot fire

Accuracy of 1 minute of angleat 100 m

ANTI MATERIAL
RIFLE

= 14.5 (20 mm multi calibre
« Effective Range - 1800m/ 1300 m

TEAR GAS
GUN

« 38.8mmbore
= Singleshot
« Rateof fire- 10 shell/min
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PISTOLS

«  9mm pistol
« 32 mmpistoland variants

REVOLVERS

« [.32° Revolver
«  0.22" revalver and variants

AMMUNITION
HARDWARE

30mm Shells

= 40mm Shells

« 105 mm Shells (High Explosive, Colour,
smoke, Hluminating)

« 120 mm Shells (Tank Ammunition)

« 125 mm Shells {Tank Ammunition)

« 130mm Shells (Artillery Gun Ammunition)

= 155 mm Shells (Artillery Gun Ammunition)
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CUSTOMER BASE

DPSUs,
SHIP YARDS

CIVIL
CUSTOMERS

POLICE
FORCES
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INTEGRATED SHELL FORGE PLANT CNC WIRE CUT MACHINE

TOOL ROOM FACILITIES
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Adm. Manish Sharma, NM,
Chief Staff Officer (OPS), HQENC.

DR. ANJU BALA, HON'BLE MEMBER OF THE
NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR SCHEDULED CASTES

COL. YVES ULYSSES KOTTA, DA/TANZANIYA BRIG. B. MAHAPATRA,
HIGH COMMISSION OF INDIA CONTROLLER_CQA(W)_JABALPUR
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Board of Directors have the great pleasure in presenting the 2nd Annual Report of the Company and Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2023 together with the reports of Statutory Auditors and Comptroller &
Auditor General of India thereon.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS:
The key highlights of the financial performance of the company during F. Y, 2022-23 along with the corresponding performance in
F.¥. 2022-23 are mentioned below:

{T in Crore)

PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-2022

(01.10.2021-

31.03.2022)
Turnover 1939.32 1088.62
Total Income 2,162.79 1,172.05
Profit before depreciation, exceptional items and tax 148. 34 T1.23
Less: Depreciation, amortization, impairment and
obsolescence 134,06 66.25
Profit before tax 14.28 5.98
Less: Provision for tax 642 1.45
Profit after tax for the year 7.86 4.93

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 stood at Rs, 2,05,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty
Thousand Five Hundred Crore anly), and the Paid-up share capital stood Rs. 1,71,23,91,00,000/ - {Rupees Seventeen Thousand
One Hundred Twenty-Three Crore and Ninty One Lakh in form of Equity shares.

SHAREHOLDING OF PRESIDENT OF INDIA:

The Shareholding of the President of India in the Company is 100%.

PROFIT:

Profit before Tax increased from Rs. 5.98 crore in 2021-22 to Rs. 14.28 crore in 2022-23 showing an increase of 138.80%.
Profit after Tax increased from Rs. 4.53 crore in E Y. 2021-22 to Rs. 7.86 crore in F Y. 2022-23 showing an increase of
73.51%.

COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMT:

The consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared for its Joint Venture Company Indo- Russian Rifles Private
Limited (IRRPL) pursuant to provisions of section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable accounting standards
together with the Auditors’ Report form part of this Report.

Financial Position: The financial position of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is shown below:

Type of Ratio 2022-23 2021-22
{1} Current Ratio (In times) 247 2.54
{if) Return on Equity Ratio (%) 0.25 017
(fii) Inventory turnover ratio (In times) 0.87 0.45
{iv) Trade receivables turnover ratio (In times) 3.51 4.70
{v] Trade payables turnover ratio (In times) 1.69 1.58
{vi} Met capital turnover ratio (In times) 0.7 0.45
(wii) Met profit ratio (%) 0.41 0.42
{viii} Return on capital employed (%) 0.45 0.23
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The Company has transferred the amount to Rs. 7.86 Crore to retained earnings during the current financial year.
CAPITALAND FINANCE:

During the year under review, the Company has received Capex and Emergency Authorization Fund (EAF) from the Government
of India, which is required to be apportioned in the form of Equity share capital.

Accordingly, the Company has apportioned the money in Equity shares through a Right Issue amounting to Rs. 374.87 crore to the
Government of India.

Pursuant to the corporatization of OFB into 7 new defence PSUs, the company was incorporated and instructed by the competent
authority that every new defence PSU has to issue Met Asset Value [NAV) for their asset received after valuation.

In view of that Company had appointed an Independent valuer M/s Bhavin Patel & Associates, a registered valuer, who has
carried out the valuation of assets of the Company, and has issued the valuation report to the Company. As per the valuation
report, MAY of the Company was Rs. 16220.67 Crores ason01.10.2021.

Accordingly, the Company has tssued Equity Shares amounting to Rs. 16220.67 crore to the Hon'ble President of India, through
Joint Secretary (LS), Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Productions, Government of India.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE:

As at March 31, 2023, the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets were at Rs, 1,887.84 Crore and
Capital work-in-progress were amounted to Rs. 271.34 Crore.

DIVIDEND;
As per the guidelines issued by the Department of Investment and Public Asset Management (DIPAM), every CPSE would pay

a minimum of annual dividend of 30% of PAT or 5% of net worth whichever is higher subject to the maximum of dividend
permissible under the Companies act, 2013.

We are a newly formed Company and in the process of stabilizing our operations, the profit generated will be used in fulfilling
the requirement of capital expenditure during FY 2022-2023,

F DEP :

Duiring the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013,
50 the Company does not fall within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014,

P CE:

Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited (AWEIL) has registered the highest-ever revenue from operations of INR
1939.32 Cr. for FY 2022-23 as against INR 13%6.93 Cr for the previous FY. The company has recorded remarkable revenue growth
during the year as compared to last year (as a whole). In fact, AWEIL has recorded the highest Sales in the last five years which
includes the period of erstwhile OFB.

TARGETS AND ACHIEVEMENTS;
Target and achievement is as below:-
(f in Crore)
DPSU Target 2022-23 Sales 2022-23
AWEIL 2100 1939.32
ORDER BOOK POSITION:

AWEIL has signed Orders worth INR 3008 Cr. which have broughit the order book position to INR 7524 Cr. after the execution of INR
1939.32 Cr. in 2022-2023. Domestic Orders of INR 2973 Cr. from Indian Private Industries, DPSUs, MHA & Others & Export Orders of
IMR 35 Cr. received in 22-23. Further letter of Comfort received worth INR 420 Crore,

01,0420 3 IVEM B H

=  Field Gun Kanpur (FGK) successfully proof fired 155x52 cal ordnance at CPE Itarsi on 10.05.2022, proving its capabilities
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= Rifle Factory Ishapore (RFl) was conferred the 'Golden Peacock Award' in the Innovative Product range for the year 2022
for its product 7.62x51mm Ishapore Assault Rifle (IAR).

=  Bimm Mortar production has been established at 03 units which include Ordnance Factory Kanpur, Field Gun Kanpur
and Gun & Shell Factory Cossipare.

The first fully indigenized AQ 18 barrel of AK 630 Haval gun was successfully fired by Gun and Shell Factory (GSF),
Cossipore under the aegis of AWE India Ltd. at PXE Balasare.

= AWEIL s proudly associated with INS VIKRANT dedicated to the nation on 2™ September 2022 by Hon'ble PM. The AK-630
Gun System in the Air Craft Carrier is produced at Gun & Shell Factory Cossipore. Also, for the KAVACH Anti-missile
launcher, which is a part of INS Vikrant, Barrels are supplied by our unit Gun & Shell Factory Cossipore.

» Company has participated in Africa Aerospace and Defence (AAD) Expo 2022 held in South Africa from 217 September
2022 to 25" September 2022. We have received good response from diplomats, delegates, and officials from the
Security Forces of African Countries which include Kenya, Sudan, Nigeria, Namibia & Tanzania. They have shown keen
interest in the AWEIL product range.

*  The Dhanush gun system has been inducted by the Indian Army and operationalized in high altitudes along the northern
borders. It represents a huge step towards self-reliance in defence manufacturing of Artillery Guns,

=  AWEIL under Mission Raksha Gyan Shakti has acquired 1 |P in patent & 10 IPs in Registered Trade Mark.
=  AWEIL participated at the National Defence MSME Conclave and Exhibition at Kota Rajasthan on 12" September 2022,

» AWEIL participated in Def-Expe 2022 held at Gandhinagar, Gujarat from 187 to 22" October 2022 to showcase its
product range of weapons including Artillery Guns & Small Arms along with Ammunition Hardware. The center of
attraction was the 155252 Towed Gun System which has been indigenously developed by AWEIL as an enhanced version
of Dhanush. Def-Expo 2022 provided AWEIL a great platform to carry out a series of business meetings. There had been
fruitful discussions with DPSUs, Indian Defence Industry, Foreign OEMs & high-level delegations. 14 MolUs having
financial implications of approx. INR 5000 Cr. have been signed during the event. AWEIL also launched 2 products,
indigenously developed Ak-630 Maval Gun & .32 Side Swing Revolver during the Bandhan Ceremony at Def Expo 2022,

= AWEIL participated in Aero India 2023 which provided a great platform for interaction with Foreign OEMs and Indian
Defence Industry. AWEIL interacted with Mongolian Delegation & briefed them about the product profile. Discussion
was also held with M/s ROE on the ongoing business proposals. Apart from this AWEIL had a series of Business Meetings
with Foreign Delegations, Foreign OEMs & Indian Private Defence Companies. AWEIL exchanged important MoUs during
the Bandhan Ceremony of Aero India 2023. These include MoUs with IIITDM Jabalpur, Gliders India Ltd, & tripartite Mol
with ARDE & Lokesh Machines Limited.,

= Hon' ble Prime Minister of Vietnam H.E, Pham minh Chinh inaugurated the India Pavilion at Vietnam Defence Expo 2022
{08-10 December 2022) and it was an honor hosting His Excellency at AWEIL. He appreciated AWEIL s wide product
range and conveyed his best wishes. We exhibited our wide product range covering Small Arms, Artilbery Gun Systems
and Ammunition Hardware at the Vietnam Defence Expo 2022,

= Small Arms Factory (5AF), unit of AWEIL has got Approval of a Firm and its Quality Management System (AFOMS)
certification by the Directorate General of Aeronautical Quality Assurance,

«  Small Arms Factory (54AF), unit of AWEIL has achieved fresh MABL certification for its laboratory up to 10.03.2025 for
Chemical and Mechanical Testing,

=  AWEIL has participated in Combined Commanders Conference -2023 (CCC-2023) held at Bhopal fram 30" March to 1"
April 2023,

» Defence and Technology Expo; Empowering MSME, organized by Swatantra Foundation and TIDCO, held between 26" to
28" May 2022 at Chennai Trade Centre, Nandambakkam. Ordnance Factory Trichy (OFT) as a nodal factory participated
along with Rifle Factory Ishapore (RFI) & Small Arms Factory (5AF), Kanpur on behalf of the AWEIL group of factories.
B2B meetings were conducted and participated in seminar on Opportunities with DPSUs for MSMEs. The event was fully
exploited to showcase our products and reach the vendors for development/supply of critical components.
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The Gujarat Chamber of Commerce & Industry [GCCI) team visited three units-at Kanpur OFC, SAF and FGK and one
unit, GCF at Jabalpur. Critical components comprising of Casting, Forging Bearings, Springs etc. were showcased to
GCCI. AWEIL is committed to achieving the timelines set for the indigenization of critical components. As a proactive
approach, GCCl was approached to facilitate for the same through the engagement of industry partners from Gujrat.

Rifle Factory Ishapare (RF1) on 30" September 2022 has unveiled a newly developed weapon 0.32 Pistol MK-11l under Non
Prohibited Bore category.

Successful firing of a Pilot batch of 60 mm Mortar Ammunition | Shell, Fuse & Tail Unit) by Gun & Shell Factory Cossipore
{G5F) a unit of AWEIL has been done.

AWEIL showcased its diversified and modern weapon systems & discussed challenges and development in the homeland
security sector at a Mational Conference on “Homeland Security: Public-Private Partnership for Managing New Age
Challenges™ on 17 January 2023.

Rifle Factary Ishapore (RFI), handed over the first batch of 7.62X39 TAR (Trichy Assault Rifle) to CISE

GROWTH IN VALUE OF PRODUCTION:

AWEIL is in the inception stage and sales of AWEIL from 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 was INR 1939.32 Crore. The Company
has set a growth target @ 10-15% per year up to 2025-26. The targets of the Company up to 2025-26 are tabulated

below: -
Financial Target
Year (INRinCr.)
2023-24 2750
2024-25 3000
2025-26 3200
FUTURE GROWTH:

AWEIL is aggressively pursuing export opportunities through interaction with defence attaces at various Indian embassies and
exploring the opportunity of entering into MoU with private defence industries for offering state-of-the-art defence equipment
to Defence Services/CAPFs/SPFs,

AWEIL understands the advantages of continuous modernization & up-gradation of its facilities in order to have state of art setup
for promoting exports and for being able to offer the best in class products/systems to the Defence Services.

Considering the perspective program and the continuation of the production of the existing level of products, the turnaver of
AWEIL is expected to cross 28,000 Crore per annum by 2046-47.
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ANTICIPATED SALES OF AWEIL

1072 1956

2750

2834

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2029-30 2034-35 2039-40 2044-45 2046-47

FINANCIAL YEAR

This 1s based on a projected annual growth of 10-15% per annum.
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QUALITY;

The Company views quality improvement as a business strategy and hence remains proactive in the areas of product and service
quality. At AWEIL, the Corporate Quality Policy emphasizing Total Quality Management (TOM) ensures that products, services and
processes meet stringent standards and requisite performance criteria. A separate Quality Department spearheads the thrust
towards Total Quality Management.

The products manufacturing & development is undertaken based on Quality Requirements (QRs) specified in RFIs/RFPs issued by
the Army, Navy, Air Force & other customers. In addition, relevant international Standards such as STANAGs, JS5 specifications
and |-TOPS are also referred during product development. As far as testing is concerned, Field Evaluation Trials (FETs) are
conducted strictly in accordance with trial directives issued by the user as well as DGOA. In addition, environmental &
endurance testing of the equipment is undertaken by DGOA conlirming to relevant J55 specifications.

All products are manufactured and tested as per the relevant ATP specified by the concerned AHSE. Comprehensive guality
systems exist and all quality-related parameters are captured online through NQDBMS for all stages of production.

ISO STANDARD AND ACCREDITATIONS:

All units of AWEIL believe in preducing stores of the highest international quality which is revealed from the fact that units have
implemented the International Quality Management System standard (150 9001: 2015) in all spheres of its production activities.
The units possess 150 14000: 2015, 150 50001: 2011 and OHSAS 45001:2018 certification. The units also have a NABL accredited
lab to ensure that all the measurement devices and instruments, used in production activities are calibrated to International
Standards.

EXPORT INITIATIVES: -

(a) Future Planning for exports:

Self-reliance in defence manufacturing by the application of science and technoloegy is a crucial component of effective
defence capability and to maintain national soveretgnty and achieving military supertority. The attainment of this will
ensure strategic independence, cost-effective defence equipment and may lead to saving on the defence impaort bill.
AWEIL is looking far as an Indian Offset Partner (10P) with foreign OEM exploring opportunities through bilateral
talks/Inputs in defence cooperation, etc. through MoD and continuous monitoring of existing/ upcoming opportunities
in countries/ regions of interest.

Export Strategy of AWEIL encompasses the following points in its domain: -

«  Competitive prices.

«  Promotion and marketing through online webinars/seminars/B2B interactions.
= |nviting DAs of potential customer countries in India.

« Engaging channel partners,

«  Participation in Domestic and International exhibitions.

«  Regular follow-up of leads received on the Def exim portal.

+ Direct engagement with prospective customers.

= Interaction with foreign OEMs.

{b) The export targets for AWEIL up to 2025-26 are tabulated below: -

Financial Target
Year {INRin Cr.}
2023-24 300
2024-25 500
2025-26 1125
MAKE IN INDIA INITIATIVE AND IND ON OF PROD ;

The company is working aggressively towards ‘Atmanirbhar Bharat' in defence production through indigenization. The indigenous
content in the turnover of AWEIL is to the tune of 94% one of the highest amongst DPSUs. Import dependency of AWEIL is on those
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items anly which are of perennial import nature and ToT is not available from foreign OEMs.

Major products indigenized in the recent past include a Power Pack of 155 X 45 mm Dhanush Gun System, fully indigenized A0 18
barrel of AK 630 Naval gun & Pneumatic Belt Feed Booster of AK-630 Maval Gun System etc. Further, Barrel Assembly of 84 mm RL
Mk-11l is being indigenized under iDEX. AWEIL is making all concerted efforts towards making a Nation “ATMANIRBHAR" in the field
of Small Arms and Large Caliber weapons.

PROCUREMENT THROUGH GeM PORTAL;

In accordance with the Government of India policy, AWEIL is purchasing items/services through Gem to the maximum extent.
GeM is a contactless, paperless, and cashless online marketplace that replaced the Directorate General of Supplies and Disposals
(DGSED) in 2016, Since its inception, GeM has brought in the visibility and transparency in public procurement. The portal has
transformed public procurement in India by driving its three pillars, namely, inclusion, usability, transparency and efficiency
cost savings.

The platform aims to increase transparency, efficiency and speed in public procurement along with inclusion. |t provides all
modes of procurement, viz., direct purchase, e-bidding, bidding with reverse e-auction and direct reverse auction. The digital
platform enables economies of scale, efficient price discovery and dissemination of best practices. The procurement of goods
and services by ministries or government departments has been made mandatory for Goods or Services available on the Gem
portal, as embodied in Rule 149 of the General Financial Rules, 2017, Public Sector Enterprises and State Governments are also
encouraged to purchase from GeM.

GeM platform for AWEIL:

Units of AWEIL are involved in the manufacturing of defence stores and are procuring their maximum requirement of input
materials from the GeM platform. All our efforts are being made to shift 100% procurement action from GeM. AWEIL is in the
process of entering into a Mol with GeM,

Procurement through GeM Portal from 01.04,2022 to 31.03.2023 is INR 497.91 Crore.

Total Domestic Procurement Procurement through Gem
2022-23 (in Cr.) 2022-2023 (in Cr.)
912.83 497.:

MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSMEs);

Micro, Small and medium Enterprises (MSMEs) have been contributing significantly to the expansion of entrepreneurial
endeavors through business innovations. The MSMEs are widening their domain across defence sector, producing a diverse range
of products and services to meet the demands of domestic as well as global markets. The MSMEs in India are playing a crucial role
by providing large employment opportunities at comparatively lower capital cost than large industries as well as through
industrialization of rural and backward areas, inter alia, reducing regional imbalances, assuring more equitable distribution of
national income and wealth. AWEIL is giving support to the MSME sector by placing orders in the domain of available product
categories as well as exploring wide spectra in the umbrella facilities of the MSME sector and AWEIL has done procurement
through Micro & Small Enterprises (MSME) from 01.04,2022 t031.03.2023 5 INR 560.50 Crore.

Out of the total procurement value, a minimum of 20% shall be made mandatory from Micro Small and Enterprises. Qut of 20%
procurement value, 4% procurement shall be done from Scheduled Caste and Scheduled Tribe entrepreneurs and 3% of 20% shall
be done from women entrepreneurs.

Total ::’::g':me“t MSME owned | MSME  owned
IS“L. FY Procurement MSME by SC/ST by Women
Rs. (Cr.) | % o 1% A % Rs. (Cr.) | %
(Cr.) (Cr.)
(1 | 2021-22 | 114590 | 100 | 241.83 | 21.10 | 11.06 | 457 | 2876 | 11.88
2 [2022-23 | 79270 |100 |560.50 [ 70.71 [21.94 |3.92 |60.78 10.83
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PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT:

AWEIL is a distinguished leader in the field of weapons manufacturing, renowned for its commitment to precision engineering
and cutting-edge technology. Our dedicated Human Resources team plays a pivotal role in sustaining this legacy of excellence,
Through rigorous comprehensive onboarding, we ensure that every member of the AWEIL family is equipped with the skills and
knowledge to excel in their roles. Our HR department also spearheads ongoing training and development initiatives, keeping our
waorkforce up-to-date with the latest industry advancements.

At AWEIL, we understand that our employees are our most valuable asset. We offer a supportive work culture that prioritizes
work-life balance. Additionally, our HR team is committed to maintaining a safe and inclusive workplace environment, with a
focus on cantinuous improvement. AWEIL's HR department collaborates closely with other departments to ensure that our
workforce remains agile, adaptable, and capable of meeting the evalving demands of the industry. Together, we are shaping the
future of weapons manufacturing, driven by a passion for precision and a dedication to quality

As per DDP OM Mo, 1(5)2021/0F/DP(Plg-V)/02 dated 24.09.2021, all employees of AWEIL are on deemed deputation from
erstwhile OFB for 03 years up to 30,09.2024. Till such time the employvees remain on deemed deputation to the New DPSUs, they
shall continue to be subject to the subject to all the extant rules, regulations and orders are applicable to the central
Government employees, including related to their pay scales, allowances, leave medical facilities, career progression and other
services conditions. At present, Do0 (C&S) is the Cadre Controlling Authority.

MANPOWER AND RESERVATION OF POSTS FOR 5Cs/5Ts:

Your Company has been following the Directives of the Government with regard to the reservation of posts for SCs/5Ts in
recruitment.

sl. No. | Category of | Number of[No of SC No  of ST
Employees Employees Employees Employees

01. Group ‘A’ 222 42 6

0a. Group ‘B’ Gazetted 1564 1005 260

03. Group 'B' Non - | 1528
Gazetted

04. Group 'C’ 1445 1894 379

05. Industrial Employees | 8269

EMPOWERMENT & WELFARE OF WOMEN:

Creche is operated to take care of the children of the waorking women employees as a welfare measure, In addition, Maternity
benefits were also given to the woman employees as per the procedures laid down in the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, Child Care
leave as admissible to Central Govt. employees also provided. Qut of 41 sections, 05 sections are headed by women officers.
Apart from the above, many important portfolios are held by women officials of the Factory.

PERSOMNS WITH DISABILITIES (PWD)AS ON 31 MARCH 2023:
51. Nao, Mumber of PwDs ason 31/03/2023 Remarks
01. 305 Includes all Group (A, B, C) employees

GRIEVAMCE REDRESSAL COMMITTEES FOR 5Cs/5Ts:

Aliaison officer has been nominated by the Competent Autharity to look after the Grievances/ welfare of the SC/5T employees.
Further, as per DoPT instructions, SC/ST cell is re-constituted and the cell is effectively functioning in all the units to redress the
grievances of SC/ST employees.

AWEIL s committed to creating and maintaining a secure work environment where its employees can work and pursue business
together in an atmosphere free of harassment, exploitation and intimidation. The Company has in place Anti-5exual Harassment
policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013, an internal Complaints Committee has been set up in AWEIL to redress complaints related to sexual harassment. All
employees are covered under this policy.
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An Internal Complaints Committee has been constituted in each of the nine units, including the Corporate office to redress
complaints relating to sexual harassment. Awareness programs were conducted across the Company to sensitize employees and
uphold the dignity of their colleagues at the workplace, particularly with respect to the prevention of sexual harassment.

Status of complaints received during the year:

i The number of complaints filed during the Financial year - 04

it} The number of complaints disposed of during the Financial year - 02

fii) The number of complaints pending as of the end of the Financial year - oz
FICIAL UA A ;

Your Company has been adhering to the directives issued by the Govt. of India from time to time for extensive use of Hindi for
official purposes. AWEIL has been following all the directives issued by the Indian official language Act.,

Activities regarding the implementation of Rajbhasha,

(a) Rajbhasha workshops were organized in which officers/employees were taught the official language Provision
and efforts were made to remave the difficulties faced by officers/employees while working in Hindi,

ib) Hindi Divash/Rajbhasha Fortnight was organized and during the Rajbhasha Fortnight, completion like essays,
technical presentations (PowerPoint), Conversations, Shruti writing etc. was organized to connect more and
more officers/employees of the factory with the Rajbhasha.

ic) With the aim of creating an environment conducive to Hindi for the officers/employees in the factaory, the
Rajbhasha library was systematically and properly operated.
d) Quarterly Hindi magazine published at several factories
GILANCE A ITIES:

The company's Vigilance Organisation is headed by Chief Vigilance officer (CVO). A Deputy Chief vigilance officer is posted at
AWEIL Headquarters to assist CVO in vigilance activities. Further, each unit has a Vigilance officer to look after vigilance
administration in the units. Preventive Vigilance has been the thrust area of the Vigilance Organisation and the same received
focused attention during the current year. The Vigilance Department examines procurements and processes on a continual basis,
conducts regular and surprise inspections and investigates instances of any suspected transactions referred toit. An employee or
third parties can refer any suspected transaction to the notice of CVO for investigation which are examined as per the Complaint
Handling Policy of the Company.

All provisions of PIDP| Act are being strictly followed by all AWEIL Units and Headquarters

JOINT-VENTURE COMPANYY:

The Company has ane Joint-Venture |,e, Inde-Russian Rifles Private Limited (IRRPL). IRRPL {5 a Joint Venture company formed
under the Companies Act, 2013 in accordance with the Inter-Governmental Agreement (IGA) between Union of India
represented by Advanced Weapons And Equipment India Limited (AWEIL) and Munitions India Limited (MIL) and Russian
Federation represented by J5C Rosoboronexport (J5C ROE) and J5C concern Kalashnikov (JSC CK), for production of AK series
Assault Rifles AK-203 and other small arms in India.

IRRPL is a Joint Venture company formed under the Companies Act, 2013 in accordance with the Inter-Governmental Agreement
(IGA) between Union of India represented by AWEIL and Munition India Limited (MIL) and Russian Federation represented by JSC
Rosoboronexport (J5C ROE) and Concern Kalashnikov (CK), for production of AK series Assault Rifles AK-203 in India.

Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited, a Joint Venture Company of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited (AWEIL) has
concluded a contract with M/s Rosboronexport |RoE) Russia for indigenous manufacturing of AK-203 Rifles. The contract is for
transfer of the license for the production of Kalashnikov assault rifle, as well as provision of technical assistance in
manufacturing 7.62 mmAK-203 Kalashnikov assault rifle. The Company has already started its business operations.

A separalte section on report on the performance and financial position of the Joint Venture Company are placed under Form
ADC-1 annexed in “Appendix 1" (in the consolidated financial statement of the Company, in terms of section 129(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016:

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the company under the
Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 20146,

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status
and the Company's operations in the future.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Your Company has not given any loans or guarantees. The Company has made investments in Indo- Russian Rifles Private Limited
(IRRPL) a joint venture Cormpany amounting to Rs. 42,50,000 under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

There were no significant related party transactions with the Company's Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives,
which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company.

Your Company being a Government Company with 100% shareholding by the President of India and under the administrative
control of the Ministry of Defence is subject tostrict rules and norms for every transaction entered into during the normal course
of business.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Functional Directors and Government Nominee Directors who are appointed
by the Gavernment of India from time to time. Further, the tenure and remuneration of Functional Directors including the
Chairman and Managing Director are decided by the Government of India.

(a) As on year ended March 31, 2023, the Board had the strength of five directors:

S. NO. NAME DESIGNATION

1. Shri Rajesh Choudhary Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shiri Jayant Kumar Government Nominee Director

3. ShriAkhilesh Kumar Maurya Director (Operations)

LR Shri Biswaiit Pradhan Director (HR)

5. Shri Sushil Sinha Director {Finance)
CHANGE OF DIRECTORS:
The following changes in the Board of your Company were effected during 2022-23 as per the directives of the Government of
India:

Changes in Functional Directors during the year
«  Smt. Anupma Tripathi, Director {HR) ceased the office due to superannuation w.e.f. 31.01.2023. Shri Biswajit Pradhan
was appointed in place of her.
«  Shri Ravin Kulshrestha, Director (Finance) ceased the office due to superannuation w.e.f. 28.02.2023, Shri Sushil Sinha
was appointed in place of him.

Changes in Government Nominee Directors during the year

+  Shri Chandraker Bharti, lAS Joint Secretary (Defence Production), Ministry of Defence ceased the office pursuant to
Office Memorandum No. 8(32)/2019-D{Coord/DDP) dated September 14, 2022, received from the Department of
Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Government of Indiaw.e.f. 14.09.2022.

+  5hriSurendra Prasad Yadav, Joint Secretary (LS) was appointed as Government Nominee Director w.e.f. September 14,
2022 pursuant to Office Memorandum Mo, B(32)/2019-D{Coord/DDP) dated September 14, 2022 received from the
Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Government of India later on he ceased office w.e.f
27.02.2023.

= Shri Jayant Kumar, Joint Secretary (AS) was appointed in place of Shri Surendra Prasad Yadav ceased the office the
office pursuant to Office Memorandum No. 8(32)/2019-0{Coord/DDP) dated January 06, 2023 received from the
Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Government of India w.e.f. 27.02.2023,
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There is nointer-se relationship among the directors.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Your Company being a Central Public Sector Enterprise, the appointment, tenure and remuneration of Directors are decided by
the Government of India. The Government communication appointing the Functional Directors indicate the detailed terms and
conditions of their appointment including a provision for the applicability of the relevant rules of the Company.

Government Nominee Directors were neither paid any remuneration nor sitting fee for attending Board meetings,

Meither there was payment of commission to the Board of Directors nor any stock option scheme offered to them during the year.
Further, none of the Directors had any pecuniary relationship nor entered inte any related party transactions with the Company
during the year.

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the financial year, the Board of Directors met Nine (9) times, which were held on 04.05.2022, 13.06.2022, 26.09.2022,
15.11.2022, 28.12.2022, 17.02.2023, 27.02.2023, 16.03.2023 and 27.03.2023.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETING:

Attendance of directors, in Board Meetings is as follows:

oectr e s by | NorofBoardesings e
Shri Rajesh Choudhary 9 g
Shiri Chandraker Bharti 2 2
shri Surendra Prasad Yaday 4 1
Shri Jayant Kumar i i
ShriAkhilesh Kumar Maurya 9 9
Smt. Anupma Tripathi 5 5
shri Ravin Kulshrestha 7 7
5hri Biswajit Pradhan 4 3
Shiri Sushil Sinha 2 2

ROTATION OF DIRECTOR:

Mot applicable to Government Companies,

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT;

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors, in
terms of Sections 134(3) & 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 state that;

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the
profit of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

2} The Directors ensured proper internal financial controls were in place and such financial controls were adequate and were
operating effectively; and

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and

same were adequate and operating effectively.
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The provision of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating constitution of the Audit Committee and as per DPE guidelines
the Company shall constitute an Audit Committee. However, the Audit Committee could not be constituted during the financial
year 2022-23, due toa lack of Men-Official {Independent) Directors in the Board, However, the Management has requested with
the Ministry of Defence for the appointment of Non-Official (Independent) Directors in the Board of the Company, which is under
consideration.

POLI 1 R'S APPOINTM NERATION AND BOARD EVALUATI

In the term of Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5" June, 2015, Government Companies are not
required to frame a Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. Your
Company being a Government Company under the administrative control of the Ministry of Defence, the appointment, tenure
and remuneration of Directors of the Company are decided by the Government of India.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT THAT AFFECT THE COMPANY'S FIMANCIAL POSITION:

There was no material change during the year 2022-23 that affected the financial position of the company and therefore no
reguirement was raised to disclose remedial measures,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR;

The Independent Directors could not be appointed in the Board during the year. However, the Management has requested with
the Ministry of Defence for the appointment of Mon-Official (Independent) Directors in the Board of the Company, which is under
consideration.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls, The Company is also in the process of appointing an internal
auditor who will monitor compliance of the Company's procedures and policies with a well-defined annual audit program and
significant audit observations which will be presented before the Board of Directors.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS:

During the year, neither the Statutory Auditor nor the Secretarial Auditor reported any instance of fraud committed against the
Company by its of ficers or employees,

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your Company has complied with the provisions of applicable secretarial standards with respect to Meetings of Board of
Directors (55-1) and General Meetings (55-1) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India in terms of Section 118{10) of
the Companies Act 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT;

C5R is essentially a way of conducting business respansibly and AWEIL shall endeavor to conduct its business operations and
activities in a socially responsible and sustainable manner at all times. In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules 2021, AWEIL has contributed the CSR amount
to the Foundation for Innovation & Research in Science & Technology, a section 8 Company promoted by [IT Kanpur. C5R activities
are being implemented in project/ program mode, in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VIl of the Act.

During the year, AWEIL spent Rs. 11.96 Lakh on C5R. The report on CSR projects and activities undertaken in E.Y, 2022-23 has been
annexed as "Appendix II°,

COMSERVATION OF EMERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AMD FOREIGM EXCHANGE EARMINGS AND OUTGO:

The information required to be furnished under section 134 (3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo is
annexed in "Appendix [II" herewith and ferming part of this report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. 5.K. Kapoor & Co., Chartered Accountant (FRM 000745C), Kanpur were appointed as the Statutory Auditors for the financial
year 2022-23 by the Comptrotler & Auditor General of India. Dbservations made in the Independent Auditors’ Report on the
financial statement including the consolidated financial statement and the reply of the Board of Directors thereto are given by
way of "Appendix IV"to the Director’s Report.
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The Board would like to thank them for their valuable support and guidance during the audit of accounts under review,

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:;

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s Ankit Misra & Co., Company Secretary in Whole Time Practice
to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as "Appendix V" in the Form MR-3.

The reply on observations made in the Secretarial Auditors’ Report are given by the Board of Directors thereto are given by way of
“Appendix V1" to the Director's Report.

The Board would like to thank them for their valuable support and guidance during the audit of accounts under review,

COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL (CEAG) OF INDIA;

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has undertaken a supplementary audit on the accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2023 under Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. The comments of the C&AG on the Annual Accounts of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023 along with management reply also form part of this report., it will be
appending by way of "Appendix VIl and VIII” respectively to the Director's Report,

G{!IHG CONCERN STATUSAH D EUMFANH'"S II'.')PERATIGHS IN FUTURE:

Mo Significant and Material Orders Passed by The Regulators ar Courts or Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and
Company'’s Operations in Future during the year under Review,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corperate governance in all spheres of business activities
carried out by the Company and continues to lay strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. Adetailed Report
on Corporate Governance as per the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs 2010 issued by DPE vide OM No. 18(8)/2005-
GM dated 14.05.2010 along with a Compliance Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary is placed at “Appendix IX" to
the Director's Report.

AN D 1 N l

All the guidelines and policies including guidelines having financial implications issued by the Department of Public Enterprises
from time to time are duly complied with by the Company.

GEMENT USSION & ANALYSIS:

The management Discussion & Analysis Report as required under the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs forms
part of this Annual Report. "Appendix X",

COST RECORDS;

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Board of
Directors of your Company has appointed M/s. M. R. Vyas & Associates, Cost Accountants, Kanpur, as the Cost Auditors of
your Company for the financial year 2022-23 to conduct an audit of cost records maintained by your Company.

EAR ENDED ON MAR(

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return is placed on the website of the Company. The link of the same is
https:/ fwww.aweil.in/.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016:

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the name of the company under the
Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS;

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status

@ ANNUAL REPORT | 2022-23

and the Company's operations in the future,




BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT:

As AWEIL is in the inception stage, all business related risks are being studied so that AWEIL can mitigate business risks and
cultivate a better management system in the field of defence manufacturing.

In today's chaltenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of
the Company are imperative, The common risks inter alia are; Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology
obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial
risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to
mitigate the same.

VIGIL ME u ] B OLICY:

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent manner by
adopting of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior the company has adopted a vigil
mechanism palicy.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:

The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act and the relevant Rules regarding particulars of employees drawing
remuneration in excess of the limits specified are exempted for Government Companies, in view of the Gazette Notification No.
GSR 463 (E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

UNDE| o 2005:

The provisions of the Right to Information Act are followed diligently in letter and spirit and timely responses are given to all
gueries. Pursuant to Section 4(1)(b) of Right to Information Act, 2005 (RT1), the reguisite information for citizens is provided on
the Company website, .e., www, aweil.in.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation of the services rendered by the employees of the Company. They are
grateful to shareholders, bankers, customers and vendors of the Company for their continued valued support. The Directors look
forward to a bright future with confidence.

Your Directors express their hearty thanks to the Company's valued customers, Government of India, Administrative Ministry, the
Ministry of Defence and in particular, the Department of Defence Production, Indian Army, Indian Airforce, Indian Navy, MHA,
State Police and other DPSUs for their patronage and confidence reposed on the Company. The Directors also acknowledge and
thank all collaborators, vendors and other service providers for their valuable assistance and cooperation extended to the
Company,

The Directors express their appreciation to the members of Company's Consortium of Banks and other Bankers and Financial
Institutions for their continued support to the Company’s operations.

The Directors wish to thank the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, the Principal Director of Commercial Audit & Ex-officio
Member and different Auditors for their valued co-operation.

The Directors also acknowledge the valuable support and assistance received from various Ministries of Government, in
particular Ministry of Defence, Ministry of Home Affairs.

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the invaluable contribution made and excellent co-
operation extended by the employees and executives at all levels for the continued progress and prosperity of the Company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

The statements contained in the Board's Report contain certain statements relating to the future and therefore are forward
looking within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations various factors such as economic conditions, changes in
government regulations, tax regime, other statues, market forces and other associated and incidental factors may however lead
to variation in actual results.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ed/-
Date: 01.11.2023 Rajesh Choudhary
Place: Kanpur Chairman & Managing Director
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Appendix -l
Form AOC-I
JOINT VENTURE
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Joint Venture Companies:
(¥ Lakhs)
Sl No. [Mame of Joint Venture Indo- Russian Rifles Private Limited
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31-03-2023
2 Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end in No. 4,153,000
Extend of Holding % 42.50
2 Description of how there is significant influence Investment in the equity to the extent of

45% paid-up capital is considered to be
significant influence.

7 Met worth attributable to Shareholding as
per latest audited Balance Sheet 2077.95
8 Profit / Loss for the year 1014.87
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Appendix -l
R arporate ial R ibvili R) Activities for the Year 2022-23

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

Our CSR efforts are focused towards technology innovation, health care and nutrition, and mainstreaming differently-abled
children. The scope of CSR activities undertaken by AWEIL is as per Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013,

The fund for the C5R is allocated based on 2% of the average net profit of the Company for the immediate preceding financial
Years,

1. Composition of CSR Committee:
CSR committee could not be constituted due to lack of Independent Directors in the Board.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed
on the website of the company.,
The CSR budget for the F.Y. 2022-23 is available on our website at https:/ /'www.aweil.in/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
{Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule {3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Respaonsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

Sl Mo. | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off from preceding Amount required to be set-off for the
financial years (in Rs) financial year, if any (in Rs)

NIL

b. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). Rs. 598 Lakh

7. 1a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 11.96 Lakh

(b} Surplus arising out of the C5R projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Not Applicable
{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢). Rs. 11.96Lakh

8. (a) CSR amount spent aor unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent {in Rs.)
Total Amount
Spent for th
Ff:anci;rmai Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund
(inRs.) Unspent C5R Account as per specified under Schedule VIl as per
section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5).
Amount, Date of transfer. Hame of the Amount. Date of transfer.
Fund
Rs. 11.96 Lakh

{b) Details of C5R amount spent against angoing projects for the financial year:
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(| (@ (3) (4) (5) (6) {7 (8) (%) (10) (11)
5l.|Name |ltem Local Location of |Project | Amount |Amount { Amount Mode of Mode of
|Ne.|of the |from area the duratio |allocate [spent in| transferr | Implementati | Implementation
Projec |the list | (Yes/Mo) | project. n. d for the ed to on - Direct = Through
t. of . the current | Unspent {Yes/MNa). Implementing
activitie project [financia| CSR Agency
5 in {in Rs.). || Year Account
Schedul {in Rs.). | for the
e Vil to project
the Act. State.| Distr as per Name | C5R
ict. Section Registrat
135(6) ion
(in Rs.). number,
{c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) ) 3) (4) (5) (6) 0] (B)
sl. Mame of | ltem from |Local | Location of the Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. |the the list of |area | project. spent for | implementation - implementation -
Project | activities |(Yes/ the Direct (Yes/Mo). Through implementing
in Mo). project agency.
schedule (in Rs.).
Vil to the
Act.
State, | District. Hame CSR
Registration
number.
HIL

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Mot Applicable
{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Bb+8c+8d+8e): Wil

(2) Excess amount for set off, if any: NI

9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR
spent in the financial year: Nil
10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend twa per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).: Nil

5d/- Sdf-
Sushil Sinha Rajesh Choudhary
Director Chairman & Managing Director
DIM: 10059967 DIN: 09282229
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Appendix -l
ADDITIOMAL INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m}) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013

1) CONSERYATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

a) Utilization of alternative sources of Energy: In AWEIL Units following measures are adopted for utilization of alternative
source of Energy. Installation of Roof top/ Ground Mounted solar power plants for expansion in renewable energy source and
improving efficiency of existing RE projects. Brief of Roof top/ Ground Mounted solar power plants in AWEIL Units and its future
auvgmentation plan are as under:-

Existing Roof Top/ Ground Mounted Proposed Augmentation Target
Solar Power Plant
11.84 MW 33.92 MW
. Installation/replacement of Turbo Ventilators with Wind Driven Turbo Ventilators to enhance the working environment
conseguently reduction in energy consumption.
. To maximize the use of renewable energy by replacing some percentage of Opaque Galvalume Roof sheet in production

buildings by trapslucent sheets to promote sustainable environment for utilization of day light in the shop floor so that
energy performance could be improved.

. Concept of adoption of e-Vehicle in AWEIL Units are already introduced and functional in several establishments to
reduce the dependence on non-renewable energy sources and emission of carbon particles.
b} Future Plan of action-

+  Capacity augmentation of installed Solar Power Plants.

+  Purchase of Energy Efficlent Machines/Equipments/Appliances/ luminaries.

+  Replacement of high electrical energy consuming Machines / Equipments/ luminaries as far as possible.
= Utilisation of chemical baths, Furnaces at its optimum loading capacity.

+  Training of employees who can adopt and implement the Energy Efficient methods.

« Encouraging of projects on non-conventional energy sources.

«  Study of year-wise forecast vs actual consumption,

«  Exploring the feasibility/ opportunity for green energy.

*  More areas to be brought under the umbrella of Energy Management.

3) RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D):

AWEIL, since its inception on 01.10.2021 has identified global technologies in field of Large Caliber Weapons & Small Arms
and is trying to inculcate the same in its production range through R&D efforts. There are R&D centers which are engaged
in development of ftems for Large Caliber, Small Arms & Ammunition Hardware. AWEIL is progressing R&D projects in various
weapon systems having cutting edge technologies in advanced stage. AWEIL has focused on Research & Development (R&D)
of Artillery Guns, Mortars and Small Arms Weapons., AWEIL is committed to increase this expenditure to the tune of 2-5% in
subsequent years in order to develop further products. AWEIL has also involved academia in these efforts and is trying to
have collaboration with prestigious institutes like IT Kanpur, IIT Madras & IITDM Jabalpur,

4) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

AWEIL is constantly striving to increase its exports. Efforts are going on for the export of different types of weapons from
various European and African countries and Middle Eastern and East Region countries. Order Book Position for exports as on
31/0372023 was all time high at INR 34.69 Crore.

. Arty Gun Spares
+  Repair of Arty Guns
«  Kits for Small Arms
= Small Arms weapons
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Appendix -1V

OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS AND REPLIES OF MANAGEMENT THEREON

Observation of Statutory Auditor's

Management Replies

The opening balances of assets and liabilities as on 1st
October 2021 were taken as per the data provided by
PCFA (Principal Controller of Accounts Ordnance
Factories, Kolkata). The units made certain
adjustments for differences based on the data
available with the units. This resulted in net
increase/decrease in Assets and liabilities with
carresponding effect in Other Equity amounting to net
decrease of Rs. B89.54 crores (refer Mote Mo, 38
forming part Financial Statement).

During the year certain adjustments has been made
based on information available that has resulted in
reduction / Increase is assets / liabilities as referred to
in note no. 38 forming part of financial statements
amounting to Rs 42.85 crore. The differences in
respect of Financial Assets & Liabilities and Property
Plant and equipment as referred to in Mote no 38
forming part of financial statements still remains
unadjusted on account of pending reconciliation with
PCFA, the impact of the same (s presently not
gquantifiable in financial statements of current period.

Adjustments of opening balances has been done as per
information found by units of AWEIL during transaction
of financial year of 2022-23, same is in line with
management reply for 2021-22 ,

Efforts will be mode to find out the differences as per
our books and the figures that were appearing in PCFA
records.

The company accounted computers, office equipment
{including air conditioners) and furniture & fixtures
acqguired after 1st October 2021 at cost. However, the
same assets existing as on 30th September 2021 in the
books of PCFA have been accounted at Re 1
instead of at carrying value: This is in violation of Para
7 of Ind AS 101, which requires the said assets to be
accounted for at their carrying value as on 1st Oct
2021.

The non-compliance has resulted in understatement of
property plant and equipment and retained earnings
by the same amount. This also has impact on
subsequent depreciation and on statement of profit
and loss, on those assets over their remaining useful
life. The impact of the above could not be quantified in
absence of related data not being provided by the
management.

The Company has accounted computers, office
equipment {including air conditioners) and furniture &
fixtures existing as on 30th September 2021 in the
books of accounts at Rs. 1. The previous financial
statements prepared by PCFA, the same were
considered as fully depreciated in the year of its
acquisition and were charge to revenue, Hence, the
carrying cost of these assets were Nil as on the date of
transition i.e., 01.10.2021. The Company has elected
to major all its property, plant & equipment, and
intangible assets at carrying value as recognised in the
previous financial statement on the date of transition
to Ind AS and used those carrying value as deemed cost
of property, plant & equipment, and intangible assets,
since there is no change in the functienal currency.

As the record of oll items which were charged to
revenue by the previous owner are nat easily available
the way ft is required for accounting as per Ind As .
Hence management took decision to account for the
same at Rs 1/_ in the [first year of its financial
statements. The same will be disclosed in the
financial statements by way of note. In the opinion of
management, the financial impact of these assets will
is not material.

The company is not having proper system for
recognizing various items of spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment which are
expected to be used during more than one period.
During the year the same has been accounted for by
some units for major components however in absence
of proper policy by head office the application of the
same is not uniform, Hence the accounting of spares,
standby equipment and servicing eguipment 5 in

The Company i5 in the process of identifying major
items of Spare parts, Stand-by Equipment and
Servicing Equipment which are expected to be used
during more than one period which qualify as Property,
Plant and Equipment.
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violation of para & & 8 of Ind AS 16 - "Property plant and
Equipment”.
The impact of the same in financial statements of
current period and on deemed egquity is not
guantifiable

It has been observed that the item of PPE becomes
available for use from the date of commissioning and
the depreciation should be charged from the same
date. However, the company is charging depreciation
from the M-Voucher date and B- voucher date
respectively in case of Plant and Machinery and
Building. This is in violation of Para 55 of Ind AS 16 -
“Property, Plant and Equipment”.

In certain instances, gap were noted between the two
dates due to which the depreciation being charged is
not accurate. Since the practice is prevalent in all the
units the impact of the deficiencies in financial
statements is presently not quantifiable.

In few cases units of AWEIL has recorded date of
capitalization from the date of B voucher /M voucher.
The itern of PPE becomes available for use from the
date of commissioning and the depreciation will be
charged from the same date henceforth.

Valuation of Inventory

a. Fixed Overhead Allocation in valuation of
WIP;

In valuation of inventory, the Fixed Overhead is being
allocated on the basis of actual production instead of
normal capacity as the company does nat have proper
system to identify the normal production capacity of
the plants for production of specific items by the
various factories.

This results in violation of para 13 of Ind AS 2 -
“Inventaries” which requires FOH to be allocated based
on the nomal capacity of the production facilities.

Allocation of Fixed Overheads has been made on the
basis of management estimates by each factory hence
thie compliance with Ind AS could not be verified by us.
The impact of the non-compliance of Ind AS 2 of above
para cannot be guantified by us in absence of the
desired information at this stage.

b. Inter - unit inventory

In respect of inter-unit inventory, elimination of
unrealized profit or loss was not identified and
accounted for at individual inventory at unit level
which has resulted in non-compliance of Ind AS 2
“Inventory”.

The impact of the above in the financial statements of
current period is not quantifiable.

a. For valuation of Inventory, fixed production
overhead is allocated to the cost of conversion an the
basis of actual production. The Company's seven
factories out of eight are running almost at normal
capacity where the actual level of production
approximates normal

capacity and hence actual production has been
considered for fixed overhead allocation. However,
one factory which is being underutilized has allecated
fixed production overhead on the basis of
standard/normal capacity.
Fixed production overheads have been allocated based
on actual contribution to production of inventory on a
rational and consistent basis.

b. In few cases inventories were transferred to
other units at a higher value, however, efforts will be
taken to take care of inter unit transfer so that the
guidelines issued in this regard are properly followed,

The company has communicated with Domestic Trade
Receivables amounting to Rs 648.44 crore, Trade
Payables Rs 29Z.82 crores, Advances received from
customers Rs 1141.05 crores and Advances to suppliers
Rs. 62.43 crores appearing in the books of all the units
through units themselves based on ‘“negative
confirmation request”.

It has been observed that only few parties have
responded to the above confirmation reguests as
approximately 96% of the amount of balance
confirmations reguests have not been responded

The Company has sent request for confirmation of
balances to its vendors and customers on behalf of its
statutory auditors. The majority of vendors and
customers are of the Government entities. The
Company is in the process of reconciling the balances
with these entities. The Company does not expect any
material deviations from the balances of its vendors at
the time of payment and customers at the time of
collection,
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which is deemed as confirmed balances as per the
Negative Confirmation Request.

Howewver, such non confirmation of the above stated
balances may have impact on statement of profit and
Loss of the company if the same is not reconciled with
books of accounts. The impact of non-confirmation of
balance is not quantifiable in financial statements.

The Company has not paid / provided for interest on
overdue amount of MSME Trade Payables as referred to
in Note12 {a) in accordance with the Sec 16 of MSME
Act, 2006, Due to absence of relevant supporting, the
impact of the same in the current period financial
statements cannot be commented upon.

The Company has not provided for interest on the
overdue amount of MSME trade payables. However, the
Company has implemented a process of clearing MSME
dues within the stipulated time as per MSME Act, 2006.

hnndcire

i.{a)

Al The Company is maintaining records showing
particulars, including guantitative details and
situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment except for
office equipment, computer equipment, furniture and
fittings etc. as reported in para "Basis for Qualified
Opinion” and para (d) of "Report on Internal Financial
Controls on Financial Reporting” with respect to non-
accounting of these items at carrying value as on 1st
Oct 2021 and lack of proper controls for identification
of these items.

B. Further, the records maintained are also
deficient to the extent that they are not updated
regularly for changes in location and condition.

The record maintained prior to formation of the
company were not in proper format as required by the
CARD. However the company has taken proper steps to
update the record of fixed assets as required by the
Companies Act and CARO.

1.(b}

During the year under audit the company has not
provided physical verification reports of fixed assets.
During the last year no substantive evidence of
physical verification of Tixed assets verification was
made available to us though management gave
certification for physical wverification hence we
reported the fact in our report in last year. In absence
of availability of physical verification reports during
the year, we can't comment on the policy of company
regarding physical verification of fixed assets at
reasonable interval and existence of any material
discrepancy which remains unadjusted in financial
books.

Company is in the process of carrying out physical
verification of fixed assets.

ii.(a)

As per information given to us, the company has a
policy of conducting physical verification of inventory
on a continuous stock verification basis (on actual
count/ weighment) selecting a few items each day so
that each item is physically verified atr least once
during the year. This verification is conducted by the
central stock verification staff of each factory under
the administrative control of DGOF?s HQ organization,

During the year under audit the company has not
provided the physical verification report of Inventory,
Buring the last year no substantive evidence of
physical verification of inventory was made available
to us though management gave certificate for physical
verification hence we reported the fact inour report in
last year. In absence of availability of physical
verification reports of Inventory during the year, we
can't comment on the policy of the company regarding
physical verification of inventory at periodical interval
and coverage, procedure and its appropriateness.
Hence we can't comment on existence of any material
discrepancy which remains upadjusted in financial
books.

Company is in the process of carrying out physical
verification of inventory
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Absent or inadequate segregation of duties within a
significant account or process - There is no restrictions
on creation of ledgers in tally due to which the person
responsible for accounting is creating multiples
ledgers for one account. There does not exist any
control at the time of recording of transactions in
books of accounts i.e., there is a lack of regular maker
or checker concept. The financial statement closing
process is not properly implemented.

Inadequate design of general and application controls
that prevent the information system from providing
complete and accurate information consistent with
financial reporting objectives and current needs.

The company does not have any established procedure
or guideline for identifying the bills relating to services
availed for whom the provision needs to be created.

Employees who lack the training to fulfil their assigned
functions - The person responsible for accounting
appears to be deficient in knowledge for recording the
complex transactions.

Inadequate design of internal control over a significant
account or process: The company does not have a
praoper system of identifying the items of furniture &
fixtures, office equipment etc meeting the definition
of PPE as per Ind As 16 due to which these items were
expensed off instead of being capitalized in some
units.,

Amaterial weakness? is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal financial control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the
company’s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented.

or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the material
weaknesses described above on the achievement of
the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has
maintained, in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls owver financial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31,
2023, based on "the internal control over financial
reporting criteria existing in the Company and updated
during the pericd of our audit, considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

‘We have considered the material weaknesses
identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied inour
audit of the March 31, 2023 standalone financial
statements of the Company, and these material
weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company

Primary data for preparation of financial statement
are available in PPC system where access , edit of
database is controlled , record of same is maintained
at T division of unit. In Tally right now unit are creating
ledger on functional basis such as new party ledger
etc. Other ledger, grouping, chart of account are

not altered at unit level.

Control will be built in the system so that every entry
made in the tally will be authenticated / verified by
different person before making entry in Tally .
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Form No. MR-3 Appendix -V
SECRETARIAL AUDIT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ADVANCED WEAPONS AND EQUIPMENT INDIA LIMITED
Kanpur

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by ADVANCED WEAPONS AND EQUIPMENT INDIA LIMITED (CIN: U29270UP2021G01150734) (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion therean.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of the secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
fimancial year ended on 31" March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minutes, books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company for
the financial year that ended on 31" March, 2023 according to the provisions of;

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder; (Mot applicable to the
Company during Audit Period);

(ii1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Mot applicable for
Government Company);

(1v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Mot applicable
to the Company during Audit Period);

vl The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {'SEBI
Act’) are not applicable as the company isan unlisted Company.
(i) Other Applicable Laws:

(a) The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 ;

{b) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

() The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;

{d) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

(2) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

(f) Environmental Laws like The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;
(2) Factories Act, 1948;

(h) DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010,
(1) Environmental Laws;

(1) Income Tax Act 1961;

(k) Goods and Service Tax Act, 2016.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
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(1} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(ii) The Listing Agreement/Listing Regulation, (Mot applicable to the Company during Audit Period as the Company is an unlisted
Company);

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

i. This observation were already given in last year report, Immovable Properties of the Company are yet to be
mutated in the name of the Company;

il factories are not complying with the labour laws in due time

ifi. The company has failed to appoint an internal ouditor and thereby violated Section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

iv The company has raised funds by Right [ssue but the amount has been recefved prior to the offer by the board
and thereby failed to comply with section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013;

W, During the Audit Period, the non-functional Directors were tess than 50% of the total Board Strength as
required in clause 3. 1.2 of the DPE Guidelines, 2010;

wi. During the Audit Period the Company does not have Independent Directors as required in clause 3.1.4 of the
DPE Guidelines, 2010;

wii. The Company has not constituted audit Cormmittee and Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee as required

inclause 4 & 5 of the DPE Guidelines, 2010;

Provided however that, as per the Office Memorandum having No. 8 (25)/2022-D (Coord /DDP), Government of India, Ministry of
Defence, Department of Defence Preduction, D (Coord/DDP) dated 22.08.2023 DPE waived off the Cerporate Governance
parameters.

For the compliances of Labour Laws & other General Laws, my examination and reporting is based on the decuments, records
and files as produced and shown to me and the information and explanations as provided to me, by the officers and management
of the Company and to the best of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the different enactments upon the
Company, in my opinion there are adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable General laws and Labour Laws.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted except for the appointment of Women Director and
Independent Directors as stated above. The changes tn the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
pertod under review are carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adeguate notice is given to all directors to convene the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance and a system exists for seekineg and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions were passed with unanimous majority and recorded as part of the minutes.
I further report that

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to
menitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines to the extent applicable.

For ANKIT MISRA & Co
Date: 31.10.2023
Flace: Kanpur
Sd/-
ANKIT MISRA
Proprietor
CP Mo. 23471
Company Secretaries
Unique Code Number 52020UP749500
Peer Review Certificate Number 4232/2023
UDIM: AD30650E001551367
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Appendix -VI

OBSERVATIONS OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND REPLIES OF MANAGEMENT THEREON

51, No.

Observation of Secretarial Auditor

Management Replies

1.

This observation was already given in last year report;
Immovable Properties of the Company are yet to be
mutated in the name of the Company:

Action for the transfer of land from OFE to AWEIL has
been completed in all units. However, the requirement
for mutation is being taken up.

2.

Factories are not complying with the labour laws in due
time

Instruction has been issued to concerned factories to
comply with the provisions of applicable labour laws,

The company has failed to appoint an internal auditor
and thereby violated Section 138 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

Process and efforts were made to appoint an Internal
Auditor but could not be materialised,

However, the appointment of an Internal Auditor is
under process.

The company has raised funds by Right Issue but the
amount has been received prior to the offer by the
Board and thereby falled to comply with section 62 of
the Companies Act, 2013;

Funds are transferred by the Government of India to
meet Capital Expenditure requirement without prior
fntimation and as per instruction, Company has to
{ssue the equity shares against fund received.

During the Audit Period, the nan-functional Directors
were |less than 50% of the total Board Strength as
required in clause 3.1.2 of the DPE Guidelines, 2010;

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, the
power to appoint Directors vests with the President of
India. The Management has requested with Ministry of
Defence for the appointment of MNon-Functional
Directors in the Board of the Company, which is under
consideration.

During the Audit Period the Company does not have
Independent Directors as reguired in clause 3.1.4 of
the DPE Guidelines, 2010;

As per the Articles of Association of the Company, the
power to appoint Directors vests with the President of
India. The Management has requested with Ministry of
Defence for the appointment of Mon-Functional
Directors in the Board of the Company, which is under
consideration.

7.

The Company has not constituted an audit Committee
and Momination & Remuneration Committee as
required in clause 4 & 5 of the DPE Guidelines, 2010;

The Audit Committee and Homination & Remuneration
Committee could not be constituted during the
financial year 2022-23, due to lack of Mon-Official
(independent) Directors in the Board. However, the
Management has requested with the Ministry of
Defence for the appointment of MNon-Official
(Independent) Directors in the Board of the Company,
which is under consideration.
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OFFICE OF THE
DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT

ORDNANCE FACTORIES
ROLHATA

Ta,

The Chairman & Managing Director.

M/s, Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
Ordnance Factory, GT Road

Kanpur-208022

Sub: Comment under Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts
of M/s. Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited, Kanpur for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

Sir,

| am to forward herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act 2013 on the Standalone & the Consolidated Financial
Statements of M/s. Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited. Kanpur for the year ended 31
March 2023,

Receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Enel: As stated,

Yours faithfully,
~Eal|—
!‘Iﬂm\‘mu
(Sarat Chaturvedi)

Director General of Audit
{Ordnance Factories)

KOLKATA

‘e A el wElE gt W e (7 s, ¢Ht 9E), FITE - woo ooy
AYUDH BHAWAN' 10/A, SHAHEED KHUDIRAM BOSE ROAD (EAST WING, 8TH FLOOR) KOLKATA - 700 001
PHONE : 2248-2857,2243-6341 » FAX : 2248-3201
E-Mail 1 pdaofi@cag.govin
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADVANCE WEAPONS AND
EQUIPMENT INDIA LIMITED, KANPUR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2023.

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements of Advance Weapons and
Equipment India Limited, Kanpur for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework preseribed under the Companies Act. 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (7) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on these Financial Statements under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143
(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by him vide his Audit Report dated 25

August 2023,

L. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the Financial Statements of Advance Weapons and Equipment India
Limited, Kanpur for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without aceess to the working papers
of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and

company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant
matters under section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come 1o my attention and which in
my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the Financial Statements and

the related Audit Report.

Comment of Financial Position

Balance Sheet

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 05): Rs. 1887.84 Crore
Freehold Land : Rs. 32.04 crore

Above does not include an amount of Rs.12159.79 crore being the difference of
market value of Land (Rs. 12191.83 crore) as per Registered Valuer’s report and the value of
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Land Booked (Rs. 32.04 crore) by the Company. Non-considering the market value of Land
has resulted in understatement of Assets and Other Equity by Rs. 12159.79 crore.

Further, the factory wise reconciliation of transferred Land and actual taken over Land
has not been disclosed in the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2023,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Dr—g}{;; -
15} 1o} 02
(Sarat Chaturvedi)
Director General of Audit
{Ordnance Factories)
KOLKATA
Place: lolkats
Date: yaihacholee 260>
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6Mb) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADVANCE WEAPONS AND
EQUIPMENT INDIA LIMITED, KANPUR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2023.

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Advance Weapons and
Equipment India Limited, Kanpur for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (7) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on these Financial Statements under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143
(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by him vide his Audit Report dated 25
August 2023,

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of Advance Weapons and
Equipment India Limited, Kanpur for the year ended 31 March 2023 under section 143(6)(a)
read with section 129(4) of the Act. We conducted the supplementary audit of the Financial
Statements of Advance Weapons and Equipment India Limited, Kanpur, but did not conduct
the supplementary audit of the Financial Statements of one Joint Venture viz., Indo Russian
Rifles Private Limited of Advance Weapons & Equipment India Limited. Kanpur for the year
ended 31 March 2023, Further, section 139(5) and 143(6) (a) of the Act are not applicable to
the joint venture company being private entity. for appointment of their Statutory Auditor and
far conduct of supplementary audit. Accordingly. Comptroller and Auditor General of India
has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor conducted the supplementary audit of the
company. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without aceess to the
working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditor and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting

records.

Based on my supplementary aodit, | would like to highlight the following significant
matters under section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in
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my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the Financial Statements and
the rclated Audit Report.

Comment of Financial Position

Balance Sheet

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 05): Rs. 1887.84 Crore
Freehold Land : Rs. 32.04 crore

Above does not include an amount of Rs.12159.79 crore being the difference of
market value of Land (Rs. 12191.83 crore) as per Registered Valuer's repost and the value of

Land Booked (Rs, 32.04 ¢rore) by the Company. Non-considering the market value of Land
has resulted in understatement of Assets and Other Equity by Rs. 12159.79 crore.

Further, the factory wise reconciliation of transferred land and actual taken over land has
not been disclosed in the Financial Statements of the Company lor the vear ended 31 March
2023,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

T’aq‘c -
16 jw}roay
(Sarat Chaturvedi)
Director General of Audit
(Ordnance Factories)

KOLKATA
Place: Kofkala

Date: |3t ocfobes, 0023
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Appendix -Vl

MAMAGEMENT RESPONSE TO THE COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GEMERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON STANDALOME FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADVANCE WEAPONS AND EQUIPMENT
INDIALIMITED, KANPUR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023,

Audit Comment of Financial Position

Comments Balance Sheet

Mon-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Mote 05): Rs. 1887 .84 Crore
Freehold Land: Rs. 32.04 crare

Above does not include an amount of Rs.12159.79 crore being the difference of market value of Land
iRs. 12191.83 crore) as per the Registered Value's report and the value of Land Booked (Rs. 32.04
crare) by the Company. Non-considering the market value of Land has resulted in an understatement
of Assets and Other Equity by Rs, 12159.79 crore.

Further, the factory-wise reconciliation of transferred Land and actual taken over Land has not been
disclosed in the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Management Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to measure an item of property, plant, and
response to equipment at the transition to Ind AS at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that
comments date. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38.

of CAG Hewever, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant, and equipment & intangible

assets at carrying value as recognized in the previous financial statement on the date of transition to
Ind AS and used those carrying value as deemed cost of Property, plant, and equipment & Intangible
assets since there is no change in the functional currency.

It is worth noting that fair value of land as per valuation report could be considered only if the
Company has accounted its property, plant and equipment at fair value. But the Company has
availed exemption and hence accounted Land at the previous carrying value which is in compliance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

We would also like to mention that the Company has disclosed adequate details of Land in Note 5 to
the Financial Statement.

Moreover, Statutory Auditor has also endorsed Management response to comments of CAG.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO THE COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GEMERAL OF INDIA UMDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPAMIES ACT, 2013 ON CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADVANCE WEAPONS AND
EQUIPMENT INDIALIMITED, KANPUR FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023.

Audit Comment of Financial Position
Comments Balance Sheet
MWon-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment (Mote 05): Rs. 1887.84 Crore

Freehold Land: Rs. 32.04 crore

Above does not include an amount of Rs, 1215%.7% crore being the difference of market value of Land
(Rs. 12191.83 crore) as per Registered Value's report and the value of Land Booked (Rs. 32.04 crore)
by the Company. Non-considering the market value of Land has resulted in understatement of Assets
and Other Equity by Rs. 12159.79 crore.

Further, the factory wise reconciliation of transferred Land and actual taken over Land has not been
disclosed in the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023,
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Management Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to measure an item of property, plant, and
response to equipment at the transition to Ind AS at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that
comments date. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38,

of CAG

However, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant, and equipment & intangible
assets at carrying value as recognized in the previous financial statement on the date of transition to
Ind AS and used those carrying value as deemed cost of Property, plant, and equipment & Intangible
assets since there is no change in the functional currency.

It is worth noting that fair value of land as per valuation report could be considered only if the
Company has accounted its property, plant and equipment at fair value. But the Company has
availed exemption and hence accounted Land at the previous carrying value which is in compliance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

We would also like to mention that the Company has disclosed adequate details of Land in Note 5 to
the Financial Statement.

Moreover, Statutory Auditor has also endorsed Management response to comments of CAG
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Appendix -1X

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNAMCE

According to guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs 2010 issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Govt. of India
('DPE Guidelines'), vide DPE's OM No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14 May 2010 to as applicable concerning Corporate Governance.

Your Company has always shown commitment towards its Code of Corporate Governance. Corporate Governance is the creation
and enhancement of long-term sustainable value for our stakeholders, comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors,
and society at large, through ethically driven business practices. Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong
foundation on which successful commercial enterprises are built to last. Strong leadership and effective corporate governance
practices have been the Company's governance philosophy. Our corporate structure, business and disclosure practices have
been aligned to our Corporate Governance Philosophy.

The management of the company is entrusted in the hands of the key management personnel of the company and is headed by
the Chairman and Managing Director, who functions under the supervision and control of the Board. The Board reviews and
approves strategy and oversees the actions and results of management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is 100% Government owned Company under the administrative control of the Department of Defence Production,
Ministry of Defence. The composition of the Board of the Company is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) and DPE Guidelines. Being a Government Company and as per the Articles of Association of the Company, the power to
appoint a Board of Directors vests with the President of India.

The Board of Directors of the company as on 31" March 2023 consisted of the Chairman and Managing Director (CMD), three
functional directors, and one Government Mominee Director,

The Directors as of 31" March 2023 were as under:

Shri Rajesh Choudhary - Chairman & Managing Director
Shri Akhilesh Kumar Maurya . Director (Operations)

Shri Biswajit Pradhan - Director (HR)

Shri Sushil Sinha - Director (Finance)

& Chief Financial Officer
PART-TIME OFFICIAL (GOVERNMENT ) DIRECTOR:
Shri Jayant Kumar, Joint Secretary (AS), Ministry of Defence.

CHANGES IN FUNCTIONAL DIRECTORS DURIMG THE YEAR
« Smt. Anupma Tripathi, Director (HR) ceased the office due to superannuation w.e.f. 31.01.2023 Shri Biswajit Pradhan
was appointed in place of her.
+« 5Shri Ravin Kulshrestha, Director (Finance and CFO) ceased the office due to superannuation w.e.f. 28.02.2023, Shri
Sushil Sinha was appointed in place of him,

= Shri Chandraker Bharti, 145 Joint Secretary (Defence Production), Ministry of Defence ceased the office pursuant to
Office Memorandum No. 8{32)/2019-0{Coord/DDP) dated September 14, 2022, received from the Department of
Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Government of India w.e.f. 14.09.2022.

= Shri Surendra Prasad Yadav, Joint Secretary (L%) was appointed as Government Nominee Director w.e.f. September 14,
2022 pursuant to Office Memorandum Mo, 8(32)/2019-D{Coord/DDP) dated September 14, 2022 received from the
Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Government of India later on he ceased office w.e.f
27.02.2023.

= Shri Jayant Kumar, Joint Secretary (AS) was appointed in place of Shri Surendra Prasad Yadav ceased the office the
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office pursuant to Office Memaorandum Mo, B(32)/2019-D{Coord/DDP) dared January 06, 2023 received from the
Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence, Government of India w.e.f. 27.02.2023,

As per DPE Guidelines, the number of Functional Directors (including CMD/MD) should not exceed 50% of the actual strength of
the Board, and there should be 02 Part-Time Mon-Official (Independent) Directors should be in the Board. The Board pursuing
with its administrative Ministry (MoD) for the appointment of a Non-Official (Independent Director), which is under
consideration.

DIRECTOR SHAREHOLDING
Mo Director of the Company is holding any shares of the Company ason 31" March, 2023.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETING

The Board of Directors meets at regular intervals to review of performance of the Company and to transact other business. The
time gap between the two Board meetings was within the time prescribed under the CompaniesAct, 2013 and DPE Guidelines.
During the perfod 1" April 2022 to 31" March 2023, the Board of Directors met on Nine {9) occasions, which were held on
04.05.2022, 13.06.2022, 26.09.2022, 15.11.2022, 28.12.2022, 17.02.2023, 27.02.2023, 16.03.2023 and 27.03.2023. Details of
attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings during 2022-23 are given below:

CHFEELATS ili;;l';ﬁ_ t;fuli Df;gggm;gf No. of Board Meetings Attended
Shri Rajesh Choudhary 9 9
Shri Chandraker Bharti i 2
Shri Surendra Prasad Yaday 4 1
Shri Jayant Kumar 3 3
Shriskhilesh Kumar Maurya 9 k]
Smt. Anupma Tripathi 5 5
Shiri Ravin Kulshrestha 7 7
Shri Biswajit Pradhan 4 3
Shri Sushil Sinha 2 2

SUB-COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mo sub-committees could be constituted during the financial year 2022-23, due tolack of Non-Official (Independent) Directors in
the Board. However, the Management has requested with Ministry of Defence for the appointment of Non-Official (Independent)
Directorsin the Board of the Company, which is under consideration.

COMMITTEE OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY (CSR COMMITTEE)

The provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014
relating constitution of the CS5R Committee was not applicable, however duties of the C5R committee were discharged by the
Board.

GEMERAL MEETINGS
Three meetings of members were held, one Annual General Meeting on 21.02.2023 and two Extra-Ordinary General Mesting on
02.06.2022 and 21.03.2023 held during the Financial Year 2022-23.

NE OM OF DIRE
AWEIL 15 one of the seven Defence Public Sector Undertakings formed by converting the erstwhile Ordnance Factory Board (OFB).
Directors are on deemed deputation and shall continue to be subject to all the extant rules, regulations and orders as apply to
the Central Government employvees including those related to their pay scales. The company does not pay any commission to its
Directors.
Fart-time officlal (Government ) Directors are not paid sitting fees or any other remuneration.
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CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
The Board of Directors is in the process of adopting a policy on ‘Code of Business Conduct and Ethics' as per DPE Guidelines as on

31" March, 2023.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Board of Directors is in the process of adopting a policy on 'Whistle Blower Policy’ as per DPE Guidelines as on 31" March,

2023.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs (Central Public Sector Enterprises) issued by DPE (May 2010) have

recommended that the CPSUs should ensure that risk management is undertaken as a part of normal business practice and not as
aseparate task at set times. The Company is in the process of formulating the Risk Management Policy.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shares of the Company are fully owned by the President of India, through the Joint Secretary (LS), Ministry of Defence

(Department of Defence Production), Government of India.

DISCLOSURE

There were no penalties/ strictures were imposed on the company by a Statutory Authority on any matter related to any
guidelines issued by any Government during the period.

The company has not entered into any transactions with any Directors that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
company at large. The members of the Board, apart from receiving Directors’ remuneration, do not have any material or
pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company which in the judgment of the Board may affect the independence of
judgment of the directors.

MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT
As provided under the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs 2010 issued by the Government, it is hereby declared that

all Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Directors and
Senior Management Personnel of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited for the year ended 31" March 2023,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date: 01.11.2023 Rajesh Choudhary
Place: Kanpur Chairman & Managing Director
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members,

ADVAMNCED WEAPONS AND EQUIPMENT INDIA LIMITED
Ordnance Factory Kanpur Kalpi Road Kanpur

UP 208009 IN

Sir(s),

| have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by ADVANCED WEAPONS AND EQUIPMENT INDIA
LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2023, as stipulated in the guidelines on corporate governance for Central Pubic Sector
Enterprises (CPSEs), 2010 issued by the Department of Public Enterprises {DPE).

The Compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited
to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanation given to me and representations given by
management, | certify that the Company has complied with aforesaid guidelines on corporate governance, subject to the
following ohservations:

1-  During the Audit Period, the non-functional Directors were less than 50% of the total Board Strength as required in
clause 3.1.2 of the DPE Guidelines, 2010;

2-  During the Audit Period the Company does not have Independent Directors as required in clause 3.1.4 of the DPE
Guidelines, 2010;

3- The Company has not constituted oudit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee as required in clause
4 & 3 af the DFE Guidelines, 2010;

Provided however that, as per the Office Memorandum having Mo. 8{25)/2022-D (Coord/DDP), Government of India, Ministry of
Defence, Department of Defence Production, dated 22,08, 2023 DPE waived off the Corporate Governance parameters.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ANKIT MISRA & Co
Date: 31.10.2023
Place: Kanpur
Sd/-
ANKIT MISRA
Proprietor
CP Mo. 23471
Company Secretaries
Unique Code Number 52020UP749900
Peer Review Certificate Number 4232/2023
UDIN: AD30650E001552995
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

ND ND DEVELOP

Your Company is a defence public sector undertaking wholly-owned Government of India (Gol) company operating under the
administrative control of the Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Production, Government of India. Your Company is
India's only defence Company which produces small, medium and large caliber guns for the Armed Forces, Central Armed Para-
Military forces, State Police Forces, exports and also the civilian market for Non-prohibited Bore weapons.,

The outlook of the business seems to be encouraging. We have a diversified range of businesses which comprises Small, Medium
and Larde Calibre Weapons, Mortar Equipment and Ammunition Hardware including Shells, Fuzes, primers and stabilizer
assembly. We believe that we are well placed to leverage on the growth opportunities in the global & domestic defence
ecosystem.

ORGANIZATION

The company has five major business verticals viz., manufacturing of Small, Medium and Large Calibre Weapons, Mortar
Equipment and Ammunition Hardware including Shell, Fuzes, primers and stabilizer assembly. AWEIL is a market leader in the
weapon manufacturing ecosystem in India. Your company makes concerted efforts to maintain growth by securing orders from
their major customer, the Indian Armed forces apart from exploring possibilities of export orders. Your company has played a
wital role in fulfilling the aspirations of the Indian armed forces as major contributor to the Indian defence system. A modern
infrastructure, highly skilled workforce, a group of dedicated engineers has collectively transformed the factories into a center
of excellence.

PRODUCTION AND NON PRODUCTION UNITS

The Company has 8 manufacturing units; Rifle Factory Ishapore, Small Arms Factory, Kanpur, Gun & Shell Factory, Cossipore,
Ordnance Factory Tiruchirappalli, Ordnance Factory, Kanpur, Field Gun Factory, Kanpur, Gun Carriage Factory, Jabalpur,
Ordnance Factory Project Korwa and one non-manufacturing units Ordnance Factories Institute of Learning, Ishapore,

SWOT ANALYSIS
STRENGTHS

AWEIL is a market leader in the weapen manufacturing ecosystem in India with the expertise and capabilities to fulfil the
reguirements of the Armed Forces, Central Armed Para-Military forces, State Police Forces, exports and also the civilian market
for Non-prohibited Bore weapons. AWEIL has tremendous business potential in respect of new products which include small
arms, medium calibre guns, large calibre guns & ammunition hardware. Your Company has a rich legacy of manufacturing them
since its inception.

Your Company is the only public sector defence manufacturing company, that manufactures all segment of weapons like Small,
Medium and Large Calibre Weapons. Large scale modernization has been carried out at OFC & FGK and as a result, AWEIL is today
the largest producer of large-calibre weapons in the world with capacity of 400 barrels per annum. AWEIL has been a major
contributor for Large Calibre inventory for the Indian Army.

AWEIL has core competencies in Small, Medium and Large Calibre Weapons, Mortar Equipment and Ammunition Hardware
including Shell, Fuzes, primers and stabilizer assembly. The Company has good infrastructure and other facilities combined with
our vast expertise are capable of serving the requirements of the Ministry of Defence.

Your Company has an experienced senior management team in the industry and a large pool of experienced engineers and
draftsmen. Enhanced maturity in design and equipment availability at the time of commencement of production giving an
impetus to the pace of manufacturing process.

WEAKNESSES

The manufacturing processes for our products are highly complex, require technically advanced and highly state of art

equipment and hazardous materials and involve risks, including breakdown, failure or substandard performance of equipment,
improper installation cor operation of equipment, environmental and industrial hazards which could result in damages and

litigation.
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Furthermore, AWEIL is a new DP5Us the following challenges/problems may be faced after the Corporatization of erstwhile
Ordnance Factories:

(1) Transition from Government setup to Commercial Entity Skewed Workload - Factories engaged in the manufacture of
High Explosives, and Small Arms Ammunition are sub-optimally loaded.
(2} Gap between the available and required Skill set.

(3) To make the operations profitable.

(4) Limited/restricted vendor base.

(2) Timely receipt of Import / product support items.

(&) To emerge as the manufacturer of indigenously designed products/systems from being presently TOT based
Manufacturer.

{7} High Cost of Production due to sub-optimal workload.

OPPORTUNITIES

India being one of the major markets and a potent destination, many elements of the supply chains are expected to be relocated
to India. Also, current geopolitical events have highlighted the importance of self-reliance, especially in strategic sectors like
Defence. Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited (AWEIL), is a fully owned Govt. of India Enterprise, carved out of
erstwhile OF8 on 01.10.2021. The conversion to DPSU has given us more autonomy and powers which led us to focus on improving
our functioning and enabling, it to cope with greater competition, the fast pace of technological advancement and making our
factories as vehicles of self-reliance in defence preparedness of the Nation,

50, with greater autonomy and operational freedom, AWEIL is fully committed for the timely delivery of products. AWEIL is a
market leader in the weapon manufacturing ecosystem in India with the expertise and capabilities to fulfill the requirements of
Armed Forces, Central Armed Para-Military Forces, State Police Forces, exports and also the civilian market for Non-Prohibited
Bore weapons. AWEIL is also aggressively pursuing export opportunities through regular interaction with defence attaches at
various Indian embassies and exploring the opportunity of entering into Mol with private defence industries. AWEIL understands
the advantages of continuous modernization & up-gradation of its facilities to have state -of -a art set-up for promoting exports
and for being able to offer the best in class products/systems to the Defence Services.

Your Company can facilitate self-reliance in defence production under the 'Make In India initiative promulgated by the Gol, for
some of the critical equipment in close liaison with OEMs, and can emerge as the manufacturer of indigenously designed
products/systems from being a presently TOT based Manufacturer.

THREATS

With the entry of private players in defence manufacturing, there is stiff competition from various private sector companies in
the international markets based on their stronger market positions, competitive labour cost, government support and flexible
production capacities, these companies may compete vigorously on price, however we believe that customers consider, among
ather things, the technical capabilities, quality, delivering and efficiency of weapons constructed by us,

BUSIMESS RISKS AND CONCERMS

There needs to be a reasonably firm allocation of financial resources for the first five years and an indicative allocation for the
subsequent period. Defence Forces are not having a firmed-up long-term plan. AWEIL, being a Weapons Manufacturer, suffers
from the absence of long-term projection of demand from the Army, Nawvy, Air Force, and MHA. The issues from the factories
producing medium calibre weapons have been inconsistent as a whole, primarily due to a lack of orders from the Army, which is
offset through securing orders from the MHA. The absence of long-term orders from the Army & MHA is a major constraint for
perspective planning of the concerned factories.

The INSAS Rifle was the major contributor in Small Arms segment. Army has not placed any indent in respect of INSAS Rifles since
2010 and load in respect of LMG, $mm Pistol has also been dwindling. At the same time, MHA orders are also tapering down. The
orders from MHA & Civil Trade are the main contributors of the workload for Small Calibre. But their requirement is fluctuating to
a large extent. Conseguently, it is difficult to plan for the future efficiently. Long-term projection of requirement is required,
both from the Services & MHA.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a robust internal financial control system. The Company is also in the process of appointing an internal auditor
wha will monitor compliance of the Company's procedures and policies with well-defined annual audit program and significant
audit observations which will be presented before the Board of Directors.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in this management discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of the company
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describing the company's objectives, expectations or predictions may be forward-looking within the meaning of applicable laws
and regulations. Forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The company
cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised.

The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise forward-looking statements based on any
subseguent developments, information or events. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement.
Important factors that could influence the company's operations include government’s strategy, changes in government
regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and such other factors globally.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdf-
Date: 01.11.2023 Rajesh Choudhary
Place: Kanpur Chairman & Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the period then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Para of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
J1st, 2023 and profit, changes in equity and other comprehensive income and its cash flows for the period ended on that date,

Basis for Qualified Opinion:
Attention is drawn to following paras:

1- The opening balances of assets and liabilities as on 1st October 2021 were taken as per the data provided by
PCFA (Principal Controller of Accounts Ordnance Factories, Kolkata). The units made certain adjustments
for differences based on the data available with the units. This resulted in net increase /decrease in Assets and
liabilities with corresponding effect in Other Equity amounting to net decrease of Rs. 889.54 crores (refer
Wote No. 38 forming part Financial Statement).

During the yvear certain adjustments has been made based on information available that has resulted in
reduction / Increase is assets / liabilities as referred to in note no. 38 forming part of financial statements
amounting to Rs 42,85 crore. The differences in respect of Financial Assets & Liabilities and Property Plant and
equipment as referred to in Note no 38 forming part of financial statements still remains unadjusted on
account of pending reconciliation with PCFA, the impact of the same is presently not quantifiable in financial
statements of current period,

2- The company accounted computers, office equipment (including air conditioners) and furniture & fixtures
acquired after 1st October 2021 at cost. However, the same assets existing as on 30th September 2021 in the
books of PCFA have been accounted at Re 1 instead of at carrying value. This is in vielation of Para 7 of
Ind AS 101, which requires the said assets to be accounted for at their carrying value as on 1st Oct 2021.

The non-compliance has resulted in understatement of property plant and eqguipment and retained earnings
by the same amount. This also has impact on subseguent depreciation and on statement of profit and loss, on
those assets over their remaining useful life. The impact of the above could not be quantified in absence of
related data not being provided by the management.

3- The company is not having proper system for recognizing various items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and
servicing equipment which are expected to be used during more than one period. During the year the same has
been accounted for by some units for major components however in absence of proper policy by head office
the application of the same is not unifarm, Hence the accounting of spares, standby equipment and servicing
equipment is in violation of para é & 8 of Ind AS 16 - "Property plant and Equipment”.

The impact of the same in financial statements of current period and on deemed equity is not quantifiable.

4- It has been observed that the item of PPE becomes available for use from the date of commissioning and the
depreciation should be charged from the same date. However, the company is charging depreciation from the
M-Voucher date and B-voucher date respectively in case of Plant and Machinery and Building. This is in
violation of Para 55 of Ind AS 16 - "Property, Plant and Equipment”.

In certain instances, gap were noted between the two dates due to which the depreciation being charged is
not accurate. Since the practice is prevalent in all the units the impact of the deficiencies in financial
statements is presently not quantifiable.,

5- Valuation of Inventory
a. Fixed Overhead Allocation in valuation of WIP:
In valuation of inventory, the Fixed Overhead is being allocated on the basis of actual production instead of
normal capacity as the compamny does not have proper system to identify the nermal production capacity of
the plants for production of specific items by the various factories.
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This results in violation of para 13 of Ind AS 2-"Inventories” which requires FOH to be allocated based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities.

Allocation of Fixed Overheads has been made on the basis of management estimates by each factory hence
the compliance with Ind AS could not be verified by us. The impact of the non-compliance of Ind AS 2 of above
para cannot be guantified by us in absence of the desired information at this stage.

b. Inter - unit inventory
In respect of inter-unit inventory, elimination of unrealized profit or loss was not identified and accounted for
at individual inventory at unit level which has resulted in non-compliance of Ind AS 2 "Inventory”.

The impact of the above in the financial statements of current period is not quantifiable.

&= Confirmation of Balances:
The company has communicated with Domestic Trade Receivables amounting to Rs 648.44 crore, Trade
Payables Rs 292.82 crores, Advances received from customers Rs 1141.05 crores and Advances to suppliers Rs.
62.43 crores appearing in the books of all the units through units themselves based on “negative confirmation
request”.

It has been observed that only few parties have responded to the above confirmation reguests as
approximately 96% of the amount of balance confirmations requests have not been responded which is
deemed as confirmed balances as per the Negative Confirmation Request.

However, such non confirmation of the above stated balances may have impact on statement of profitand Loss
of the company if the same is not reconciled with books of accounts. The impact of non-confirmation of
balance is not guantifiable in financial statements.

7- The Company has not paid / provided for interest on overdue amount of MSME Trade Payables as referred toin
Mote1 (a) in accordance with the Sec 16 of MSME Act, 2006. Due to absence of relevant supparting, the impact
of the same in the current period financial statements cannot be commented upon,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl?s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our gualified ocpinion,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that givea true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has norealistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reperting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
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. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a
basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such cantrals.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future-events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear onour independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infermation included in the Director’s report (but does not include the standalene financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon) (hereinafter referred to as "Other reports”). The other reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's repaort,

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

When we read the 'Other reports’, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions, if required. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Comparies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central Government
af India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A"
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

i We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, in the "Annexure "B", on the directions and sub-directions issued by the Comptrollerand Auditaor
General of India.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repart that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears

from our examination of those books except for the matters reported in para "Basis for Qualified Opinion”,
“Report on Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order™)" and “Report on Internal Financial Controls
on Financial Reporting”.

ic) We are sole auditors of the company and no separate financial statements were prepared by the company in
respect of the units except trial balance as per management decision. As we are sole auditors reporting under
this para is not applicable for the company.
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(d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income) and the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

(&) In our opinion, except for Ind AS 16 as referred to in para "3" and “4", Ind AS 101 as referred to in para"2" and
Ind AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories” as referred to in para "5" of Basis for Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid
standalone Ind As financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.

f) We have not come across any observation on the financial transactions or the matters which have any adverse
impact on the functioning of the company.

g) Being a Government Company pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act, are
not applicable to the company.

(h) We have not come across any gualification, reservation or adverse remark relating to maintenance of
accounts and other matters connected therewith except for the matters specified in our report on Internal
Financial Controls on Financial Reporting.

(1) With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure C" to this report.

(i} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on 31st March, 2023 on its financial
position inits standalone financial statements- Refer Mote 25 to the financial statements;

it. As per the information and explanation given to us by the management and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

if. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred; to the Investor Education and
Pratection Fund by the Company.

i, a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other personis) or entity{ies}, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall:

. whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”), or

. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall,

" wheather, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”), or

. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

ic) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause {a} and (b) contain any material misstatement.
V. The company has not declared any dividend during the year. Hence, this para is not applicable.
vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recarding audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to th
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,
k) The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with S5chedule V to the Act,

For5.K. Kapoor & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRM: D00745C

{CAV.B. Singh)

Partner

M. Mo, 073124

UDIN: 23073124BGYRAJTERS

Place:; Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred toin “paragraph 17 under "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members
of the company on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023,

a,

{a) The Company is maintaining records showing particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of
Property, Plant and Equipment except for office equipment, computer equipment, furniture and fittings etc.
as reported in para "Basis for Qualified Opinion” and para (d) of "Report on Internal Financial Controls
on Financial Reporting” with respect to non-accounting of these items at carrying value as on 1st Oct 2021 and
lack of proper controls for identification of these items.
Further, the records maintained are also deficient to the extent that they are not updated regularly for
changes in location and condition.

(b) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) During the year under audit the company has not provided physical verification reports of fixed assets. During
the last year no substantive evidence of physical verification of fixed assets verification was made available to
us theugh management gave certification for physical verification hence we reported the fact in our repert in
last year. In absence of availability of physical verification reports during the year, we can't comment on the
policy of company regarding physical verification of fixed assets at reasonable interval and existence of any
material discrepancy which remains unadjusted in financial books.

{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Mote 5 on Property, plant and
equipment to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, are not held in the name of the Company.

The detail of the same isas under:
Description | Gross Held in Whether Period | Reason for not being
of carrying name of promoter, | held held in npame of
property Value director or company*
their
relative or
employee
Free hold | 32.04 crores | Ordnance Promotor 18 Under process.
Land Factory maonths
{ Measuring Board With reference to the
5352.91 (“OFB") Notification no - “cc-pL-
Acres ) under E-iipz0zi-230101"  dated
Department 1" Oct 2021, all the
of Defence immovable properties
Production, of OFB have been
Ministry of transferred to newly
Defence formed DPsUs
consisting of AWEIL as
one of the P5L.
Lease Hold [Rs 300 Ordnance Promotor 18 months =

Land ( Factory

measuring Board

48.21 acres) (“OFB™)

Under
Department
of Defence
Production,
Ministry of
Defence
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(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) ar intangible
assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3{i){d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(e} Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company
has appropriately disclosed the details in its standalone financial statements does not arise.

a. As per information given to us, the company has a policy of conducting physical verification of inventory oh a
continuous stock verification basis {on actual count/ weighment) selecting a few items each day so that each
item is physically verified at least once during the year. This verification is conducted by the central stock
verification staff of each factory under the administrative control of DGOF?s HQ organization.

During the year under audit the company has not provided the physical verification report of Inventory. During
the last year no substantive evidence of physical erification of inventory was made available to us though
management gave certificate for physical verification hence we reported the fact in our report in last
year. In absence of availability of physical verification reports of Inventory during the year, we can't comment
on the palicy of the company regarding physical verification of inventory at periodical interval and coverage,
procedure and its appropriateness. Hence we can't comment on existence of any material discrepancy which
remains unadjusted in financial books.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the company, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from any banks or financial
institutions on the basisof security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)b) is not
applicable to the company.

iiii. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year hence the provisions of clauses (1ii) (a) to (iii) { f } are not applicable

v, According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the company has not given any loans, investments, guarantees, and security, to the director or any other
party. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) is not applicable to the company.

¥ The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be depasits within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

wi. As per the Information and explanation given to us, the Company is required to maintain cost records as specified under
Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. As per the information and explanations given to us the company is
maintaining proper records as per section 148(1) of the Act.

wii,

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
apinion, The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of provident fund,
employees? state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax and labour welfare fund, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities except TDS under section 194 (H) which is not being deducted and deposited as per the provisions of Income
Tax Act. Complete details of the same is not presently quantifiable,

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no
statutory dues which are pending on account of dispute. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{vii} (b} is not applicable
to the company.

wiil. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no
transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books af account.

a, According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings form any lender during the year, Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix) (a) is not applicable to the company.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, no term
loan has been taken by the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) (c) is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, no funds
on short term basis have been raised by the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{ix) (d) is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given Lo us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the
company has not taken any funds from any entity or persen on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) (e) is not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) (f) is not applicable to the company.

Mo moneys have been raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt in;trurnentsi
during the year by the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x)(a) of the arder is not applicable to
the company.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(%)(b) of the order is not applicable to the company.

Based upan the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the managerment, we report that no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xi)(a) of the order are not applicable to the company.

Based upen the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we repart that no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (xi)(b) of the order are not applicable to the company,

As per the information and explanation given to us by the company, there does not exist any whistle blower
mechanism, hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 15 not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause
3{xi1) of the Order is nat applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties are
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

The company does not have internal audit system. Hence clause { b ) of this para can not be commented

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, clause 3{xvi)(a)of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required Lo be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable.
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d: According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does not
have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

=vii. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, company has not incurred cash
losses during the period under audit.

=viii,  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order js not
applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
infarmation accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
supported by Govt. of India and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumption, we are of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company 15 capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.

KX, The company has incurred C5R expenditure as per section 135 of companies act. In compliance with the requirement
the company has paid a sum of Rs 11.96 lakhs to a section 8 company.

i, The reporting under Clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements.
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For 5.K. Kapoor & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRM: 000745C

(CAV.B. Singh)

Partner

M. No., 073124

UDIN: 23073124BGYRANTBE5

Place: Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023

ANNUAL REPORT | 2022-23



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in "paragraph 2" under "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the members
of the company on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Directions /Additional directions of the CAG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013 on the accounts of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited for the period ended 31st March 2023.

Assets and Liabilities from the erstwhile
ordnance factories to the newly formed
DPaU in accordance with the provisions
of Ind AS and other related Govt. of
India orders or directives?

If there is any deviation, the nature of
deviation and its impact on the
Financial Statement may be stated.

same cannot be quantified at this stage in
absence of
related records with the company.

5. Direction w/s 143(5) of Auditor'sreplyon Impacton
No. the Companies Act 2013 Actiontakenonthe directions Financials
1 Whether the company has system in| The company is using various software for | Mot quantifiable forthe
place to process all the accounting | recordingand processingofaccounting | reasons statedin
transactions through IT systems? transactions through IT system. auditors reply column.
If yes, the implications of processing of | Following software is being used by the
accounting transactions outside IT | company:
system on the integrity of accounts| PPC package: For maintaining records
along with the financial implications, if | pertaining to inventory, recording of
any, may be stated, purchases and sales, creation of vendor and
employee profiles, calculation of salary, etc.
For the purpose of accounting as per double
entry system, the company has purchased
Tally software and accounting has been dong
by hired consultants having experience of
accounting in Tally.
Dueto the waried experience of
consultants, wvarious discrepancies were
noticed in various umits which has been
corrected based on our abservations pointed
during the course of our audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing.
2 Whether there is any restructuring of an | Mot applicable. Mil
existing loan or cases of waiver/write
off of debts/loans/interest etc. made | The company is not availing any loan from any
by a lender to the company due to the | bank or financial institution or any other
company's inability to repay the loan? lender.
If yes, the financial impact may be
stated. Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? (In case, the
lender is a government company, then
this direction is also applicable for
statutory auditor of lending company).
1 Whether funds (grants /subsidy etc.) | Wo funds have been received/ is receivable | 1y
received /receivable for specific| for specific schemes from Central/State
schemes from Central/State| Governmentoritsagencies.
Government or its agencies were
praperly accounted for
futilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation,
4 Whether the Company has migrated the | Migrated in previous year. The impact of the | Not Applicable during

current year
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Whether the Company has reconciled
the opening balances of the Assets and
Liabilities of newly formed DPSU with
the closing balances of the erstwhile
ordnance factories as per Financial
Statements prepared by the Principal
Controller of Accounts (Fys) in the
commercial format?

The discrepancies observed (if any) and
its impact on the Financial Statements
may be stated.

The Company reconciled the apening
balances of the Assets and Liabilities of newly
formed DPSU with the closing balances of the
erstwhile ordnance factories as per Financial
Statements prepared by the Principal
Controller of Accounts (Fys) in the
commercial farmat,

The discrepancies cbserved between the
factory records and PCFA records were routed
through Retained earnings and parked in
Equity at the end of the Financial Year.

During the year a sum of Rs 42_85 crore has
been accounted for in various heads that
relates to transactions prior to incorpora-
tion. (Refer note no. 38 forming part of
financial statements)

The differences in respect of Financial Assets
& Liabilities and Property Plant and
equipment as referred to in MNote no 38
forming part of financial statements still
remains unadjusted on account of pending
reconciliation with PCFA, the impact of the
same is presently not guantifiable in financial
statements of current period. ( Refer para
no. 1 of "Basis for gualified opinion™ para of
our report.

Mot quantifiable forthe
reasons statedin
auditors reply column.

Whether the Company has carried out
reconciliation exercise of inter-factory
balances on the date of migration to Ind
AS with the other DPSUs and whether
conformation have been obtained from
other DPSUs for balances due to/dus
from them?

The number of unreconciled balances,
if any, for each DPSLU may be stated.

The Company initiated the process of
reconciliation of inter- factory batances on
the date of migration to Ind AS with the other
DPSUs but the status of reconciliation is not
satisfactory. Unconfirmed balances may have
impact on the financial statements, the
impact of which could not be commented in
absence of conformation at this stage.

Mot guantifiable for
the reasons stated in
auditors reply column.

Whether the Accounting Policies have
been framed by the DPSU as per the
provisions of the Ind AS and in
accordance with the prudent
accounting principles applicable to
Defence sector?

Inconsistency, if any, may be stated.

Yes, the Accounting Policies have been framed
by the DPSLE as per the provisions of the Ind AS
and in accordance with the prudent
accounting principles applicable to Defence
sector.

However, certain non-complia-nces have
been noted which are reported inpara 2 to 5
of "Basis for qualified opinion” of our report,
The impact of the non- compliance with the
accounting policy on the financial statement
could not be guantified in absence of
availability of related data at this stage.

Mot quantifiable for
the reasons stated in
auditors reply column,

‘Whether the provision for employes
benefit liabilities and their valuation on
the date of formation of DPSU have
been made in accor-dance with the
provision of Ind AS?

Deviation. If any, may be stated.

With reference to the office memorandum no.
Ma.1{5)/ 2021 /OF/DP (Plg-¥)/0Z, the
Government had decided that all the
employees of OFB (Group A, B & C) belonging
to the production units and also the identified
non- production units shall be transferred
enmasse to the New DPSUs on terms of foreign
service without any deputation allowance
{deemed deputation) initially for a period of
two years from the Appointed Date, in
accordance with Rule 37A of the Central Civil
Services (Pension) Rules 19721. The above
deemed deputation period has been extended
by another one year w.e.f October 01,2023

Nil
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The pension liabilities of the retirees and
existing employees will continue to be bome
by the Government from the Ministry of
Defense {("MoD") budget for Defense Pensions.

Till such time the employees remain on
deemed deputation to the new DPSUs, they
shall continue to be subject to

all the extant rules, regulations and orders as
are applicable to the Central Government
servants, including related to their pay
scales, allowances, leave,medical facilities,
career progression and other service
conditions.

Therefore, necessary provisioning for the
salaries, allowances, medical facilities and
other service conditions have been done in
accordance with applicable Ind A5 in the
books of the company. There was no need for
valuation on the date of financial statement
with regard tolnd AS 19 as all

these expenses are being born by MOD, GOI
itself.

For 5K, Kapoor & Co
Chartered Accountants FRMN: 0007450

(CA V.B. Singh) Partner
M. Mo, 073124
UDIN: 23073124BGYRAJTEES

Place: Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 3(i) under "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the
members of the company on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023.

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of The Companies Act, 2013 {"The Act”)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India
Limited ("the Company”} as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company far the
period ended on that date.

In our opinfon, the Company does not have adeguate internal financial controls system over financial reporting at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weaknesses
have been identified as at March 31, 2023:

a. Absent or inadequate segregation of duties within a significant account or process - There is no restrictions on
creation of ledgers in tally due to which the person responsible for accounting is creating multiples ledgers for
one account. There does not exist any control at the time of recording of transactions in books of accounts
i.e., there is a lack of regular maker or checker concept. The financial statement closing process is not
properly implemented.

b. Inadequate design of general and application controls that prevent the information system from providing
complete and accurate information consistent with financial reporting objectives and current needs.
The company does not have any established procedure or guideline for identifying the bills relating to services
availed for whom the provision needs to be created.

c. Employees who lack the training to fulfil their assigned functions - The person responsible for accounting
appears to be deficient in knowledge for recording the complex transactions.

d. Inadeqguate design of internal control over a significant account or process: The company does not have a
proper system of identifying the items of furniture & fixtures, office equipment etc meeting the definition of
PPE as per Ind 4s 16 due towhich these items were expensed off instead of being capitalized in some units.

A material weakness? is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives
of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reperting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2023, based on
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria existing in the Company and updated during the period of our audit,
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financfal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2023 standalone financial statements of the Company, and these
material weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the guidance note on the audit of internal financial control over financial reporting (the Guidance Note) issued
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These respansibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errars, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

as required under the CompaniesAct, 2013,
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Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note an
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Mote”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements

A company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

i3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
fimancial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For5.K. Kapoor &t Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0007450

{CAV.B. Singh)

Partner

M. No. 073124

UDMN; 23073124BGYRAITEES

Place: Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023
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Standalone Balance Sheet

1in Crores
As at As at
i NOteS  arch 31,2023  March 31, 2022
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
{a} Property, plant and egulpment 5 1,887.84 1,912.59
{b) Capital work-in-progress 5 271,34 254,45
{c) Investment properties - - -
{d} Intangible assets & 11.72 10.70
{e} Intangible assets under development 3] 1.79 1.02
{F) Right of use assats - - -
{g) Financial assets
(1] Invastmeants 7{a) 4,25 4,25
(i) Loans 7(c) = *
{lii} Other financlal assets 7in 91.74 20,25
{h) Other nen-curment assets g 3.92 13.10
Total non-current assats (A) 2,272.60 2,216.40
II. Current assats
{a} Inventories 9 2,410,773 2,027.95
{b} Financial assets
{1} Trade receivables 7 b} B4H.44 456.33
{il} Cash and cash equivalents 1(d) B34.95 109,78
(i) Bank balance other than (i) above 7= 575.00 1,16H.03
{iv) Loans 74l 3.97 a.51
(v} Other Minanclal assets 7in 12.63 742
(€} Current tax aseets (net) 16 4,95 -
{d) Other current assets g 133.97 190,41
Total current assets (B} 4,624,656 3.960.43
Assets classified as held for sale (C) 5 7.03 7.26
Total Assets (A+B+C) 6,904.29 184.09
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Eqguity share capital 10 17,123.9% 528,37
(b)) Dther equity 11 {13,938.26) 2,091.93
Total equity (A) 3,185.65 2,620.30
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Habilibes
(i) Barrowings - - -
{il} Lease liabllities - - -
(i) Other financial llabilities L2 (b} = *
(B} Long-term provislons 13 - =
(e} Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 6.38 .09
(d) Government grants 14 1,837.45 1,598.74
Total non-current liabilities (B) 1,843.83 2,001.83
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{1} Barrawings - - -
(i} Lease llabllities - ~ =
{ill} Trade payables 12 (a)
- Tedal Qutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 31.25 57.83
- Tetal Qutstanding dues other then Micro Enterorises and Small Enterorises 262.94 330.70
{iv]) Other financial Habilities 12 {b) 153.92 128.02
{b) Short-term provisions 13 10.38 5.38
{c) Current tax liabifities 16 - 0.7a
(d) Governmant grants 14 121.47 93.84
(&) Dther current liabilitles 15 1,284.85 945,49
Total current liabilities (C) 1,874.81 1,561.96
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 6,904.29 6,184.09

Significant accounting policles 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Standalone Financlal Statemants.
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In terms of our report attached

For 5. K. Kapoor & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000745C

V.B.Singh
Partner

Membership No, 073124

Place: Kanpur
Date; August 25, 2023
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For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
Rajesh Choudhary
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 09282229
Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Singh
Director cum CFO Company Secretary
DIN: 10059967 Membership No. 12879
Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur
Date; August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Lin Crores
Year ended August 14, 2021
Pertipaiars Notes  march 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
L Income
(@) Revenue from aperations 17 1.939.32 1.088.62
(B Other income 18 223.47 23,43
Total income (I) 2:162.79 1,172.05
II. Expenses
(&) Cost of raw materials and accessorles consumed 19 811.78 323.14
(b} Purchase of stock-in-trade - - -
(e} Changes In Inventories of finished aoods and work-Ha-progress 20 {300.57) 51.36
{d} Emplayee benefits expense 21 130331 617.93
(@) Finance costs . - -
(f} Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 134.06 66,25
{a} Other expanses 23 201.93 107.39
Total expenses (II) 2,148.51 1,166.07
II1. Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-IT1) 14.28 5.98
IV. Exceptional items - -
V. Profit before tax (III+IV) 14.28 5.98
V1. Tax expense 24
(&) Current tax 2.45 1.38
{b)} MAT Credit Entitlerment {2:14) -
{c) Short provision of tax for earlier vear 0.68 =
{d} Deferred tax (credit)) charge 5.43 0.07
Total tax expense (VI) 6.42 1.45
VIL Profit for the year (V-VI) 7.86 4,53
VIIL. Other comprehensive income - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year - =
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VII+VIII) 7.86 4.53
X. Earnings per equity share 30
Nominal value per share 10
- Basic and Diluted 0.005 0.09
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these Standalene Financial Statements.

Interms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

ForS. K. Kapoor & Co. Rajesh Choudhary

Chartered Accountants Chairman cum Managing Director

Firm Registration No. D00745C DIN: 09282229

V.B.Singh Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Singh
Partner Director cum CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 073124 DIN: 10059967 Membership No, 12879
Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur

Date: August 25,2023 Date: August 25, 2023 Date; August 25, 2023
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Standalone Statement of cash flows

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 U W
A Cash Flow from Opaerating activities
Profit Before taxation 14.28 .88
Adjustments to reconclle profit after tax to net
Depredation and Amortization expensa 134.06 B66.25
Interest Incoma {64,03] B.24
Givernment Granl {128.05) [B5.65)
Loss an Aefection of Machingry - o.zo
Praofit on Sale af Property, plant and eguipment (9.93) (0.30)
(G735} B.74
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (53.67) 14.72
Adjustments for changes in working capital :
Changes in [nventories [382.78) 35:82
Changes in trade receivables {192.11) (BO2.71)
Changes in other financial assets 5.02 {304
Changes in other assats 56,44 (9.18)
Changes im trade payables 194,34 G50 45
Changes in other lMhancal liabiltica 2590 108 54
Changes in other current labilities 349,36 851.69
Changes in Loans and adwances (3.48) 0.64
Changes in provisions 504y 5.38
Net Changes in Waorking Capital (230.97) T55.90 |
Cash Generated from Operations (284.64) 770.62
: i (879} L0.BE)
Met Cash Flow from Operating Activities (a) (293.43) 762,94
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, plant and eguipment and Intangible assets {128.97) (3710}
Proceeds fram Sale of Property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets 557 b33
Capital Advance given 9.18 (13.10)
Changes i other bank balancas not considered a8 cash and cash equivalents 519,60 {1,168.03)
[nberes Racalver 55,74 45113 18,49} [1.236. 39
Mat Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B} 461.12 {1,226.39)
c Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capial 37487 52837
Share Application Money Received 18463 557.45 - 528.37
Net Cash Flow used in Financing Activities {c) 557.49 528.37
Met Increase/ (Decrease ) in cash and cash (A)+({B)+(C) 7i5.18 71.82
Cash and Cash equivalent at October 01, 2021 (Refer Note 38) - 37.86
| Cash and Cash equlvalent at the beginning of the year 109,78 -
| cCash and Cash eguivalent at the end of the year 834,96 109.78 |
R nciii h and b i
Particulars Year ended Year ended
| March 21, 2033 |
Cash and cash aguivalents comprise of: (Refer Note F(d))
Cash on Hand - -
Cheques on hand - -
Balances with Banks® 83496 109,78
_l.':llh_llf_ﬁ_mh_mutulmp_ 814,96 109,78 |
® Includes Fixed deposits of T 50.00 Crores [Previoos vear T Nil} under lien with bank as Secunty for LC Fadility.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesa Standalone Financlal Statements.
MNotes:
L. The standalane cash fow statement has been prépared under the indirect method as set oot in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7] “Statement
of Cash Flows®.
In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

ForS. K. Kapoor & Co. Rajesh Choudhary

Chartered Accountants Chalirman cum Managing Director

Firm Registration No. 000745C DIN: 09282229

V.B.Singh Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Singh
Partner Director cum CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 073124 DIN: 10059967 Membership No. 12879
Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur

Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Advanced Weapons & Equipment India Limited {hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) is incorporated in India and
limited by shares (CIN No; U29270UP2021G01150734) is one of the seven (7) new Defense PSUs formed by converting the
Ordnance Factory Board into fully Government owned Enterprises. The Company was incorporated under the
Companies Act 2013 on August 14, 2021 however, its commencement of business took place on 15t October 2021 notified
by DDP. The registered office of the Company 75 located at OFC, Kalpi Road, Kanpur - 208009. It comprises of the
following production and non-production units: Rifle Factory Ishapore, Small Arms Factory, Kanpur, Gun & Shell
Factory, Cossipore, Ordnance Factory Tiruchirapalli, Ordnance Factory, Kanpur, Field Gun Factory, Kanpur, Gun
Carriage Factory, Jabalpur, and Ordnance Factory Project Korwa and non- production units at Ordnance Factories
Institute of Learning Ishapore.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on August

25, 2023,
2. Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance
These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following the accrual system of
accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Compamies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, and presentation requirements of Division 1l of schedule 11l of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS
compliant schedule Ill) as applicable to financial statement,

b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for:
o Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair

value; and

0 Plan assets in the case of employees defined benefit plans that are measured at fair value,
The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in notes to the financial statements.,
Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to
acquire assets at the time of their acguisition or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the
obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash eguivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the
normal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
tiability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

c) Functional and presentation currency
The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (TINR") and all values are rounded to the
nearest Rupees in Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule [Il, except when otherwise indicated, Figures less
than ¥ 50,000/ - which required to be shown separately are shown as actuals in bracket.

d) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when:

= It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
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There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash or cash equivalents. As the Company's normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve
maonths.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

1. Property, plant and equipment
1.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

An itemn of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

ltems of property, plant and eguipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost comprises purchase
price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the present value of
initial estimate of cost of dismantling, removal and restoration. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment that are significant in value and have
different useful lives as comparad to the main asset, they are recognized separately.,

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected,
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final
settlement.

Items of spare parts, stand-by eguipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and
recognized in the statement of profit and Loss on consumption.

The acquisition or construction of some items of property, plant and equipment although not directly
increasing the future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant and
eguipment, may be necessary for the Company to obtain future economic benefits from its other
assets, Such items are recognized as property, ptant and equipment.

1.2 Subsequent Cost

Subsequent costs Subsequent expenditure is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it meets the
asset recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection and
overhaul is derecognized.

The cost of replacing major part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the replaced part has been depreciated
separately. If it is not practicable to determine the carrying amount of the replaced part, the
Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost of replaced part was at
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the time it was acquired or constructed, The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

1.3 Decommissioning costs

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included
in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

1.4 De-recognition

Property, plant and equipment 15 derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected fraom
their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on de-recognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between sale proceeds from disposal, if any, and the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

In circumstance, where an item of property, plant and equipment is abandoned, the net carrying cost
relating to the property, plant and equipment is written off in the same period.

1.5 Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets lass
residual values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule Il ta the Companies Act 2013 except for the assets where useful life of assets
as per Schedule Il and management estimates are different. In case management estimates are
different depreciation is charged as per management estimates of useful life.

Useful Life as
prescribed by
Sr. | Asset Schedule I of | =tmated
the Companies
Act, 2013
I Factory Building 30 years 60 years
IT Other than Factory Buildings 60 years | 60 years
III | Roads (other than RCC & RCC) 5 & 10 years 10 Years
I Plant & Machinery 15 Years 20 Years
) Furniture and Fixtures Includin Alr
Conditioners and office equipme‘;'ut} ? LU YeRrs A9 Y ears
VI | Vehicles 6 Years ' 7 Years
VII | Computer {Hardware and Software) ' 3 B6 Years 5 Years
VIIT | Laboratory  Equipment  (including all QC
equipment but excluding gauges used in 10 Years | 10 Years
inspection)
IX | Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 Years 10 Years
X Hydraulic  Works, ipelings  and  sluices
{i:cluding Submersiblep&ptentrlfugal Pump etc.) 19keare | 197Years

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represents the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from
the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items {Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or
over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the peried of
use. Assets other than Building, Plant and Machinery costing less than T 10,000/- are depreciated at
100%.
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Major overhaul and inspection costs which have been capitalized are depreciated over the period
until the next scheduled outage or actual major Inspection/overhaul, whichever is earlier. Capital
spares are depreciated considering the useful life ranging between 2 to 40 years based on technical
assessment.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the expenditure incurred will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subseguent expenditure on a

praperty, plant and equipment along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off
prospectively over the revised useful life determined by technical assessment.

Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale
{or included in a disposal group that {s classified as held for sale} in accordance with Ind AS 105 and
the date that the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2. Capital works in Progress

Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as on the reporting date, is
classified under capital work- in-progress.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and the borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they are ready for their
intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account received from the
contractors.

Unsettled liabilities for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted for on estimated
basis as per terms of the contracts.

3. Intangible assets and intangible assets under development
3.1 Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably,

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are recognized at
cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost comprises purchase price including import duties, non -refundable taxes
after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any directly attributable expenses of preparing the
asset forits intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only {f the expenditure can be measured
reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to
useor sell the asset.

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as
intangible assets under development till they are ready for their intended use.

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria above are
recognised as an expenditure.
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3.2 Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

3.3 De-recognition

Anintangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or
upon their disposal. Gain or loss on de-recognition of an intangible asset is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of intangible assets
and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.4 Amortization

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight-line method over a period of
legal right to use or 5 years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized on straight-line
method over the period of legal right to use or life of the related assets, whichever is less. The
amortization period and the amortization method of intangible assets with a finite useful life is
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.,

4, Mon -Current Assets Held for Sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification as held for sale, and actions required to complete the plan of sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Mon-Current Assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair
value less cost of disposal. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

5. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS 109
- Financial Instruments (b} interest expense on lease liabilities recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116- Leases’ and
ic) exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/ development or erection
of gualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing costs
incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all
borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection of
the gualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset, are excluded from this calculation, until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that
asset for its intended use or sale are complete,

Income earned on temporary investment made out of the borrowings pending utilization for expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization,

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for their intended use are complete. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of
profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.
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6. Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. Acontract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1} the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (ROU) and a corresponding
lease liability for all tease arrangements inwhich it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases, For these shart-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease befare the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of -use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a lessor

Leases are classified as operating lease or a finance lease based on the recognition criteria specified in Ind As 116-
Leases,

a) Finance Lease:

At commencement date, amount equivalent to the "net investment in the lease” is presented as a Receivable.
The implicit interest rateis used to measure the value of the "net investment in Lease”.

Each lease payment is allocated between the Receivable created and finance income. The finance income |s
recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss over the lease period so as to reflect a constant periadic rate of
return on the net investment in Lease,

The asset is tested for de-recognition and impairment reguirements as per Ind A5 109 - Financial Instruments.

Lease modifications, if any are accounted as a separate lease if the recognition criteria specified in the
standard are met.

b) Operating lease:

The Company recognizes lease payments from operating leases as income on either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis, if required. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Lease modifications, if any are accounted as a separate lease if the recognition criteria specified in the
standard are met.

7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the assets
recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value bess costs to sell and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. It
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets of the Company.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, guoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budeets and forecasts which are prepared separately for
each of the Company's CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are
generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash Mows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

B. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition. In case of Finished goods
and work in progress cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based en the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates, trade discounts and other similar items.

As per Para 32 of Ind-As 2 , materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and
non-moving items of stores and spares is ascertained on review and provided for.

Steel scrap is valued at estimated realizable value.

9. Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition to Ind
AS, less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of
investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, if required immediately to its recoverable amount.
On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

10. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
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instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability only when it becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

a)

Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables
which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets, which are not valued at fair value through profit or loss, are
added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

= Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC!)

Financial assets at amortized cost:

Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost if;

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
inorder to collect contractual cash flows, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amaortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Afinancial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FYTOC| category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCl). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OC is reclassified from the egquity to PEL. Interest earned whilst holding
FYTOC! financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.,

n Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL s a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated
any debt instrument as at FYTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss under head. Interest income on such investment is
presented under " other income”.,
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(iif) Derecognition of financial assets

Aﬂnan:inl asset is derecognized when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
ar
The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement? and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered intoa
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and abligations that the Campany has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are eguity instruments and
financial labilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company efther begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment

classification | classification

Amortized FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification
cost date, Difference between previous

amortized cost and fair wvalue s
recognised in P&L.

FWTPL Amortized Fair wvalue at reclassification date
Cost becomes [ts new gross carrying amount,
EIR is calculated based on the new gross
carrying amount.

Amortized FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
cost date. Difference between previous v cost
and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
_ change in EIR due to reclassification.
FVOCI Amortized Fair wvalue at reclassification date
cost becomes its new amortized cost carrying
amount. However, cumulative gain or
loss in OCI Is adjusted against fair value,
Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at
amortized cost.

ANNUAL REPORT | 2022-23




(v)

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair wvalue at reclassification date
becomes its new carrying amount. No
other adjustment is required.

FWTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair
value. Cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified to P&L at
the reclassification date.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
BXposure:

- Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind A5 11 and Ind AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

) Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing component

Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies
practical expedient toignore separation of time value of money, and

All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind A5 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recegnition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. |f credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL i5 a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to
consider:
- All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then
the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.
Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other cradit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses" in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:
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Financial assets measured as at amertized cost, contract assets and lease receivables; ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit impaired | POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial llabilities

Financial Uabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

(1) Subsequent measurement of financial Habilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

" Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derjvative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are
recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

i Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss,

This category generally applies to borrowings.

{iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

Afinancial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from its balance sheet when, and
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only when, it s extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another fram the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks. Such dervative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative,

Any gainsor losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit
or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecagnized firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or Hability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm
commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company's risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes In fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have
been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below!
(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedeged item attributable to the risk hedged is
recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortized cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amortized through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR
amaortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item
ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedzed item is derecognized, the unamartized fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. When an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised asan asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

(i) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the cash

flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.
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The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its expaosure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its
exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency
contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to commaodity contracts
is recognised in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a
forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the amounts recognised as OC| are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-
financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover
{as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OC! remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

11. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

" In the principal market for the asset or liability Or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and Habilities for which fair valee is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole;

x Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for sale.
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External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external valuers is
decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria Include market knowledge, reputation, Independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company's
external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and lfabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
ather relevant documents,

Management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each
asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained
above.

This note summarizes accounting pelicy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes,
r Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition
Financial instruments {including those carried at amortized cost)

-

12, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A pravision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is materal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it i5 virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will anly be confirmed by
the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclesed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of sutflow of economic benefits is remote.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate,

Ccontingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements whien inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropniately reflected in
the financial statements.

Provision for expenditure on account of performance guarantee & replacement / repair of goods sold is made on the
basis of trend-based estimates. In cases where a trend is not ascertainable, provision for warranty is made based on the
best estimates of management.

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

14. Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there s reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in Statement of Profit or
Loss on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
Grants that compensate the Company for the cost of depreciable asset are recognized as income in statement of profit
and loss on a systematic basis over the period and in the proportion inwhich depreciation is charged.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts

and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying
asset by equal annual instalments.

15. Revenue Recognition
A, Revenue from Contract with Customers
i. The Company derives revenuas primarily from sale of Artillery Gun, Field Gun, Ordnance & Small Arms and
related services. Revenue is recognized when (or as) the company satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised goods or services (i.e., an Asset) to a Customer.
i. Satisfaction of performance obligation over time
a, Revenue is recognised overtime where the transfer of control of goods or services take places over time by

measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation, if one of the following
criteria is met:

- The company's performance entitles the customer to receive and consume the benefits simultaneously as the
company performs

. The company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset 1s created or
enhanced

. The company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the company and the company

has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

b, Progress made towards satisfying a performance obligation is assessed  based on the ratio of actual costs
incurred on the contract up to the reporting date to the estimated total costs expected to complete the
contract. If the outcome of the performance obligation cannot be estimated reliably and where it is probable
that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred.

c. In case of AMC contracts, where passage of time is the criteria for satisfaction of performance obligation,
revene is recognised using the output method.

il Satisfaction of performance abligation at a point in time

a, In respect of cases where the transfer of control does not take place over time, the company récognizes the
revenue at a point in time when it satisfies the performance obligations.

b The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains control of the asset. The indicators for
transfer of control include the following:

. The company has transferred physical possession of the asset
- The customer has legal title to the asset
" The customer has accepted the asset
. when the company has a present right to payment for the asset
- the customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. The transfer of significant risks
and rewards ownership is assessed based on the Inco-terms of the contracts.
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Ex-Works contract- In case of Ex-works contract, revenue is recognised when the specified goods are uncenditionally
appropriated to the contract after prior Inspection and acceptance, if required.

FOR Contracts - In the case of FOR contracts, revenue is recognized when the goods are handed over to the carrier for
transmission to the buyer after prior inspection and acceptance, if stipulated, and in the case of FOR destination
contracts, if there is a reasonable expectation of the goods reaching destination within the accounting period.

iv, Measurement
a. Revenue is recognized at the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third
parties,

In case of price escalation and ERV, revenue is recognised at most likely amount to be realized from customer
in line with contractual terms.

[, In case where the contracts involve multiple performance obligations, the company allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on the relative stand-alone setling price basis.

Bundied Contracts - In case of a Bundled contract, where separate fee for installation and commissioning or
any ather separately identifiable component is not stipulated, the Company applies the recognition criteriato
separately identifiable components (sale of goods and installation and commissioning, ete. ) of the transaction
and allocates the revenue to those separate components based on stand-alone selling price.

Multiple Elements - In cases where the installation and commissioning or any other separately identifiable
component is stipulated and price for the same agreed separately, the Company applies the recognition
criteria to separately identified components (sale of goods and installation and commissioning, etc.) of the
transaction and allocates the revenue to those separate components based on their stand-alone selling price.

V. Penalties

Penalties (including levy of liquidated damages for delay in delivery) specified in a contract are not treated as
an inherent part of Transaction Price if the levy of same is subject to review by the customer.

vi. Significant financing component

Advances recejved towards execution of Defense related projects are not considered for determining
significant financing component since the objective is to protect the interest of the contracting parties.

B. Other Income
i. Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest -bearing financial assets classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR}. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

. Insurance claims

Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably certain
of their ultimate collection.

fii. Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-linebasis over theleaseterm
unless increase in rentals are in line with expected inflation or otherwise justified.
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iv, Other Income
Other income not specifically stated above is recognized on accrual basis.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employes benefits payable within twelve manths of rendering the service are classified as shart-term benefits, Such
benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc,
and the same are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Current tax expense is recognized in statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OC| or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCl or
equity, respectivaly.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year computed as per the provisions of Income
Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tempoarary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax llabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

-

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
materialize, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against the current tax
liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in OCI or equity, in which case it s recognized in OCl or equity, respectively. A deferred tax asset is recognized
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the sufficient taxable profits will be available in
future to allow all or part of deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time that the liability
to pay the related dividend is recognized. The income tax consequences of dividends are recognized in profit or loss,
ather comprehensive income or equity according to where the Company originally recognized those past transactions
or events,

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
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to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax lability. MAT credit is
recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the future taxable profit will be available against which MAT credit can be utilized.

Foreign Currency transaction and Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot exchange rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences ansing on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it arises.

Mon-monetary items denominated in foreign currency which are measured in terms of historical cost are recorded using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gainor loss arising on translation
of non-manetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences an items whose fair value gain or loss s recognized in OCl or profit or
loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In case of advance consideration received or paid in a foreign currency, the date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is
when the Company initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EP5 is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ardinary
shares that would beissued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in IndASY-Statement of
Cash Flows.

Segment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108-'Operating segments’, the operating segments used to present segment information are
identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s management to allocate resources to the segments
and assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Company's ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker or
‘CODMW within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection
with performance assessment measures put in place.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unalfocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses, finance costs, income
tax expenses and corporate income that are not directly attributable to segments.

Revenue directly attributable to the segments is considered as segment revenue. Expenses directly attributable to the
segments and common expenses allocated on a reasonable basis are considered as segment expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and eguipment,
Capital Wok in Progress, intangible assets other than goodwill and intangible assets under development.

Segment assets comprise property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets, capital work in progress, intangible assets
under development, advances for capital expenditures, trade and other receivables, inventories and other assets that
can be directly or reasonably allocated to segments. For the purpose of segment reporting, property, plant and
squipment have been allocated to segments based on the extent of usage of assets for operations attributable to the
respective segments. Unallocated assets comprise investments, income tax assets, corporate assets and other assets
that cannot reascnably be allocated to segments.
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Segment liabitities include all operating Wabilities in respect of a segment and consist principally of trade payable,
payable for capital expenditure and other payables, provision for employee benefits and other provisions. Unallocated
liabilities comprise equity, income tax liabilities, loans and borrowings and other liabilities and provisions that cannot
reasonably be allocated to segments.

Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.
The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorization for issue. Mon-adjusting events are events
that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the
reparting date are not accounted but disclosed.

Exceptional ltem

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an
understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the
nmotes 1o accounts.

Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods. The estimates and management's judgments are based on previous experience & other
factors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future pericds affected.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements and / or key sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and lHabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset.

Property, Plant & Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The depreciation
charge with respect to such asset is derived based on the estimated useful life of the asset and its residual value.

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of
each reporting period.

Recoverable amount of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on estimates and assumptions
regarding in particular the expected market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could
result in impairment.

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is acting as a principle or as
an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary obligation for pricing latitude and exposure to credit /
inventory risk associated with the sale of goods. The Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on
principal to agent basis where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business partner is
recognised once they are sold to the end custamer.
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4, Assets held for sale

Significant judgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for sale under Ind AS 105 - "Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. In assessing the applicability, management has exercised
judgment to evaluate the availability of the asset for immediate sale, management's commitment for the sale and
probability of sale within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.

5. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
reguired in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

6. Income Taxes

significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, including amount
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions:

I Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realizable value 75 estimated to be lower than the inventory
carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into account various factors, including prevailing sales
prices of inventory item, the seasonality of the item’s sales profile and losses assocfated with expired / slow-moving
inventory items.

8. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the
CGLU being tested. The recoverable amount 5 sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

9. Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 37-
‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events
require best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should circumstances
change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which are not recognized on
the balance sheet. |n the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company.

There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are
not probable of payment or are very difficult to guantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent
[fabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the Financial Statements. Although there can
be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected
that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.

10. Impairment test of investments in Joint Venture Companies

The recoverable amount of investment in joint venture companies is based on estimates and assumptions regarding in
particular the future cash flows associated with the operations of the investee Company. Any changes in these
assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in
impairment.
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7 (c) Loans
tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
{Unsecured, considered qood unless atherwise stated)
Non-current - -
Current
Loans to
- Employees 3.87 0.51
3.97 0.51)
Total Loans 3.97 0.51)
Note:
1. Mo Loans are due from Directors or to firm / private company where director is interested
2. Mo leans or advances In the nature of loans are granted to promotors, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013} either severally or {ointly with any other person that are repayable on demand
ar without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Cash on hand = -
Balance with Banks
In Current accounts 17011 76.29
Deposit with bank having maturity less than 3 months* 664.85 33.49
Total cash and cash equivalents 834.96 109.78
* Under lien with bank as Security for LC Facility of = 50.00 Crores (Previous year = Nil)
t_in Crores)
Particulars As al March 31, | As at March 31,
Depasit with bank hawving matunty maore than 3 months and less than 12 months® 575.00 1,166.03
\Total othar bank balances 575.00 1,168.03 |
* Under lien with bank as Security for LC Facllity / earmarked against EMD oft 25.00 Crores (Previous year § 56.28 Crores)
¢ in Croras|
Particulars As at March 31, | As st March 31,
2023 2022 |
(Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated)
Non-currant
Security deposits 1831 20,25
Bank depasitg with maturity of more than 12 months® F343 -
91.74 20.35
Currant
Sécirty deposita 354 747
Interest Accrued B.54 025
Income recefvable .55 -
13.63 7.42 |
| Total other financial assets 104.37 27,67 |
* Under lien with bank as Security for LC Facility / earmarked against EMD of t 32.26 Crores (Previous year T Nil)
7 (g ) Financial Instruments by category
b in Crores|
Particulars
Coat Fair value Fair value through | Amortissd cost Total
through Profit Other
and Lods Comprehendive
{EWTPLY Inenme [FUTOCT)
Invasirnent .25 - - - 4.25
Trade receivables - - 648, a4 48,44
Loans 3.87 3.97
Cash and coth equivalents B = B34.05 83496
Other bank balances 57500 575,00
Other financial assets - - - 104,37 104,37 |
\Total Financial assats 4,25 = - 216674 217099
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Ein Crores
Particulars
Cost. Fair value Fair value through | Amortised cost Total
through Prefit
:hd Loss Comprehansiva
(FYTPi) | Incoms (FVTOCT)
Investrnent 4.25 - ¥ . 4.25
Trade receivabies = = = 456.33 456,33
Loans - - . .51 051
Cash and cash equivalents - - L%, 78] 109,78
Other Bank balances - = = 1,168.03 1,168.03
F a - 267 Frir
|\ Total Financisl sssets 4.25 = - 1,762.32 1,766.57 |
1. Financial instrements risk management abjectives. and palcies, refer Note 32
1. Fair valus cisclosure for financial assets and fabilites and fair value hierarchy refer Note 33,
|Mote 8 ; Other assets t in Crooes |
Particulars As at March 31, | As st March 31,
2033 | 0 3033 0 |
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current
Capital advances 92 13,10
J
Current
Advance 1o suppliers 62.43 154,41
Balance with Government Authonties (Refer note (1) below) bR 35.89
Advance to employees 177 -
Dther Current Assets - 0.01
133.97 190,41
| Total (A) + (B] 137.89 203.51)
Nobes @
{1} Balance with Gevernment Authorities mainly consists of mput credit avalied.
[#) Mo advances are due fnom divectors ar promotors of the Company either severally or |aintly with eny parsan.
b e valise ] L in Crores |
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 02z |
Faw materals and components 1,04%.00 865,30
Raw materials in transst 1.13 262
Work-in-progress 1,013.71 1,001.48
Finishad goads 32988 39.58
| SCFap 17,01 1B.97
| Total 221073) 203795
Nobe:
L) Inventory write downs are gooounted, cansidering the nature of inventary, sgaing and net realisable value, Accordingly 1 162,37 Crores (Previous yesr g
270.%3 Crores) has been provided. The changes in write downs are recognised #s an expensa |n the Statemant of Profit and Logs [Refor Note Ko, 4(73].
Note 10 : Equity share capital:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares Rs. in Crores No. of shares Rs. in Crores
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of T 10 sach 20,500,000,000 20,500.00 15,000,000,000 15,000,000
Issued, subscribad and paid-up share capital
Eguiity shares of 1 10 each 17.,123,910,000 17,123.91 538,370,000 528.37
Total 17,123.910,000 17.123.91 528,370,000 | 538.37
10.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period :
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
_ No.ofshares | Bs. inCrores
At the beginning of the period 528,370,000 528.37 - E
Add: Tssue of Shara Capital in cash 374 870,000 37487 T &
Add: Issue of Share Capital non cash {Refer Note 10.2) 16220670000 16,270 .67 o28.370.000 oB37
Dutstanding at the end of the year 17,123,910,000 17,123.91 528,370,000 528.37

10.2. Issue af Equity Shares

By virtue of the Memorandum of Understanding dated September 26, 2021 entered into between Fresendent of India and the Company, the actvities of
Ordinance Factory Board wnder Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence Including assets .and labilites, have been transferred to the
Company w.a.f. appointed date e, October 01, 2021, The consideration payable was agreed in tha form of equity shares to be issued by the Company to
the Government of India, tased on the fair value of the net assets transfermed bo the Company, Based on tha fair value of the net assets, the Company
has issued 16,22,06,70.000 shares of © 10/- each fully paid amounting to t 16,220.67 Crores to the Governmant of India The difference batween the
amount recorded as share capétal issued and fair value of net assets transferred to the Company has been trénsferred to Capital Reserve,

10.3. Rights, Prefarences and Restrictions attached to the aquity shares :

The Company has one class of shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each sharaholder is eligible for one vate per share heald,
The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors ks subject bo the appraval of the shareholders In the ansuing Annual General
Maiting. In the event of liguidation, the equity sharoholders are efigible to recehve the remaining assets of the Company aftar

distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion Lo their sharehaiding,
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10.4. Numbar of Shares held by sach sharsholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholder
Govemment of India (Including oominsss)

10.5, Sharehelding of Promoters

Name of the Promaoter

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Governmuent of Indis [Including mamirness )

17,123 910,000 I 10,00

528,370,000 100,00

10.6. Shares reserved for lssue under options and contracts ¢
Nl

10.7. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management:

Refer Note 35,

- 1 in Crores
Particulars As atzn::zr;i-l 31, As at March 31, 2022
Capital reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 4.25 -
Add: Adjustment on Implermentation of Ind AS (Refer Mote 38) = 425
Balance at the end of the year 4.25 4.25
Capital reserve on Business Reorganisation
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Created during the year (Refer Note 10.2) (16,220.67) =
Balance at the end of the year (16220.67) -
Share application money pending allotment
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Additlon during the year 182,62 =
Balance at the end of the year 182.62 -
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 2,087.68 =
Add: Adjustment on Implementation of Ind AS (Refer Note 38) - 2,086.17
Less : Deferred Tax on Ind AS Implementation - (3.02%
Restated balance on Ind AS Implementation 2,087.68 2,083.15
Add: Profit for the year 7.86 4.53
Balance at the end of the year 2,095.54 2,087.68
Total Other equity (13,938.26) 2,091.93

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within eguity is as follows

a. Capital reserve

Capital Reserve reprasents adjustments on recognition of Investment in Joint Venture,

b. Capital reserve on Business Reorganisation

Capital Reserve on Business Reorganisation represents the difference between the amount recorded as share

capital issued and fair value of net assets transferred to the Company
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12 (b) Other financial liabilities tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 20232
Non-current = =
Current
Payvable to employess 118.05 76.93
Security Deposits from customers and others 17.58 16.12
Others 18.29 34.97
153.92 128.02
Total 153.92 128.02
12 (c) Financial liabilities by category tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Fair value through | Amortised cost Total
Profit and Loss
(FVTPL}
Trade pavable - 294.19 294.19
Other Financial Liabilities - 128.02 128.02
Total Financial liabilities - 423.21 423.21
Particulars As at March 31, 202
Fair value through | Amortised cost Total
Profit and Loss
{(FVTPL)
Trade pavable - 388.53 388.53
Other Financial Liabilities - 128.02 128.02 |
| Finan liahili - 516.55 516.55 |
1. Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies. [Refer Note 34)
2. Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities and fair value hierarchy. (Refer Mote 33)
MNote 13 : Provisions tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2023
Long-term ¥ =
Short-term
Provision for Warranties 10.38 5.38
10.38 5.38 |
Total 10.38 5.38
Movement of provisions 1in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 | = 2022
Opening Balance 5.38 -
Provision recognised during the year 5.26 5.38
Amount used during the year 0.26 -
Closing Balance 10.38 5.38
The description of the nature and purpose of Provisions is as follows:!
Provision for Warranties
The Company has made warranty provision on account of performance guarantee and replacement/ repairs
of goods sold.

ANNUAL REPORT | 2022-23




MNote 14 : Government grants 1 in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Non-current
Deferred income 1,837.45 1,998.74
. 1,83745| 1,998.74
Current
Deferred income 121.47 93.84
i%ﬁsﬂ? gégdl
Total 1,958.92 2,092.58
Notes:
1. Movement of Government grants 1 in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023
Balance as on October 1, 2021 (Refer Note 38) - 2,158.24
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,092.59 -
Released to statement of profit and loss [Refer Note 18) 128.05 B5.65
Adjusted against sale / discarded assets 5.61 -
Total Government Grant 1,958.93 2,092.59

2. The Company has requested Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India for giving opinion on accounting treatement of Government Grant to be treated as Deferred Income
in proportion of depreciation charge. The Company is awaiting the opinion from EAC. Pending such opinion,
the Company has followed the same accounting treatment as applied in previous year.

Note 15 : Other current liabilities 2 in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Advance from customers (Refer Note 1 Below) 1,141.05 897.83
Statutory dues a5.96 39.32
Payable to Government of India (Refer Nate 2 Below) 57.83 B.30
Other liabilities 0.01 0.04
Total 1,294.85 945.49
Note:

1. Advances including progressive payments received from customers are classified as contract liability. Out of
T B97.83 Crores opening contract liability, ¥ 676.44 Crores has been recongised as Sales on completion

of related performance obligation.

2. Includes © 37.75 Crores realsed by Ministy of Defence against Renewal and Replacement Fund,

Note 16 : Current Tax Asset / (Liability) 1 in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax-TDS) = {0.70)
|Advance Tax (TDS) (Net of Provision) 4,96 -
Total 4.96 (0.70)
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MNote 17 : Revenue from operations

2 in Crores

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2022

Sale of Products * 1,910.97 1,076.34
Sale of Services 1.97 0.50
Other Operating Income
Disposal of Scrap and Surplus / Unserviceable Stores 26.38 11.70
Foreign Exchange Gain = 0.08
Total 1,939.32 1,088.62

I. Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue based on Geography

* Includes © 152,40 Crores addition of profit element of 7.5 % to the present issue price - Grandfathering of Indents
pending with post corporatisation as approved by Minstry of Defence vide Diary Mo. 123/1F/DP-1 dated 21.3.2023.

% In Crores

Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Domestic 1,936.16 1,088.62
Export 316 -

Revenue from Operations 1,939.32 1,088.62

Notes :

{a) In majority of the contract, performance obligation |s satisfied "at a point in time® which is primarily

determined on customer obtaining control of the asset, One of the prime indicator considered for this s transfer

of significant risk and rewards to the customer based on Inco terms. Where a contract invalves multiple

performance obligation, the criteria specified in Ind AS 115 is applied to determine the point in time when the

performance obligation is satisfied.

(b} Contract with the customer normally do not contain significant financing component and any advance

payment received and [ or amount retained by customer is with intention of protecting either parties to the

contract.

(c) The Company turnover mainly includes supply of defence electronics equipments and systems,

(d} Warranties provided are primarily in the nature of performance warranty.

(e} Contracts entered into with the customers, typically do not have a return/refund clause,

{f) No non-cash considerations are received/given during the current year as well as previous year,

I1. Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price 1 in Crores

Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from conbract with customers as per the contract price 1,939.,32 1,088.62
Less : Adjustment made to contract price on account of:

a) Discounts and Rebates 3 E
b) Sales Return = &
Revenue from Operations 1,939.32 1,088.62
MNote 18 : Other income t in Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to

March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 |

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost

- Fixed Deposits 64.03 B.24
Scrap income (T 5,170/-) 0.68
Government Grants (Refer Note 14) 12B.05 65.65
Rent Income 6.80 2.51
Provision nio longer requlred 175 -
Profit on sale of Property, plant and eqguipment (Net) 9.93 0.30
Miscellaneous income 12.91 6.05
| Total 223.47 83.43
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Note 19 : Cost of Raw materials and Components t in Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 |
Inventories as at October 1, 2021 (Refer Note 38) - 945.57
Inventories as at beginning of the year 965.30 -
Add : Purchases during the year® 895,48 342.87
1,860.78 1,288.44
|ILese : Inventory at the end of the year 1,049,00 96530
Total B11.78 323.14
* Includes © 32.16 Crores addition of cost element of 7.5 % to the present |ssue price - Grandfathering of Indents
pending with post corporatisation as approved by Minstry of Defence vide Diary No, 123/IF/DP-1 dated 21.3,2023.
Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress T in Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 325.88 39.58
Work-In-Progress 1,013.71 1,001.48
Scrap 17.01 18.97
1,360.60 1,060.03
Inventories as at October 1, 2021 (Refer Note 38)
Finished goods = 49.20
‘Waork-in-Progress - 1,051.28
Scrap = 10.91
- 1,111.39
Inventories as at beginning of the year
Finished goods 39.58 -
Waork-in-Progress 1,001.48 -
Scrap 18.97 -
1,060.03 -
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories {300.57) 51.36
Note 21 : Employee benefits expense 2 in Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
| March 31, 2023 |
Salaries and Wages 1,224.51 5B80.91
Contribution te prevident and other funds (Refer Note 28) 14.06 10.48
Staff welfare and training expenses 2.68 1:31
Contract Labour 60.06 25.23
Total 1,301.31 617.93
Note 22 : Depreciation and amortization expense R in Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
M
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment { Refer note 5) 132.81 65.88
Ameortization of Intanglble assets (Refer note 6] 1.25 0.37
Total 134.06 66.25
|Note 23 : Other expenses 2 In Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021
Power and fuel B1.15 41.09
Printing, stationery and communication 2.54 0.90
Commission and Brokerage 0.36 0.06
Rates and taxes 1.41 0.60
Repairs :
To Bullding 12.67 5.57
To others 12.64 5.46
Advertisement and publicity 0.09 0.03
Computer Expenses 0.70 0.32
Software Expenses 0.09 0.04
Meeting & Conference Expenses 0.44 0.82
Security Charges 68.05 33.58
Legal and Professional charges 1.81 0.62
Transportation Charges 4,14 1.81
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Inspection and Testing 5.82 0.90
Conveyance and Travelling expenses 1.82 0.63
Exhibitlon Expenses 0.3 =
Books and Periodicals 025 0.12
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 36) 0.12 =
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note (i) below) 0.14 0.06
Bank charges 0.07 0.04
Research & Development Expenses 0.11 0.55
Royalty Expenses 0.94 =
Foreign Exchange Loss 0,59 =
Miscellaneous expenses 5.63 14.19
Total 201.93 107.39 |
(i) Break up of Auditor's remuneration
Payment to Auditors as
Auditor 0.10 0.06
For taxation matters 0.02 -
For reimbursement of expenses 0.02 =
| Total 0.14 0.06 |

Mote T4 1 Income fnx
The major companent of moome tox expeise 8 as follows:

B in Crpre)
Particulars Wear ended Busgust 14, 2021 to
Mpech L2003 © Mpech L3003
Statement of Profit and Loss
=Currant Tim 45 136
=MAT Credit Entitlement [ 14) .
-Snort provizion of fax far eariar yoar .68 .
| -Defarad tie 4o g Crdity 5.43 0.07
ncome s axpenses{credit] in the Statament of Prof 5.42 1.45]
Statamant of Other comprahansive incoma |(DCT)
=Current T = E
=Diefarrid Lax i pihsa|dradit) s H
|Income tax expenss | {credit) recoqnised in QL1 - =
Reconciliation of tax expansa and the sccoumting profft multiplied by domestic tae rabe:
1 in Crores|
Particulars Year ended Ausgust 14, 2021 to
Accounting profit befarse tas 14.28 598
Tas Rate 33.354% 75 168%
Current tax sxpenses on Prolit Gefare tex evperses it the enacted 4,77 L5l
moome te reke in Indis
Adjushmeant
Exempt income/not liable to tax {331) (Lo
Diferero= in Tax Rate o [k ]
Unised Tae Cradit availabhe far cffsetting agalmst futuss tixable Incams [MAT Crada Entitlement) (2,141 -
Short proy|sion of tas for ardier year 0.8 5
Esp=nditure not deduttibie for tes'not llabs tn s oy 0,05
Qthirs 354 K
i 642 1,45
|EFertive tax rate (LRI 24 16|
B. Defarred tax
LinC
Balance Sheat |  Statemant of Balance Shaot Statemant of Prafit m;:mﬁ'
as ot Profit and Loss 5 &t and Loss anid O0CT for Earnings an
Particulars and OCT for the the year ended on | Implementation of
year anded on Ind AS (Refer Note
AT
Accelerntod depreciation for tax purposes 5.8 565 014 0.14 -
Lirgact of recognitinsn of Dntangihies geiets-Tecinical Koo o 1.67 015 1.82 [0.07) 1.8%
Im@act of recognition of Intamgihls ssefs-Resaarch & Devaloomant 1.02 (EL1L) 1:143 . .
Unused Tox Cred® availnbie far offestting against ffture Saxable mcome [Z.14] {2145 -
[MAT Credd Ertitlernent)
Detarred tax snpansa, (incoma) EW ] o.07 1.80
Het deferrod tax labilites 638 3.09
Reflected in the balance sheet as foliows
Deferred tax habilines 8.5 ER
Deferred tax asseds [214 4
1 618 1.09
FMot
(i) The Company offesls tax stsels god Eabilities F aod anly i it e g Egally rforceable nghl o sel of current Lix assaty snd current Lay
Eapillties amd the dofgrran tay ssseis and deferred tax labilities retata o income Taes lesied Dy e same @ authomy,
Racanciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/ [Liabilities), NMat Y in Crores
Particilnrs Year ended Busgust 14, 3021 to
Dponing balanca 349 1.89
Deferred Tax Liability recognised during the yesr on recongition of Resesrch B Deyelo proisei - 1.13
Difurred T inooime [ saperms) during the period recognisad it profif or o 139 0407
Defarmed Tas inpome{supanss) during tha panod mecognised in 001 . .
Elnsing balance [ S 1] 308 |
— St
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Note 28 ; Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans:
Amount of T 14.06 Crores (Previous year T 10.48 Crores) is recognised as expenses and included in Note no, 21 "Employes benefit expense”.

1 in Crores

Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to March
March 31, 2023 31, 2022

(1) Contribution o Mational Pension Scheme [Note (a)] 14.06 10,48

Total 14.06 10.48

Note

{a) Employees of the Company receive benefits from a new pension scheme, which Is a defined contribution plan.The eligible employees and the
compary make monthly contributions to the new pension scheme equal to 2 specified percentage of the coverad employees' salary along with the
Company Contribution. Amounts colected under the scheme are deposited in @ government administered pension fund. Such contributions are
accounted for as defined contribution plans and are recognised as employee benefits expenses when they are due in the Statement of profit and
lnss. The Company has no further obligations to the same beyond its contribution,

(h) Emplovees of the Company have been deputed by the Government of India for two years from the Appainted date |e. October 01, 2021 vide
office memorandum Mo, 1 {5)/2021/0F/DP (Plg-V)/02 dated September 24, 2021 and their Salary and other costs are paid by the Government of
India during the year as per the terms and conditons of their employment. The zbove deemed deputation pericd has been extended ny another one
year w.e.f. October 01, 2023 on the same terms and conditions as issued earlier,

Note 29 : Related Party Transactions
As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Refated Party Disclosures” (Ind AS 24}, the related parties of the Company are as follows :

(a) Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

L1} Joint Venture
L1 lLndo Russian Alfies Private Limited
1 Mr, Rajesh Choudhary Chairman and Managing Derector
2 Mr. Chandraker Bharti Director (Government Nomines) (upto Septembar 14,2022}
3 Mr Surendra Prasad Yadaw Director [Gowernment Normines) (September 14,2023 to February 27,2023)
4  Mr. Jayant Kumar Director {Gowvernment Nominee) (w.e.f. February 27,2023}
5 M Akhilesh Kumar Maurya Chrector
6 Mi Rewvin Kulshrestha Director cum CFO (uple February 28, 2023)
7 Ms Anuprma Tripathi Director {upto January 31, 2023)
B M, Biswalit Pradhan Dhrector (w.e.l. February 01,2023)
9  Mr. Sushil Sinha Hrector cum CFO (w.e.f, March 01,2023)
10 Mr Manish Kumar Singh Company Secratary
(b) Disclosure In respect of Related Party Transactions ;
w T in Croves
Key Management Personnel
Sr. |Particulars Jaint Venture i ralntives Taotal
Year ended [ as at Year ended [ as at Year ended .E as at
March 31, March 3. March 31, h3 are 1,
g, - 2023 022 023 2022 | 2023 | 2033
ransactions during the year
Remunaration : - 1.55 0.8 1.55 0.B8 |
Leases Refer note 1 Refer note 1
Bl helow
(11}, Balances as at year end
It ments 4.25 4.25 - - 4,25 4,25 |
MNote:

1. The Company has entered into 2 Lease agreement with Indo Russtan Rifles Private Limited (@ Joint VYenture of the company)
whereby the Company has glven land measunng B.65 acres along with bullding constructed on it and Plant and Machinery at a
combine measuring 50 acres on token rent of © 1/- par annum for the period of 30 years,

{c) Disclosures pursuant to section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Loans and Advances in the nature of loans - T. Nil

(d) Terms and conditions of transactions with relsted parties
Transactich antéred into with related party are made on térms equivsient to those that prevail In smm's length transact|ons,

(2} Commitments with related parties
The Company has not provided any commitment to the related party .

(f} Transactions with key managemant personnel
Compensation of key managament parsonrdsl of the company L in
Year ended | Year
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2023 |
Short-term employee benefits 1.55 .68
Termination benefits - -
Total compensation paid ko key management personnel i.55
The amounts disclosed |n the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period relaled to key

management personnel,
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{g) Transaction with Government and Government Related Entities
As AWEIL | & government entity under the contral of Ministry of Defenca (Mo, the Company has avalled exemption from detalled
disciosures required under Ind AS 24 wrt related party tranzections with government and government related entities,
However as required under Ind AS 24, following are the individually significant transactions :

93% of the Company's Tumover, 100% of Trade Recelvables and 99% of Customar's Advance |s with respect to government and
gavernment related entities.

Note 30 : Earning per share:

tliaae Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022 |

Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted)

Profit attributable to ordinary eguity holders 1 in Crores 7.86 4.53

Wesighted average number of equity shares for basic and Diuted EPS® NG 16,938,015,562 528,370,000

Mominal value of eguity shares Rs, 10.00 10.00

Basic and Diluted eaming per share Rs, 0,005 0.09

* Rafer Note No. 10.2

Note 31 : Segment Raporting
Thie Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification no 1,/2/2014-CL-V dated 23rd February 2018 has exempied the
Government companies engaged In Defence produsction to the extent of application of Ind AS 108 on "Operatingeg  ment”.

Note 32 : Leases

A. Operating Lease

1. The Company has entered into a Lease agreement with Bharat Electronics Limited whereby the Company has given plot of land measuning 50
acres on token rent of T L/-per annum for the period of 30 yoears.

B. Low Value Leasa

option of renewal by mutual consent at yearly rent of T 0.01 Crore,
December 01, 2037 with option of renewal by mutual consant at yearly rent of T 1/- per annum,

March 17, 2043 with option of renewal by mutual consent al yearly rent of T 17- per annum.
All the above leases are considered as low value leases and hence na Right of Use Assets have been created.

C. Sub Lease

1. The Company has enterad into a Lease agreement with Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited (a Joint Venture of the company] whersby the
Company has given land measuring 8.65 acras along with bullding constructed on it and Plant and Machinery at a combine measuring 50 acres on
token rent of T 1/- per annum for the period of 30 years,

° Mote 33 ; Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial Habilities:
{a) Set out below Is 8 comparison, by class, of the carrying @mownts and falr value of the Company's financoal instruments; other than those with carrying
armaunts thal are reasonable approximations of fair

T inCr
Particulars Carrying amount Falr valum Carrying amount Fair I'IIIIEﬁl
As at March 31, | As at March 31,| August 14, 2021 | August 14, 2021
033 ! 0 2023  |toMarch 31, 2022 to March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Investment at Cost 4325 430 &35 4,35
4,25 4,25 4,25 4,25 |
Financial Liabilitles . - -
[Total = z : =

The mansgemeant assessed that the fair valogs of cash and cash eguivitlents, other bank belances, |oans, trade recesvabées, other current finenclal assets, trode
poayobles and other current financial Eahbilities approximats their cermying amounts largely due to the short-berm ratunties of thease instruments.

The fair value of the financlal assets and labiltaes 18 Included at the amownt at which the mstrument could be exchanged in a current trarsaction botwaen willing
parties, othar than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

(k) Fair valua hiararchy
Thie folbowing tahle pravides the fair value measurement hisranchy af the Company's sssets and liabilitisa,
02
wa measy 7|
Quoted prices Significant

Particulars Total in active Significant observable inputs unohsarvable

markats (Lowvel 2) inputs

[Lewel 1) {Level 3)
|As at March 31, 2023
Assets measured at fair value - - = -
As at March 31, 2023
hssats measurod at falr value r = = .
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markats o puts
(Level 1) (Level 3)

As at March 31, 2023
Liabilities measured at fair value £ >
|As at march 33, 2022
Linbilities measured at fair vaiun = = = =

Falr valua hiararchy

Lavel 1t Leved 1 hierarchy mcides financial instrumants measured using quoted prices. This includes listed eguiity instruments that have quoted price; The fair value
of &l equity instrurments which ars traded in the stock exchanges |8 valeed using the closing price s ab the reporting period.

Lewel 2: The Tair walue of finsncial instruments that are nol treded in en sctive market (for example, lraded bands, over-the counler dervatives) is determined

using valuation techniques wiich maximize the use of obsenvable market data and refy as little as possible an entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fadr vali an instrument are observable, the instrument e included in level 2.

Leval 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on chservable market data, the instrument is induded in favel 3. This i the case for uniistod equity
secunitied, contngent considerabion and indermnification asset included in evel 30

There are i transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 durmg the year

The Company's palicy i to recugnise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reparting parod.
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L4

c) Provision for expected credit lossas:

A the Company's deblors are predominantly the Government of India {Indian Defence Services, Ministry of Externzl Affzirg), Central Public Sector
Undertakings where the counter - partles have sufficlent capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default Is nil £ negligible, Accordingly,
impairment on account of expected credit losses is being assessed on 8 case to case basis in respect of dues sutstanding for significant period of time as poer
the accounting poficy of the Company. Further, management befiewes that the unimpaired amounts that are due is  collectable in full, based on historical
payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk,

d) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associabad with its financial llabilities that is settied by delivering

cash or another financial aszet, Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to mest expected operational expenses including the
servicing of financial ohligations.

The table below summarises the matunty profile of the Company's finandal liabilibes based on contractual undiscounted payments:

T in Crores
Lass than 1

Particulars FIECAES 1 year of more
Trade payables S294.19 -
Qther financial labliities 153.92 -
_Total 448.11 -
March 31, 2022

Trade payables _ 388,53 -
Other financial labilities 128,02 -
Total 516.55 =

The Company's standard contract terms provide that, the Company receives advance payments from customers pursuant to the applicable contracts,
Inciuding the Government of India and the Indian Defence Services at the time of signing of any contract and milestone payments on achievement of physical
milestones. Thase payments ara utilized tomeet the Company's working capital needs (for the Company reguired bo maintain a high level of working capital
because the Company's activities are characterized by long product development periods and production cycles). Further, payments to the Company by the
indian Defence Services are rellant on the continuing avatlakiity of budgetary appropriations by Gavemnmment of India and any disruptions bo the availabllity
of such appropriations could adversely affect the Company’s cashfiows.

a) Market risk:

Thie Ministry of Defence (MoD) and the Government of India {Gol} have continued efforts to reform Defence related policles such as the Defence Acguisiton
Procedyre 2020 ["DAP 20207) te promote private participation, a level playing field and the domestic Defence manufacturing Industry and eco-system, While
the Mol has given the highest priority to Indigenously Designed, Developed and Manufactured {"IDDM*) products for capital procurement, the Company
Faces competition to be selected as the Indian production agency for such contracts. These polices have ralsed the level of market competition n the areas in
which the Company operates,

f} Risk Mitigation Process:

As a step of institutionalizing the risk managemaent in the Company, an elabarate framework has been developed and the Company’s top management has
averall responsibility for the establishment and eversight of the Company's risk management framework. An important purpose of the framewark [s to have a
structured and comprahensive risk managemant system across the Company which ensures that the nsks are being properly identsfied apd these risks. The
risk management process Includes risk identification, risk sssessment, risk evaluathen, sk mitigation and regular review and moniloring of risks, The
Company's risk management policy aims to reduce volatility in financal statements while matntaining balance between providing predictability in the
Company's business plan along with reasonable participation in market mavemant,

Note 35 : Capital management:

Forthe purpose of the Comparny s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all obher equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capilal
ratioy in order tosupport its business and maximise shareholder value,

Thie Company manages its capital structuse and makes adjustments ta it n light of changes in econemic condibons or its business reguiremeants. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return cepital Lo shareholders or Issue new shares, The
Compamy monitors capltal using a gearing ratio, which |s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt

Gearing ratio
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022 2 |
MNet debt (a) - -
Total Equity
Equity share capital {Refer note 10) 17,123.91 528.37
Other equity (Refer note 11) : |
Total Equity (b} 3,185.65 2,620.30
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (a/b) = =
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Note 38 : Restatment of Previous Financial Statements

L4

1 By wirtue of the Memorandum of Understanding dated September 29, 2021 entered Into between Fresepdent of India and the
Company, the activities of Ordinance Factory Board under Department of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence including assets
and liabilites, have been transferred to the Company w.e.l. appointed date |.e. October 01, 2021.The financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2022 are the first annual Ind AS financial staterments, the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS,

2 Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statemants which comply with Tnd AS applicable for perieds ending on March 31,
2022, In preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at the appointed date Le.
October 1, 2021, the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. The Company had made certain adjustments in restating Its previous
financial statements prepared in commercial format by Defence Accounts Department, Ministry of Defence {Financa) Government of
India. Material adjustments are as follows:

a
u]
C

d
e

-

Adjustment on recognitian of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

Adjustment on recognition of Investment in Joint Ventures
Adjustment on valuation of financial assets and liabilities at their realisable value in compliance with Ind AS. Also, transition from
Cash method of accounting to Accural method of accounting also resulted into certaln adjustments.
Adjustment on valuation af inventories at lower of cost or reatisable value.
Adjustment on recognition of Government Grant related to Capltal Expenditure as deferred income on a systematic basis over the
uzalil life of the assets for which It is recaived,
Adjustment on derecognition of Preliminary Expensas
Deferred Tax adjustments on [nd AS Implementation
The Impact of the above adjustments were as follows:
Reconciliation of Equity
T _In Crores
As at
Particulars October 01,
2021
Equity under previous lMnancial statement prepared In
commarcial format by Defence Accounts Department, Ministry 2,934.09
of Defence (Finance) Government of India - A
Impact of valuation of Inventories (783.24)
Impact of recognition of Investment in Jont Venture 4.25
Impact of derecognition of Preliminary Expenses (6.94)
Tax impact on Ind AS adjustments (1.83)
Sub Total B (787.82)
Balance C = A-B 2,146.27
Impact of valuation of Property, plant and eguipment & Intanglible asseks: 52,76
Impact of valuation of Financial Assets and Liabllities 154 48
Sub Total D 101.72
Equity as per Ind ASE=C-D 2,044.55
Break up of Equity as per Ind AS
Captial Reserve 4,25
Retained Earnings 2,040.30 |
Total Equity as per Ind AS 2,044.55

3 Dunng the current year, the Company has identified certain adjustments which pertains to previous year but not considered in the
previous financial statement. As per Ind AS B, Accounting Pollcies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Error, the Campany has
restated the comparative amounts for the previous year. The pature of the prior period ermors and its impact on each financial
statement line ftem has been disclosed as under:

Financial Statement Line Item

- Increass/ {Dacreass tin Crores
Property, Plant & Equipment E.E-‘I-
Captial Work-In-Progress 0.51
Intangible Assets 338
Trade Receivable 4.93
Stock-in-Transit 0.14
Current Account with Bank 0,13
Securily Deposits 1.60
Balance with Government Authorities 27 .64
Advances to Suppliers {1.35)
Loan to Employees (2,08}
|Asset Held for Sale (0.21)
Increase in Assets 35.53
Mz&_ﬂﬂ%
Security Deposits .04
Accrued Committed Liability 5.446
Trade Payables 3.25
Advances from Customers (0:29)
Statutory Dues (0,01}
|Beferred Tax Liability {1.13}
Decreasa in Liabilities 7.32
Met Impact on Retained Earnings 42.85
4 After giving the above adjustment, Retained Earnings as on April 01, 2022 will be as under:
£ in Crores
Retained Earnings as per previous financial Statements 2,040.30
Add: Tncrease due to above adjustments 42.85
Restated Retained Earnings as on April 01, 2022 |  2083.15]
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Note 39 : Additional Regulatory Disclosures as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
i The Company does not have any benami property held in their name. No proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Parent and Indian subsidiaries for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made

thereunder.

b The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender or government or any government authority.

€ The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed

under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) Rules, 2017.

d Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall: a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b)

Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

II. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Company shall: a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b)
Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

B The Company has not invested or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

The Company has no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax

assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been

recorded in the books of account,

g The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248
of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956,

Note 40 : Code of Social Security, 2020

The Parliament of India has approved the Code of Social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may
impact the contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund, Gratuity and ESIC. The Code have
been published in the Gazette of India. However effective date has yet not been notified. The Company
will assess the impact of the Code and will record related impact in the peried it becomes effective.

Note 41 : New Accounting Pronouncements to be adopted after March 31, 2023

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA)
has notified certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the following

standards:

IndAS1

Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term "significant accounting
policies” with "material accounting policy information” and providing guidance relating to immaterial
transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more,

Ind AS S8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the definition of
accounting estimates as "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty.”

IndAS 12

Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction.

Other Amendments

Ind AS 102 = Share based Payments, Ind AS 102 = Business Combinations, Ind AS 109 =

Financial Instruments, Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers which are mainly editorial

in nature in order to provide better clarification of the respective Ind AS's.
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Note 42 : Indigenization Corpus

MNotification on Policy for Indigenization of Components and spares used in Defence platforms for
DPSUs/OFB was issued on March 08, 2019. As the quidelines from Department of Defence Production
{DDP) regarding modalities has not been received as on March 31, 2023, no provision has been made
during this period.

Note 43 : Balance shown under Trade Receivables, Trade Payable, Advance against Goods and
Services, are under reconciliation. Since the Company is a Government entity under the control

of Ministry of Defence (MaD), 93% of the Company’s turnover, 100% of Trade receivables and 99% of
the customer advances is with respect to Government and Government related entities. The bills

are raised on the customers by the divisions located at various places and reconciliation is carried out
on an ongoing basis. However, management does not expect to have any material financial

impact of such pending confirmation / reconciliation,

Note 44 : In the opinion of the Board, the Company do not have any assets other than fixed assets and
MNon-current investments having a value on realisation in the ordinary
course of business less than the amount stated.

Note 45 : Events occurring after the reporting period

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but
prior to the approval of financial statements to determine the necessity for recognition and/or

reporting of subsequent events and transactions in the financial statements. As of August 23, 2023,
there were no subsequent events and transactions to be recognized or reported that are not already
disclosed.

Note 46 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified

"Material regroupings: Appropriate adjustments have been made in the statements of assets and
liabilities, statement of profit and loss and cash flows, wherever required, by a reclassification of the
corresponding items of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows in order to bring them in line
with the groupings as per the audited financials of the Company as at March 31, 2023.Previous year
figures are not strictly comparable with those of current year as previous financial statements are for
the period of 8 months only."

Signature to accompanying note no. 05 to 46 forming part of financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

ForS. K. Kapoor & Co. Rajesh Choudhary

Chartered Accountants Chairman cum Managing Director

Firm Registration No. 000745C DIN; 05282229

V.B.Singh Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Singh
Partner Director cum CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 073124 DIN: 10059967 Membership No. 12879
Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur Place: Kanpur

Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India
limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) , the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as "The Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our repart, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2023, of consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the period then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

In respect of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
Attention is drawn to following paras:

1- The opening balances of assets and liabilities as on 15t October 2021 were taken as per the data provided by
PCFA (Princtpal Controller of Accounts Ordnance Factories, Kolkata). The units made certain adjustments for
differences based on the data available with the units. This resulted in net increase/decrease in Assets
and liabilities with corresponding effect in Other Equity amounting to net decrease of Rs. B89.54 crores
(reference to Mote No. 38 to Financial Statements), These differences in various Assets and Liabilities were
subject to correction/adjustments based on future information . During the year certain adjustments
has been made based on information available that has resulted in reduction / Increase is assets / liability as
referred to in note no 38 amounting to Rs 42.85 crore. The differences in respect of Financial Assets &
Liabilities and Property Plant and equipment as referred to in Note no 38 - still remains unadjusted on
account of reconciliation with PCFA,

The impact of the above is not presently quantified in absence of related data not being provided by the
management.

2- The company accounted computers, office equipment (including air conditioners) and furniture & fixtures

acquired after 1st October 2021 at cost. However, the same assets existing as on 30th September 2021 in the
books of PCFA have been accounted at Re 1 instead of at carrying value. This is in violation of Para 7 of Ind
A5 101, which requires the said assets to be accounted for at their carrying value as on 1st Oct 2021,
The non-compliance has resulted in understatement of property plant and equipment and retained earmings
by the sarme amount. This also has impact on subsequent depreciation and on statement of profit and loss, on
those assets over their remaining useful life. The impact of the above could not be quantified in absence of
related data not being provided by the management.,

3- The company is not having proper system for recognizing various items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and
servicing equipment which are expected to be used during more than one period. During the year the same
has been accounted for some units for major components however in absence of proper policy by head
office the application of the same is not uniform . Hence the accounting of spares, standby equipment and
servicing equipment isin violation of para 6 & 8 of Ind AS 16 - "Property plant and Equipment”,

The impact of the same in financial statements is presently not quantifiable.

4- It has been observed that the item of PPE becomes available for use from the date of commissioning and the
depreciation should be charged from the same date. However, the company is charging depreciation from the
M-Voucher date and B- voucher date respectively in case of Plant and Machinery and Building. This is in
violation of Para 55 of Ind AS 16 - "Property, Plant and Equipment”.

In certain instances, gap were noted between the two dates due to which the depreciation being charged is
not accurate. Since the practice is prevalent in all the units the impact of the deficiencies in financial
statements is presently not quantifiable.
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5- Valuation of Inventory
a. Fixed Overhead Allocation in valuation of WIP:

In valuation of inventary, the Fixed Overhead is being allocated on the basis of actual production instead of
normal capacity as the company does not have proper system to identify the normal production capacity of
the plants for production of specific items by the various factories.

This results in violation of para 13 of Ind AS 2 - “Inventories” which reguires FOH to be allocated based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities.

Allocation of Fixed Overheads has been made on the basis of management estimates by each factory hence
the compliance with Ind AS could not be verified by us. The impact of the non-compliance of Ind AS 2 of above
para cannot be quantified by us in absence of the desired information at this stage,

b. Inter - unit inventory

In respect of inter-unit inventory, elimination of unrealized profit or loss was not identified and accounted for
at individual inventory at unit level which has resulted in non compliance of Ind AS 2 * Inventory”,
The impact of the above in the financial statements of current period is not quantifiable.

6- Confirmation of Balances:

The company has communicated with with Domestic Trade Receivables amounting to Rs 648.44 crore, Trade
Payables Rs 292_812 crores, Advances received from customers Rs 1141.05 crores and Advances to suppliers Rs.
62.43 crores appearing in the books of all the units through units themselves based on “negative

confirmation request”.

It has been observed that only few parties have responded to the above confirmation reguests as
approximately 96% of the amount of balance confirmations requests of trade payables have not been
responded which is deemed as confirmed balances as per the Hegative Confirmation Reguest.

However, such non confirmation of the above stated balances may have impact on statement of profit and Loss
af the company if the same is not reconciled with books of accounts. The impact of non-confirmation of
balance is not guantifiable in financial statements.

i The Company has not paid / provided for interest on overdue amount of MSME Trade Payables as referred toin
Wote12 (a) in accordance with the Sec 16 of MSME ct, 2006. Due to absence of relevant supporting, the impact
of the same in the current period financial statements cannot be commented upon,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under Section 143{10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those 5tandards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company, its Joint Venture in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have
fulfilted our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reparts referred to in paragraph of the Other
Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for our gualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Group Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consalidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including its Joint Yenture
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and Joint Venture are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeneass of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Group, as aforesaid,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and its Joint Venture are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and its Joint Venture to continue as a going
concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its Joint Venture is responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its Joint VYenture,
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit, We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
thatis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Consolidating company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its Joint Venture to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
repori. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its Joint Venture to cease to continue
as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events ina manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its Joint Venture to express an opinfon on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the Joint Venture included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Consolidating Company of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Group's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the infermation included in the Annual Report related to the Consolidated Financial Statements, but does not include

the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other

a ANNUAL REPORT | 2022-23
‘2- - ‘




&

f e e T
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of total comprehensive income (comprising of
profit and other comprehensive income) of 4.31 crores for the period ended March 31, 2023 as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one Joint Yenture (Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited ) whose financial statements/ financial
information are unaudited. These unaudited financial statements /Financial information have been furnished to us by the
Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of this Joint Venture and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on
Other Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid Joint Venture, is based on unaudited financial statements/ financial
information.

Our Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other
auditor.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. A&s required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO 2020%), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matter specified in
paragraph 3{xxi) of CARO 2020.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that -

aj We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
Belief were necessary for the purposes of aur audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

bj In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books except for the matters reported in para "Basis for Qualified Opinion™ and
“Report on Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting”.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account and records
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d}) Inour opinion, except for Ind AS 16 as referred todnpara "3 and 4", Ind A5 101 as referred toin para "2" and Ind
A5 2 "Valuation of Inventories” as referred to in para "5 of Basis for Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind As financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e} The consolidating company being a Government Company pursuant to the Notification Ho, GSR 463(E) dated 5
June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of
Section 164 of the Act, are not applicable to the company. Unaudited financial statements of Joint Venture
were made available by the management , hence we cannot comment on the disgualifications of directors of
Joint Venture in terms of section 164(2) of the Act .

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind
A5 Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B” to this report,

gl With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as on March 31, 2023 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, Refer Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

il. As per the information and explanation given to us by the respective managements of the Consolidating
Company and its Joint Yenture and based on our examination of the records of the company, the Company did
not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.
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ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection fund
by the Consolidating Company and its Joint Venture,

i, {a) The respective managements of the Consolidating Company and its Joint Venture and the other auditor of
the Joint Venture respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Consolidating Company and Joint Venture to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
{"Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary

shall:

. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
("Uttimate Beneficiaries”) by or an behalf of the Company and Joint Venture or

. provide any guarantees, security or the like on Behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective managements of the Company and Joint Venture have represented to us that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company and Joint Venture or from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{"Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company and
the Joint Venture shall,

. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (a) and (b) of Rule 11{4) contain any material misstatement.

W, Mo dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company and Joint Venture hence the provisions
of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

vi. Provise to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
wie.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reparting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
isnot applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023,

h) The Group and its Joint Venture have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For 5.K. Kapoor & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRM: 000745C

(CAV.B. Singh)

Partner

M. Mo, 073124

UDIN: 23073124BGYRAJTRES

Flace: Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023
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Annexure Ato the Independent Auditor's report on the consolidated financial statements of Advanced Weapons Equipment
and India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Referred to in “paragraph 1" under "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date to the
members of the company on the Consolidated Ind A5 Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

The audit of the Joint Yenture of the company, Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited
has not been conducted till signing of the audit report of this company .
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this
report.

For5.K. Kapoor & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000745C

{CAV.B. Singh)

Partner

M. No, 073124

UDIN: 23073124BGYRANTEES

Place: Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Advanced Weapons and
Equipment India Limited

The Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of S5ection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

The Joint Venture namely Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect to
the adequacy of the Internal Control over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such control
pursuant to MCAnotification GSR 583(E) dated 13 June 2017.

Qualified Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India
Limited and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controts with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements of Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited (“hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidating
Company”).

In our opinion, the Company does not have adeguate internal financial controls system over financial reporting at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note cn Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weaknesses
have been identified as at March 31, 2023:

a. Absent or iInadeguate segregation of duties within a significant account or process - There 15 no restrictions on
creation of ledgers in tally due to which the person responsible for accounting is creating multiples ledgers for
one account. There does not exist any control at the time of recording of transactions in books of accounts
f.e., there is a lack of regular maker or checker concept. The financial statement closing process is not
properly implemented.

b. Inadequate design of general and application controls that prevent the information system from providing
complete and accurate information consistent with financial reporting objectives and current needs.
The company does not have any established procedure or guideline for identifying the bills relating to services
availed for whom the provision needs to be created.

c. Employees who lack the training to fulfil their assigned functions - The person responsible for accounting
appears to be deficient in knowledge for recording the complex transactions:

d. Inadequate design of internal control over a significant account or process: The company does not have a
proper system of identifying the items of furniture & fixtures, office equipment etc meeting the definition of
PPE as per Ind As 16 due to which these items were expensed off instead of being capitalized in some units.

& ‘'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficlencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31,
2023, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria existing in the Company and updated during the period of
our audit, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2023 Consolidated financial statements of the Company, and these
material weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Consolidating Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based an internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (“the Guidance Mote”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the
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safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Consolidating Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intermal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to conselidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Consolidating Company's internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statement

ACompany's internal financial controls with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A Company's internal financial
control with reference to these Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that:-

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
Management and Directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future perieds are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For 5.K. Kapoor & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRH: 000745C

{CAV.B. Singh)

Partner

M. Mo, 073124

LDIN: 23073124BGYRAJTEES

Place: Kanpur
Date: 25-08-2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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¥ in Crores
As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 5 1,887.84 1,912.59
{b) Capltal werk-in-progress 5 271.34 254,49
{c) Investment properties a - 3
{d) Intanglble assets & 11.72 1,70
{e} Intangible assets under development & ) FFL) i.02
(I} Right of use assels - - -
{a) Financial assets
{I} Investments 7 (a) 8.83 4.52
{il} Loans T leh . -
(i} Other financial assets TR 91.74 20,25
{h) Other non-current assets & 3.92 13,10
Total non-current assets (A) 2;277.18 2,216.67
II. Current nssets
(&} Inventories 9 2,410.73 2,027.95
{b) Financial pssets
(i) Trade receivables 7 (b} 4844 456,33
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 {d) B34.96 109,78
{iil) Bank balance other than (ii) above 7 (e} 575.00 1,158.03
(iv} Loans T i) 397 051
{v) Other financial assets TR 12.63 7.42
{c} Current tax assets (net) 16 4.96 -
{d) Other current assets 3 13397 190.41
Total current assets (B) 4.624.66 3.960.43
Assets classified as held for sale (C) 5 7:03 7,26
Total Assets (A+B+C) 6,908.87 184.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity share capital 10 17,123.91 528.37
(b} Other equity 11 {13,933.68) 2,092.20
Total equity (A) 3,190.,23 2,620.57
LIABILITIES
Non-current labllities
{2} Financial liahilities
(i) Borrowlngs - - -
(i} Lease lHabilities = - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 12 {b) - =
(b} Long-term provisions 13 - -
{c} Deferred tax liabilities {net) 24 6.38 3.04
(d}) Government grants 14 1,837.45 1.5958.74
Total non-current liabilities (B) 1,843.83 2,001.83
Current liabilities
{a) Firancial liabilities
(1) Borrowings - - -
(i} Leasa liabilities - - -
(i) Trade payables 12 {a)
= Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 31.25 57.83
= Total Dutstanding dues other then Micro Enterorises and Small Enterorises 262.94 330,70
{iv) Other financial liabilites 12 {b) 153,92 128.02
(b} Short-term provisions 13 10.38 5,38
{c}) Current tax liabilities 16 - 0.7a
{d}) Gowvernment grants 14 121.47 93.84
(&) Other current liahilities 15 1,294 B5 945,49
Total current liabilities (C) 1,874.81 1,561.96
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 6,908.87 6,184.36
Significant accounting palicies 3

The accompanying nobes are an [ntegral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
Interms of our report attached

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
For 5. K. Kapoor & Co. Rajesh Choudhary
Charterad Accountants Chairman curm Managing Director
Firm Registration No. 000745C DIN: 09282229
V.B.Singh Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Singh
Partner Director cum CFO Company Secretary
Membership No. 073124 DIN: 10059967 Membership No. 12879
Place: Kanpur Place:; Kanpur Place: Kanpur
Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

¢ in Crores
Year ended August 14, 2021
ParticuiNos NOteS  March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2022
I. Income
(a) Revenue from operations 17 1.939.32 1.088.62
(B} Other income 18 2da:47 g83.43
Total income (I} 2,162.79 1,172.05
II. Expenses
{a) Cost of raw materials and accessories consumed 19 Bl1.78 323.14
(b} Purchase of stock-in-trade - - -
fe} Changes in inventories of finished ooods and work-in-progress 20 (300.57) 51.36
(e} Emplayee benefits expense 21 1.301.31 617.93
(e} Finance costs - - -
(Y Depreciation and amaortisation expense 22 12406 BB, 25
{a) Dther expenses 23 201.93 107.39
Total expenses (II) 2,148.51 1,166.07
I11. Profit before Share of profit of joint venture, exceptional items and tax (I-] 14.28 5.098
IV. Share of profit of joint ventures accounted for using the equity method 4,31 0.18
V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (IIT+IV) 18.59 6.16
1V, Exceptional items = =
VIIL. Profit before tax (V4+VI) 18.59 6.16
VIII. Tax expense 24
(&) Current tax 2.45 1.38
(b} MAT Credit Entitlernent (2.14) -
fe} Short provision of tax for earlier vear 0.68 -
{d} Deferred tax {credit)/ charage 5.43 0.07
Total tax expansea (VIII) 6.42 1.45
IX. Profit for the year (VII-VIII) 12.17 4.71
¥. Other comprehensive income £ =
Total other comprehensive income for the year - -
XI. Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (IX+X) 12,17 4.71
XII. Earnings per equity share 30
Mominal value per share 10
- Basle and Diluted 0.007 0.09
Significant accounting policies 3

The accampanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Fnancial Statements.

In terms of our report attached Far and on behal! of the board of directors of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
For §. K. Kapoor & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firmm Reqistration No, 0007450
Rajesh Choudhary
Chairman cum Manaoing Director
DIN: D928222%

V., B. Singh

Partner

Membership No. 073124 Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Sinah
Director cum CFO Company Secretary
DIN: 10059967 Membership Na, 12879

Place: Eanour Place: Kanour Place; Kanour

Dake: Augqust 25, 2023 Pate; Awgust 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows

L4

¥ In Crores

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 August 14, 2021 to March 31, 2022
A Cash Flow from Operating activities
Profit Before taxation 18.59 B6.16
Adjustments to reconcile profit after tax to net
Share of profit from Joint Venture (4.31} {0.18)
Decreciation and Amartization expense 134,06 B6.25
[ritenest Tnoome [, 03} B.z24
Government Grisnt (128,05 165,65}
Loss on Rejection af Machinery - 0.20
Profit on Sale of Property, plant and eguipment 19,93} . (0.30%
{72281 B.56
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (53.67) 14.72
Adiustments for chanoes in working capital :
Chanaes in Inventories {382.78) 35.82
Chanaes in trade recelvables (192111 (B92.71}
Chanaes in other fAinancial assats 5.02 {3943
Chanaes in other assets 56,44 {9.18%
Changes in trade pavables [54.34) B59.46
Chanaes in othar financial lisbilities 25,50 108.54
Changes in other current liabllities 340,36 BS1.R9
Chanages in Loans and advances {3.461 0.64
Chanaes in provisions 5.00 5.38
Net Changes in Working Capital [230.971 755.90
Cash Generated from Operations {284.64) 770.62
Direct Taxes {Paid)/Refurd (Mot} (8,79 {0:63Y
Met Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) {293.43) 769,
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Propertv, plant and eguioment and intanaible assats [12B.97) 137.10%
Proceeds fram Sale of Property, plant and eauloment and intancible assets 5,57 0.33
Capital Advance aiven B.lI6 (13.10)
Changes in other bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivatents 51960 {1.168.03)
i L 461,12 (H.497) {1.226.39)
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (8) 461,12 (1,226.3%)
C  Cash Flow from Financina Activities
Proceeds fram lsswee of Share Caoital 17487 528.37 ;
Shara Apglication Money Received 182.62 557.4% : 528.37
Wet Cash Flow used in Financing Activities {c) 557.49 528.37
Net Increase/ [Decrease) in cash and cash [(A)+([B}+(C) 725.18 71.92
Cash and Cash equivalent at October D1. 2021 {Refer Note 38) - 37.88
—Cagh and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the vear 105.78 -
__ Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the year B34.96 109.78
Reconciliation of cash and cash eguivaients
Paiticilars Year ended Year anded
March 31. 2023 | March 31, 2022
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise of: (Refer Note 7(d1)
Cash on Hand - -
Chegues on hand . -
Balances with Banks* B34.96 103,78
suurmmﬂrcmmmm 83496 | 10978
* Includes Fived deposits of | 50.00 Crores (Previous year | Nil) under llen with bank as Securlty Tor LT Facillty.
The accompanying nates are an integral part of these Consolidatad Financial Statements.
Notes:
1, The standalone cash fiow statement has been prepared under the indirect method 85 521 out In Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) “Statement
of Cash Flaws".
In terms of our report attached For and on Dehall of the board of directors of

Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
For §. K. Kapoor & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reagistration No, 000745C

Raiesh Choudhary

Chalrman cum Manaaing Director

DIN: 09282229

V. B. Singh

Fartmer

Mesmbership Mo, 073124 Sushil Sinha Manizh Kumar Sinah
Director cum CFO Company Secretary
Dlk; 10059967 Membershio No. 12879

Place: Kanpur Place: Kanour Place: Kanpur

Dabe: Auaust 25, 2023 Drate: Auaust 25, 2023 Daate: Auaust 25, 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

3 Corporate Information

Advanced Weapons & Equipment India Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Group”) 15 incorporated in India and
limited by shares (CIN No: U292 70UPZ0Z1G01150734) is one of the seven (7) new Defense PSUs formed by converting the
Ordnance Factory Board into fully Government owned Enterprises. The Group has been incorporated under the
Companies Act 2013 on 14th August, 2021 however, its commencement of business took place on 15t October 2021
notified by DDP. The registered office of the Group is located at OFC, Kalpi Road, Kanpur - 208009. It comprises of the
following production and non- production units: Rifle Factory Ishapore, Small Arms Factory, Kanpur, Gun & Shell
Factory, Cossipore, Ordnance Factory Tiruchirapalli, Ordnance Factory, Kanpur, Field Gun Factory, Kanpur, Gun
Carriage Factory, Jabalpur, and Ordnance Factory Project Korwa and non- production units at Ordnance Factories
Institute of Learning Ishapore,

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on August

25,2023
2. Basis of Preparation

a) Statement of Compliance
These consolidated financial statements are prepared on going concern basts following accrual system of
accounting and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended, and presentation requirements of Division Il of schedule [l of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS
compliant schedule 1) as applicable to financial statement.

b) Principles of Consolidation and equity accounting

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Advanced Weapons &
Equipment India Limited and its jointly controlled entity, Control is evidenced where the Group has power
over the investee or is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Power is demonstrated through
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control. The Group's investments in joint venture are accounted for using the eguity
method.

Equity Method

Under equity method, the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of
the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the joint venture since
the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the
joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group's OCI. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognizes its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
joint venture. The ageregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of joint venture is shown on the face of the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies
in line with those of the Group, After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is
mecessary Lo recognize an impairment loss on its investment in its joint venture. AL each reporting date, the
Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If
there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as 'Share of profit
of a joint venture in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Upon loss of joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment
at its fair value, Any difference between the carrying amount of the jeint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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c) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair

value; and

- Plan assets in the case of employees defined benefit plans that are measured at fair value.
The methods used to measure fair values are discussed in notes to the financial statements.
Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to
acguire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the
abligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the
mormal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset of paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date.,

d) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ("INR”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest Rupees in Lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule (11, except when otherwise indicated. Figures less
than ? 50,000/ - which required to be shown separately are shown as actuals in bracket.

a) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is current when itis:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve manths after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when:

. Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

* It is hield primarily for the purpose of trading:

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as nen-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle of the Group is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash or cash equivalents. As the Group's normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to

be twelve months.
3. Significant Accounting Policies
1. Property, plant and equipment

1.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably,

ltems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost comprises purchase price
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and the present value of initial estimate of cost of
dismantling, removal and restoration. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

subseguent measurement 15 done at cost less accumulated depreciation/ amaortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment that are significant in value and have different useful
lives as compared to the main asset, they are recognized separately.

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be effected,
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final settlement.
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Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognized in the
statement of profit and loss on consumption.

The acquisition or construction of some items of property, plant and equipment although not directly
increasing the future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant and equipment, may
be necessary for the Group to obtain future economic benefits from its other assets. Such items are
recognized as property, plant and equipment.

1.2 Subsequent Cost

Subsequent costs Subsequent expenditure is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost
of the iterm can be measurad reliably,

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it meets the asset
recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection and overhaul is
derecognized.

The cost of replacing major part of an item of property, plant and egquipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the jtem if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized
regardless of whether the replaced part has been depreciated separately. |f it is not practicable to determine
the carrying amount of the replaced part, the Group uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what
the cost of replaced part was at the time it was acguired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and Loss as and when incurred.

1.3 Decommissioning costs

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost
of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

1.4 De-recognition

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use
ar upon their disposal. Gains and losses on de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between sale proceeds from disposal, if any, and the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In circumstance, where an item of property, plant and equipment is abandoned, the net carrying cost relating
to the property, plant and equipment is written of f in the same period.

1.5 Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided 50 as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013 except for the assets where useful life of assets as per Schedule |l and
management estimates are different. In case management estimates are different depreciation is charged as
per management estimates of useful life.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013,

When parts of an itern of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful life
of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is propertionately charged for the period of use. Assets
other than Building, Plant and Machinery costing less than ¢ 10,000/ - are depreciated at 100%.

Major overhaul and inspection costs which have been capitalized are depreciated over the period until the
next scheduled outage or actual major inspection/overhaul, whichever is earlier, Capital spares are
depreciated considering the useful life ranging between 2 to 40 years based on technical assessment.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the expenditure incurred will flow to the
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Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a property, plant and
equipment along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off prospectively over the revised
useful life determined by technical assessment.

Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with Ind AS 105 and the date that
the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Useful Life as
prescribed
Sr. | Asset Schedule II of t:: E’umrt';.
Companies  Act,
2013
I Factory Building 30 yaars 60 years
I1 Other than Factory Buildings 60 years &0 years
111 | Roads {other than RCC & RCC) 5 & 10 years 10 Years
IV | Plant & Machinery 15 Years 20 Years
W Furniture and Fixtures Includin Air
Conditioners and office Equlprrsent} ? M yeals 107icars
VI | Vehicles - - o & Years 7 Years
VIl | Computer (Hardware and Software) 386 Years 5 Years
VIII | Laboratory Equipment (including all QC
equipment but excluding gauges wused In 10 Years 10 Years
inspection)
X Electrical Installations and Equipment 10 Years 10 Years
X Hydraulic Works, pipelines and sluices
{including Submersible & Centrifugal Pump 10 Years 10 Years
etc.)
2. Capital works in Progress

Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as on the reporting
date, is classified under capital work- in-progress,

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and the borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction
of qualifying asset.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they are ready
for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related assets,

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account received from the
contractors.

Unsettled liabilities for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted for on
estimated basis as per terms of the contracts.

3. Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

3.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Anintangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are recognized at cost.
Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises purchase price including import duties, non -refundable taxes after deducting trade discounts
and rebates and any directly attributable expenses of preparing the asset for its intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process fs technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the
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Group intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset,

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assats are carried as intangible
assets under development till they are ready for their intended use.

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria above are recognised as an
expenditure.

1.1 Subsequent costs

Subseguent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

3.3 De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon
their disposal. Gain or loss on de-recognition of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if amy, and the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

3.4 Amortization

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, 15 amortized on straight-line method over a period of legal
right to use or 5 years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized on straight-line method over
the peried of legal right to use or life of the related assets , whichever is less. The amortization period and the
amortization method of intangible assets with a finite useful life is reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, wherever required.

4. Mon -Current Assets Held for Sale
The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sate rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification as held for sale, and actions required to complete the plan of sale should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Mon-Current Assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair
value less cost of disposal.

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.
5. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS 109
- Financial Instruments (b) interest expense on lease liabilities recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116- Leases’ and
(c) exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/ development or erection
of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale,

When the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a gualifying asset, the borrowing costs incurred
are capitalized. When Group borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of all borrowings that are
outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection of the gualifying
asset, However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, are-excluded from this calculation, until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

Income earned on temporary investment made out of the borrowings pending utilization for expenditure on the
gualifying assets is deducted from the berrowing costseligible for capitalization.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for their intended use are complete. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of
profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the gualifying assets is interrupted
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Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

6. Leases
Group as a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract contains
alease, at inception of a contract. Acontract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (1) the contract invelves the use of an identified
asset (1) the Group has substantially all of the econamic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (3) the Group has the right tadirect the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use  asset (ROU) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
{shart-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subseguently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events ar
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets, In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initiatly measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease ar, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.,

Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as operating lease or a finance lease based on the recognition criteria specified in Ind As 116-
Leases.

a) Finance Lease:

At commencement date, amount equivalent to the "net investment in the lease” {5 presented as a Receivable.
The implicit interest rate is used to measure the value of the "net investment in Lease".

Each lease payment is allocated between the Receivable created and finance income. The finance income 1s
recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss over the lease period 50 as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment in Lease.

The asset is tested for de-recognition and impairment requirements as per Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

Lease modifications, if any are accounted as a separate lease if the recognition criteria specified in the
standard are met.

b) Operating lease;
The group recognizes lease payments from operating leases as income on either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis, if required. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
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term. Lease medifications, if any are accounted as a separate lease if the recognition criteria specified in the
standard are met.

7. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the assets
recaverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. It
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent af
those from other assets of the Group.

In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

When the carrying amount of an asset or COU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared separately for each
of the Group's CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally
covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed jts
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

B, Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition. In case of Finished goods
and work in progress cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates, trade discounts and other similar items.

As per Para 32 of Ind-As 2 , materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and
non-moving items of stores and spares is ascertained on review and provided for.

Steelscrap is valued at estimated realizable value.

9. Investments in associates and joint ventures

Investments in associates and joint ventures are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less
accumulated impairment losses, if any as per Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.

10. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability only when it becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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a) Financial assets

i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets, which are not valued at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial

recognition.
(i) Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
. Financial assets at amortised cost
. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)
. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)
. Financial assets at amortised cost:

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (5PPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Afinancial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (5PPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FYTOC| category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the
Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to PEL. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FYTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FYTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all changes recognised in
Statement of profit and loss under head. Interest income on such investment is presented under " other income™.

(1) Derecognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset is derecognised when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or
The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’
arrangement? and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transterred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
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Whien it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are eguity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change
in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external
or internal changes which are significant to the Group's operations. Such changes are evident to external
parties, A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity
that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification | classification
Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous
amortized cost and fair value s
recognised in P&L,

FWTPL Amortised Fair wvalue at reclassification date
Cost becomes its new gross carrying amount,
EIR is calculated based on the new gross
carrying amount,

Amortised cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous
amortised cost and fair value s
recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due
to reclassification,

FVOCI Amortised Fair wvalue at reclassification date
cost becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost,

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date
becomes its new carrying amount. No
other adjustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair
value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI s
reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date,
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(v} Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
. Trade recefvables or any contractual right to recefve cash or another financial asset that result from

transactions that are within the scope of Ind A5 11 and IndAS 18
The Group follows simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

L Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, if
they da not contain a significant financing component
. Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 that

contain a significant financing component, if the Group applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and

- All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17
The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recagnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECLis used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there 15 no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-manth ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a partion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Group is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial instrument.

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms

ECL fmpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as fncome/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under the head "Other expenses” in the
P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described belaow:

* Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e, as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ arigination.

b) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised jnitially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair
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value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributablie to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

{ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial labilities held for trading and financial
labilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial labilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing In the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-A5 109,
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FYTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to PEL. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss,

. Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the Liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amaortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings.

{iif) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when, and only
when, it 15 extinguished i,e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing Uability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments; such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OC| and later reclassified to profit
or loss when the hedege item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast
transaction subseguently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial Hability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

. Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment
- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a

particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes toapply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
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hedge. The documentation includes the Group's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the
hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and
how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure
to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be
highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongging basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges
The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance
costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amaortised through profit or foss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation
may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for
changes inits fair value attributable to the risk being hedged,

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative changein
the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with
acorresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and Lloss.

(i) Cash flow hedges

The effective partion of the gain or loss an the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commaodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in
the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance
costs and the ineffective portion relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss,
such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale oceurs.
When the hedeged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as
OCl are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part
of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, torealise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

11, Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that

the transaction tosell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, Or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
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econamic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.
For assets and |iabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

The Group's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external valuers is
decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Group's external
valuers, which valuation technigues and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required
to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents,

Management, in conjunction with the Group's external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset
and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
mature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value., Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant

notes,

- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

" Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

. Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition
. Financial instruments (including these carried at amaortised cost)

12. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Aprovision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance
cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration reguired to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of reimbursement, if any.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Where it is
not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote,
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Ccontingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
accurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the financial statements.

Provision for expenditure on account of performance guarantee & replacement / repair of goods sold is made on the
basis of trend-based estimates. In cases where a trend is not ascertainable, provision for warranty is made based on the
hest estimates of management.

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or Less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

14, Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in Statement of Profit or
Loss on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of depreciable asset are recognized as incormne in statement of profit and
loss on a systematic basis over the period and in the proportion in which depreciation is charged.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset
by equal annual instalments.

15. Revenue Recognition

A, Revenue from Contract with Customers
i, The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of Artillery Gun, Field Gun, Ordnance & Small Arms and
related services. Revenue is recognized when (or as) the group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised goods or services (i.e., an Asset) to a Customer.

iif. Satisfaction of performance obligation over time

a, Revenue is recognised overtime where the transfer of control of goods or services take places over time by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation, if one of the following
criteriais met:

- The group's performance entitles the customer to receive and consume the benefits simultanecusly as the
group performs

- The group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced

" The group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the group and the group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

b Progress made towards satisfying a performance obligation is assessed  based on the ratio of actual costs
incurred on the contract up to the reporting date to the estimated total costs expected to complete the
contract. If the outcome of the performance obligation cannot be estimated reliably and where it is probable
that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred.

c. In case of AMC contracts, where passage of time is the criteria for satisfaction of performance obligation,
revenue is recognised using the output method.,

it Satisfaction of performance obligation at a point in time
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a, In respect of cases where the transfer of control does not take place over time, the group recognises the
revenue at a point in time when it satisfies the performance obligations.

b. The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains control of the asset. The indicators for
transfer of control include the following:

The group has transferred physical possession of the asset

The customer has legal title to the asset

The customer has accepted the asset

when the group has a present right to payment for the asset

the customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. The transfer of significant risks
and rewards ownership is assessed based on the Inco-terms of the contracts.

Ex-Works contract- In case of Ex-works contract, revenue is recognised when the specified geods are unconditionally
appropriated to the contract after prior Inspection and acceptance, if required.

FOR Contracts - In the case of FOR contracts, revenue is recognized when the goods are handed over to the carrier for
transmission to the buyer after prior inspection and acceptance, if stipulated, and in the case of FOR destination
contracts, if there is a reasonable expectation of the goods reaching destination within the accounting period.

iv. Measurement
a. Revenue is recognized at the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amount collected on behalf of third parties.

In case of price escalation and ERY, revenue (s recognised at most likely amount to be realised from customer in line
with contractual terms.

b. In case where the contracts involve multiple performance obligations, the group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on the relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Bundled Contracts - In case of a Bundled contract, where separate fee for installation and commissioning or any other
separately identifiable component is not stipulated, the Group applies the recognition criteria to separately
identifiable components (sale of goods and installation and commissioning, etc. ) of the transaction and allocates the
revenue to those separate components based on stand-alone selling price.

Multipie Elements - In cases where the installation and commissioning or any other separately identifiable component
is stipulated and price for the same agreed separately, the Group applies the recognition criteria to separately
identified components (sale of goods and installation and commissioning, etc.) of the transaction and allocates the
revenue to those separate components based on their stand-alone selling price.

V. Penalties

Penalties (including levy of liquidated damages for delay in delivery) specified in a contract are not treated as an
inherent part of Transaction Price if the levy of same is subject to review by the customer.

vi. Significant financing component

Advances received towards execution of Defense related projects are not considered for determining significant
financing component since the objective is to protect the interest of the contracting parties,

B. Other Income

i. Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options} but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

fi, Insurance claims
Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Group is reasonably certain of
their ultimate collection.
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fii. Rental Income
Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless increase in rentals are in line with expected inflation or otherwise justified.

iv. Other Income
Other income not specifically stated above is recognized on accrual basis.

16. Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits
All employes benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term benefits. Such
benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc,
and the same are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

17. Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OC| or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCl or
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year computed as per the provisions of Income
Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respectof previous years.

Deferred tax Is recognized using the balance sheet method, an temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses, Deferred Lax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognitionof an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the tempaorary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all takable temporary differences, except:

. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill ar an asset or Uability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
materialize, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against the current tax
liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in OCl or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCl or equity, respectively.

Adeferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temparary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the sufficient
taxable profits will be available in future to allow all or part of deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time that the liability
to pay the related dividend is recognized. The income tax consequences of dividends are recognized in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the Group originally recognized those past transactions or
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Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. MAT credit is
recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the future taxable profit will be available against which MAT credit can be utilized.

Foreign Currency transaction and Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot exchange rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it arises.

Men-monetary items denominated in foreign currency which are measured in terms of historical cost are recorded using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Hon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OC| or profit or
loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In case of advance consideration received or paid in a foreign currency, the date of transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is
when the Group inftially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares that would be issued on conversion of atl the dilutive potential ordinary shares into crdinary shares.,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in IndAS7-Statement of
Cash Flows.

Segment Reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108-'Operating segments’, the operating segments used to present segment infarmation are
identified an the basis of internal reports used by the Group's management to allocate resources to the segments and
assess their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Group's 'Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODMW
within the meaning of Ind A5 108. The indicatars used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with
performance assessment measures put in place.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate expenses, finance costs, income
tax expenses and corporate income that are not directly attributable to segments.

Revenue directly attributable to the segments is considered as segment revenue. Expenses directly attributable to the
segments and common expenses allocated on a reasonable basis are considered as segment expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment,
Capital Wok in Progress, intangible assets other than goodwill and intangible assets under development.

Segment assets comprise property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, capital work in progress, intangible assets
under development, advances for capital expenditures, trade and other receivables, inventories and other assets that
can be directly or reasonably allocated to segments. For the purpose of segment reporting, property, plant and
equipment have been allocated to segments based on the extent of usage of assets for operations attributable to the
respective segments, Unallocated assets comprise investments, income tax assets, corporate assets and other assets
that cannot reasonably be allocated to segments,
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Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities in respect of a segment and consist principally of trade payabie,
payable for capital expenditure and other payables, provision for employee benefits and other provisions. Unallocated

liabilities comprise equity, income tax liabilities, loans and borrowings and other liabilities and provisions that cannot
reasonably be allocated to segments.

Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.
The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue. Mon-adjusting events are events
that are indicative of conditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the
reporting date are not accounted but disclosed.

Exceptional Item

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an
understanding of the performance of the Group is treated as an exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the notes
to accounts.

Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements reguires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or labilities
affected in future periods. The estimates and management’s judgments are based on previous experience & other
factors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from thess estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements and / or key sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset.,

Property, Plant & Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The depreciation charge
with respect to such asset is derived based on the estimated useful life of the asset and its residual value.

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period,

Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on estimates and assumptions
regarding in particular the expected market outlook and future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could
result in impairment.

Revenue recognition

The Group assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is acting as a principle or as an
agent by analysing whether the Group has primary abligation for pricing latitude and exposure to credit / inventory risk
associated with the sale of goods, The Group has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent basis
where its business partner is acting as an agent. Hence, sale of goods to its business partner is recognised once they are
sold to the end customer.

Assets held for sale

Significant judement is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for sale under Ind AS 105 - ‘Non-
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current assets held for sale and discontinued operations. In assessing the applicability, management has exercised
judgment to evaluate the availability of the asset for immediate sale, management's commitment for the sale and

prabability of sale within one year to conclude if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.

5. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and
volatility, Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

6. Income Taxes

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, including amount
expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

7. Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realisable value is estimated to be lower than the inventory
carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into account various factors, including prevailing sales
prices of inventory item, the seasonality of the item’s sales profile and losses associated with expired / slow-maoving
inventory items.

8. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is
based on available data frem binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU
being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

9. Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 37-
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events
require best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should circumstances
change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

The Group has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which are not recognized on the
balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against
the Group.

There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are
not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent
liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the Financial Statements. Although there can
be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Group invalved, it is not expected
that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 (c) Loans
2in Crores |
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current i i
Current
Loans to
- Employees 3.97 0.51
3.97 0.51
‘Total Loans 3.97 0.51]
Note:

1. Mo Loans are due from Directors-or to firm / private company where director is interested

2. Mo loans ar advances In the nature of loans are granted to promotors, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person that are repavable on demand
ar without specifying anv terms or period of repayment.

7 [(d) Cash and cash equivalents t in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2033 2022

Cash an hand - -
Balance with Banks

In Current accounts 170.11 7629
Deposit with bank having maturity less than 3 months* 664.85 33.449
Total cash and cash equivalents 834.96 109.78|

* Under lien with bank as Security for LC Facility of 11 50.00 Crores (Previous vear | Nil)

7 (8] Other bank balance Lin Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023
Denosit with bank having maturty mare than 3 months and kess than 12 months® 575.00 1.166,03
| Total other bank balances 575.00 1,168.03 |
* Undes lign with bank as Securlty for LC Facility | earmarked saainst EMD of = 25.00 Crored [Previous vear  56.28 Crares)
7,01} Gther financial assets £ Crgres
Particulars As at March 31, | As ot March 31,
2023 2022

[Unsecured. considérad aood unless othe nwise skated)
Non-current
Security doposis 183 20,25
Bank denosits with maturity of more than 12 months® 73147 -

3174 20.25
Curront
Security deposits 354 717
Interest fcoruesd .54 025
Income: receivabis .55 -

12,63 742
| Total other financial assets 104,37 27,67
* Under lien with bank as Security for LT Faclity / esrmarked against EMD of = 32.26 Crores (Previous vear Wil
7 [a) Financial Instrumeanis by category

bin Crares)
Particulars 3
Cost Falr value Fair value through | Amortised cost Total
through Profit Other
and Loss Comprehansive
(FWTPLY Incmme [FVTINCTY

Investrment a.e3 - - - B.83
Trode receivables = - - Ay .44 Gal.44
| - - - 3.497 a.497
Cash and cash equivakents - - - £34.96 B34.96
Other bank baiances = = = 575.00 575,00
|Qither financial asgels z z 104.37 104,37
|Total Financial assots 5,83 = = 2,066.74 | = 2.175.57 |
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Lin Crores)
Particulars Am ol March 31, 303
Cost Fair valun Fair valus through | Amortised cost Total
through Profit Other
TEWTEL b 1 FEVTIRCTY
EnaREITIEnE 452 . 4.52
Trade receivables = = z 45631 436,33
Lo@ns - E - .51 051
Cash and cash sauleabents = = - 109,78 109,78
Dther bank balanoes # e = L.168.03 .‘I....'I.I_B,.IIZ-
g 5 = - P AT 6F |
4,52 - - L7623 1. 766,84 |
1. Financsal ingtruments rek managamant o0iestives and oolioes, refer ot 34
&, Fair value disclosure for financial assets and lishilties snd foir veloe bierschy refer Note 33,
\Moie 8 | Other agsets Tl Crpres |
Particulars A5 &t March 31, | As st March 31,
2023 023
FURRECErEd, CoiGidarad oo LUnlass g reiss sratad)
Nan-current
Capital advances A 2310 ]
Jesit 1a.m ]
CuFrant
AdwAnceE Ba suoifirs £2.40 154041
Balance wiih Govarnment Authorities (Refer naba [} below] 6977 3B
Advance to efmolovees 177 =
Other Curment Assois = 001
13387 TN
1 L AL
MNotes ©
11 Balance with Government Autharities mamniy consists of mout credit avaibed.
[H] o atvances mre due from directorg o pramatens of the Company eliber severally o jGlntly with by persen,
tin Crofes
Az ot March 31, | As ot March 31,
2023 | X033
Raw matersls and components 1,049.00 D650
Raw materials in bansik 1.13 262
Work-in-grogress L0137 100148
Finéghed ganos 239.88 33,58
|Seran iFai 18,97 |
| Total 1410730 2 2.037.95
Mote:
11 Inventory write downs are accoanted. considerma the nature of inventory. asemo and et replssable value, dccordinoly 0 16257 Crores {Frevious vemr
270.93 Crores| hes besn rovided. The chanoes in wiite downs are recognised ac an exnense in tha Statement of Profit and Loss [ Roafor Note Mo, (7))
MNote 10 : Enuity share capital:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Ho. of shares Rs. in Crores Mo. of shares Rs. in Crores
Authorised share capital -
Eouity shares af 10 aach 20.500.000.000 20,500.00 15.000.000,000 15.000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Eoultw shares-of 10 esch 17.123.910.000 17.133.91 528.370.000 528.37
| Total 17,123.910,000 | 17.123.91 528.370.000 | 528.37
10.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding ot the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period :
Particulars As st March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
| MNo.ofshares | RS in Crores |
AL the baginning of the period 528,370,000 53037 - -
Add: Issug of Share Capital In cash 374 870,000 374.87 - -
Add: Issue of Share Capital non cash {Rofer Note 10,2} 16,220,670.000 16.220.67 528,370,000 528,37 |
[Dutstanding at the end of the vear 17,123,910,000 17,123.91 | 7 [ s38.a7|

10.2. Issue of Equity Shares

By wirtua of the Memorandum of Understanding dated September 29, 2021 entared into between Presendent of India and the Company, the sctivities of
Grdinance Factory Board under Deportment of Defence Production, Ministry of Defence including assets and lmbilites, have been transferred to tha
Compasy w.ef. appainted date e, Dctober Q1 2021, The conaideration payable was ageeed In the form of equity shares to be ssued by the Company Lo
the Government of India, based on the fair value of the net assels transferred to the Company. Basod on the fair valua of the net assets, the Company has
lssued 16,22,06,70.000 shares of = L0/- each fully paid amounting te  16,220.67 Crores to the Government af [ndia The difference between the amount
recorded as sharg capital lssued and fair value of net assets transferred to the Company has been transferred to Capital Reserve.

10.3. Rights, Proferences and Restrictions attached to the equity shares :

The Company has one class of shares having par valee of 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share hebd.
The final dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meating. In the avent of liquidation, the squity shareholders am aligible to recelve the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in propartion to thelr shareholding

10.4. Number of Shares held by each sharehalder holding more than 5% Shares in the Comoany

Mame of the Shareholder ] ﬁ : EP Eg E:
17.123.910.000 100.00

|Govermnment of India (Including nominees]
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

10.5. Sharcholding of Promoters
17,123,910,000 106,00 528,270,000 100,00

My, of shar
528,370,000

Governmeht af India [Includbng nominess)
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10.6. Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts :
Mil

10.7. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management:
Refer Mote 35.

Note 11 : Other Equity Tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
Capital reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 4.25 -
Add: Adjustment on Implementation of Ind AS {Refer Note 38) - 4.25
Balance at the end of the year 4.25 4.25
Capital reserve on Business Reorganisation
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Created during the year (Refer Note 10.2) (16,220.67) -
Balance at the end of the year (16220.67) -
Share application monay pending allotment
Balance as per last financial statements - -
Addition during the vear 182.62 -
Balance at the end of the year 182.62 =
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 2,087.95 -
Add: Adjustment on Implementation of Ind AS (Refer Note 38) - 2.086.17
Less : Deferred Tax on Ind AS Implementation - (3.02)
Add: Adjustment of share in past profit on recognition of investment = 0.09
in Joint Venture {Refer Note 38)
Restated balance on Ind AS Implementation 2,087.95 2,083.24
Add: Profit for the year 12.17 4.71
Balance at the end of the year 2,100.12 2,087.95
Total Other equity (13,933.68) 2,092.20

a. Capital reserve

b. Capital reserve on Business Reorganisation

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows

Capital Reserve represents adiustments on recoqnition of Investment in Joint Venture,

Capital Reserve on Business Reorganisation represents the difference between the amount recorded as
share capital issued and falr value of net assets transferred to the Company
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12 (b) Other financial liabilities 1in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
MNon-current - -
Current
Pavable to employees 118.05 76.93
Security Deposits from customers and others 17.58 165.12
Others 18.29 34.97
_____153.92 ] = 128.02
Total 153.92 128.02 |
12 {c) Financial liabilities by category tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Fair value through | Amortised cost Total
Profit and Loss
{FVTPL)
Trade pavable - 294,19 294,19
Other Financial Liabilities = 128.02 128.02
Total Financial liabilities - 422.21 422,21
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
Fair value through | Amortised cost Total
Profit and Loss
(FVTPL)
Trade pavable - 388.53 38B.53
Other Financial Liabilities % 128.02 128.02 |
Total Financial liabilities - 516.55 516.55

1. Financial instruments risk management objectives and policles, (Refer Note 34)
2. Fair value disclosure for financial assets and liabilities and fair value hierarchy. {Refer Note 33)

Note 13 : Provisions tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2023
Long-term = =
Short-term
Provision for Warranties 10.38 5.38
JJ
Total 10.38 5.38
Movement of provisions 1in Crores
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2033 |
Opening Balance 5.38 -
Provision recoanised during the yvear 5.26 5.38
Amount wused during the year 0.26 -
lozi Balance 10.38 5.38

The description of the nature and purpose of Provisions is as follows;

Provision for Warranties

The Company has made warranky provision on account of performance guarantes and replacement/ repairs
of goods sold,

Note 14 : Governmant grants tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022

Non-current

Deferred income 1,837.45 1,998.74
b 1,837.45 | L 998.74

Current

Deferred income 121.47 53.84

121.47 93.84 |
Total 1,958.92 2,092.58
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MNotes:

1. Movement of Government grants tin Crores

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023

Balance as on October 1, 2021 (Refer Note 38) - 2,158.24

Balance at the beginning of the yvear 2,092.59 -

Released to statement of profit and loss (Refer Note 18) 128,05 65.65

Adjusted against sale / discarded assets 5.61 -

Total Government Grant 1,958.93 | 2,092.59

2. The Company has requested Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India for giving opinion on accounting treatement of Government Grant to be treated as Deferred Income
in proportion of depreciation charge. The Company Is awaiting the opinion from EAC. Pending such opinion,
the Company has followed the same accounting treatment as applied In previous year,

B97.83 Crores opening contract llability,
of related performance obliation.
2. Includes

Note 15 : Other current liabilities tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Advance from customers (Refer Mote 1 Below) 1.141.05 897.83
Statutory dues 95.96 39.32
Payable to Government of India (Refer Note 2 Below) 57.B3 8.30
Other liabilities 0.01 0.04
Total 1,294.85 945.49
MNote:

1. Advances including progressive payments recelved from customers are classified as contract lability, Out of
676.44 Crores has been recongised as Sales cuompletion

37.75 Crores realsed by Ministy of Defence against Renewal and Replacement Fund.

1. Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue based on Geography

Note 16 : Current Tax Asset / (Liability) tin Crores
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax-TDS) - (0,70}
Advance Tax (TDS] (Net of Provision} 4.96 E
Total 4.96 (0.70)]
Mote 17 : Revenue from operations
¥in Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale of Products * 1,910.97 1,.076.34
Sale of Services 1.97 0.50
Other Operating Income
Disposal of Scrap and Surplus [ Unserviceable Stores 26,38 11.70
Foreign Exchange Gain - 0.08
Total 1,939.32 1,088.62
* Includes  152.40 Crores addition of profit element of 7.5 % to the present issue price - Grandfathering of Indents

pending with post corporatisation as approved by Minstry of Defence vide Diary No, 123/1F/DP-1 dated 21.3.2023.

tin Crores

Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Domestic 1,936.16 1,088.62
Export 3.16 -

Revenue from Operations 1,939.32 1,088.62
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Motes :

performance obligation is satisfied,

contract.

I1. Reconciliation of revenue from operation with contract price

(d) Warranties provided are primarily in the nature of performance warranty.

{c) The Company turnover mainly includes supply of defence electronics equipments and systems.

(e} Contracts entered into with the customers, typically do not have a return/refund clause.

(f} No non-cash considerations are recelved/given during the current yvear as well as previous year,

{a) In majority of the contract, performance cbligation is satisfied "at a point in time" which Is primarily
determined on custemer obtaining contraol of the asset. One of the prime (ndicatar considerad far this |s transfer
of significant risk and rewards to the customer based on Inco terms. Where a contract involves multiple
performance abligation, the criteria spacified in Ind AS 115 Is applied to determine the point in time when the

{b) Contract with the customer normally do not contain significant financing component and any advance
payment received and / or amount retained by customer is with Intention of protecting either parties to the

tin Crores

March 31, 2023

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost

Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contract with customers as per the contract price 1,939.32 1,088.62
Less : Adjustment made to contract price on account of:

a} Discounts and Rebates = =
b) Sales Return - -
Revenue from Operations 1,939.32 1,088.62
MNote 1B : Other income tin Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to

March 31, 2022

- Fixed Deposits 64.03 B.24
Scrap Income (¢ 5.170/-) 0.68
Government Grants {Refer Note 143 128.05 65.65
Rent Incoma 6.80 2,51
Provislon no longer reguired 175 +
Profit on sale of Property, plant and eguipmant (Nat) 9.93 0.30
Miscellaneous income 12.91 6,05
Total 223.47 83.43
MNote 19 : Cost of Raw materials and Components tin Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to

March 31, 2023 |
Inventories as at October 1, 2021 (Refer Note 38) - 945.57
Inventories as at beginning of the vear 965.30 -
Add : Purchases during the year™ 895,48 342.87
1,860.78 1,288 44
Less : Inventory at the end of the yvear 1,049.00 965.30
Total B811.78 323.14

* Includes 32.16 Crores addition of cost element of 7.5 % to the present issue price - Grandfathering of Indents
pending with post corporatisation as approved by Minstry of Defence vide Diary No, 123/1F/DP-1 dated 21.3.2023.

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods
Waoark=-in-Progress
Scrap

Inventories as at October 1, 2021 (Refer Note 38)
Finished goods
Work-in-Progress
Scrap

1in Crores
Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
329.88 30.58
101371 1,001.48
17.01 18.97
1,360.60 1,060.03
= 49,20
- 1,051.28
- 10,91
- 1,111.39
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Inventories as at beginning of the year
Finished goods 39.58 -
Work-in-Progress 1.001.48 =
Scrap 18.97 -
1,060.03 -
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories {300.57) 51.36
Note 21 : Employee benefits expense tin Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
Salaries and Wages 1,224.51 580.91
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 28) 14.06 10.48
Staff welfare and training expenses 2.68 1.31
Contract Labour 50.06 25.23
Total 1,301.31 517.93 |
: i n tin Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5) 132.81 65.88
Amortization of Intangible assets {Refer note &) 1.25 0.37
Total 134.06 66.25
Note 23 : Other expenses tin Crores
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021
rch to March 31,
Power and fuel 81.19 41.09
Printing, stationery and communication 2.54 0.90
Commission and Brokerage 0.36 0.06
Rates and taxes 1.41 0.60
Repairs ;
To Building 12.67 5.57
To others 12.64 5.46
Advertisement and publicity 0.09 0.03
Computer Expenses 0.70 0.32
Software Expenses 0.09 0.04
Meeting & Conference Expenses 0.44 0.82
Security Charges 6B.05 33.58
Legal and Professional charges 1.81 0.62
Transportation Charges 4,14 1.81
Inspection and Testing 5.82 0.90
Conveyvance and Travelling expenses 1.82 0.63
Exhibition Expenses 0.31 -
Books and Periodicals 0.25 0,12
Corporate Social Responsibility {Refer Mote 36) 0.12 =
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note (i) below) 0.14 0.06
Bank charges 0.07 0.04
Research & Development Expenses 0.11 .55
Rovalty Expenses 0.94 -
Foreign Exchange Loss 0.59 -
Miscellaneous expenses 5.63 14.19
Total 201.93 107.39 |
(i} Break up of Auditor's remuneration
Payment to Auditors as
Auditor 0.10 0.06
For taxation matters 0.02 -
For reimbursement of expenses 0.02 =
Total 0.14 0.06
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Mote 24 : Income tax
The maior comoaneant of incoma tax exoerse s as follows:
% in Crores)
PRrticulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Statemant of Profit ond Loss
Currert Tax 245 1.38
MAT Credit Entithement {2.14] .
-Ghort orovision of 1ax for gadier véar {.68 =
|__-Defurred tax gxpense/icradil) 343 0.7
-Current Tax = E
-Deferred bax expensei oedit) b =
|\Income tax expense{credit] reconnised in OCT 2 £
Recancilation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate:
(A Curremt tas Lin Crores)
Particulars Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March31.2023 | March 31,2022
Accounting orofit before tax 1859 616
Tax Ratz 33.384% 25.160%
Current tax axpenses oa Profit Defore tex experses at the enactad G20 155
mcame f2x rate In [ndia
Adiustment
Exgmot income/not Eabile 1o tax (3311 {0081
Cifference in Tax Rate e | {003
Unised Tax Credit available for offsetting aaainst future aable income [MAT Cradit Entitlement) 214] .
Short provisan of t3x for 2ariier vear 0.68 g
Expenciture not deductible for ta'net Bable to tax 047 0.95
Qthisrs. .64 =
| Total income tax expsnse/ [ credit) 7.86 145
|Effective @y rate {235% 1419%
B. Deferred tax
1in Croes|
Balance Sheet | Statament of Balance Sheet Statement of Profit |Adjusted to Retained
as ot Profit and Loss asat and Loss and OCT for Earnings an
Particulars and OCT for the the year ended on | Implementation of
year ended on Ind AS {Refer Nate
AT
March 31, 2033 | Merch 31, 2023 | March 31,3023 | March 31 2033 | October 01, 3031 |
Acrelerated depreciation for tax purbases 343 5.69 0.14 .14 E
Imbact of recatnition of Intandible assetz-Techrical Knowhow 167 1151 1.82 (L0 1.89
[mmact of recoanition of Intangible assets-Research & Devalopment 1402 0111 L3 . .
Unwsed Tax Cradit availabis for offsstting against future f2xable income (214} {2:14) -
[MAT Cradit Entitiemant] "
Defarred tax expensa/ (incoma) 338 0.07 1.89
Net deferred tax liabilithes 6.38 309
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
Deferrad bax labilities 852 309
Defarred t3x assets [2.14) -
|Deferred tax linbilitles (net) 6.38 309
Mote :
[1) The Group offsets tax assets and liabities & and eoly if It has & legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets and current fai
fabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabities ralate (o income taxes bevied by the samé tax authority
Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/({Liabilities], Net . 1in Crones
Piarticiturs Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March31,3033 | MWarch3] 2023
Dpening balance 105 1.89
Defarred Tax Liability recogmised dunng the year on recongfton of Research & Development - 1.13
Deferred Tax incoms/(experse) during the petiod recognisad bn profit or foss 3.28 0.07
Deferred Ta Income/{expense) during the periad recognissd in QC1 x = |
C mnce 6.38 3.08 |
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" Mote 33 : Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial labilities:
) Set out below |s a compartson, by class, of the casrying amaunts and fair valie of the Group's financial instruments, other than thase with carrying
Bmpunts that are reasansble spoooximatians of Fair

L in Croras
Particulars  Carrying smount |  Fair value | Carrying amount walue
As at March 31, [As at March 31, August 14, 2021 | August 14, 2021
2033 2023 to March 31, J022 Yo March 37, 2023
Financial assets
Inwastment at Cost .83 a6 4,53 4,54
£.83 B.H3 4,52 4,53
Financial Liabilities - - - .
L Tokal _ — _ =

The mampgement assessed that the feir values of cash and cash eguivalents, other bank belences, loans, trode recaivables, other current financiel assets, trade
paysbies snd other current financisl Babiifties spproximats their carying smounts lamaly dus ta the short-term matunties of thase instrements,

The fair value of the Mnancial- assets and liabilities is included al the amount-at which the nsttument could be exchanged in 8 current transaction betwean willing
partias, other than ina ferced oF liguidation sake. Tha folkawing methods and asswmptions wers used o estimate the falr values,

b} Fair value h
The follewing table provides the fair valua measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and Nabilties.

Quantitotive disclosures fair value messurement hisrarchy for sssets as st March 31, 2023 and March !li 1023

TEE
Quoted prices Significant
Particulars Total I active Significant observable inputs unobservable
markets {Level 2) inputs
{Level 1) {Level 3)
As at March 31, 2023
Assets measured at fair value = - - -
As at March 31, 2023
Assats measurad at Talr valua - - - =
Significant
Particulars Total in mctive Significant observable inputs uncbservable
markets {Level 2) inputs
(Lewel 1) {Level 3)
As at March 31, 2033
Linbilities messured at Fair value - - -
As at March 31, 2022
Liabilities measured at fair value - - - .

Fair value hisrarchy
Lewal 15 Lovel 1 hipranchy includes financial instruments measured wsing quoted prices, This includes lsted equity instrumants that have guoted prce. The fair value
of all eguity Instruments which are tradad In the stack exchanges is valued using the chosing price as-at the reporting period,

Lawel 2 The fair value of financial instruments that are nat traded inan ctive market (for exemple, treded bonds, over-the counter derivatives) ts detarminod
using valuatson techrgues which maximize the use of observable markel data and rely as little as pﬂ-‘S‘Sit’! an antity-specific astimates. [T all significent inputs
required to fair value an instrument ane chservable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Lawal 3: 11 one or more of the sgnificant mpus |8 not based on observable market data, the instrument 1§ included in leved 3. Thes /= the cass for unlisted egquity
securities, cantingant consideration and indemnification osset intodad in wel 3

Therdé Gre ng translesr betwesn level 1, 27 and 3 during 1he year.

The Group's palicy 1s to recognise transfers nto and transfers out of falr value Merarchy levels as at the end of the reporting persad

Note 29 : Related Party Transactions
As por the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosceras” (Ind AS 24), the related parties of the Group are as follows |

{a) Name of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

(I} Joint Venture
L1 Indo Russisn Rifles Private Limited
(11} Key Management Personnel
1 Mr Rajesh Choudhary Chairman and Managing Director
2  Mr. Chandraker Bhart Director (Government Nominee) (upto September 14,2022}
3 Mr Surendra Prasad Yadav Director {Government Nominee) (September 14,2022 to February 27,2023}
4 Mr. Jayant Kumar Director (Government Nominee) (w.e.f. February 27,2023}
5 Mr Akhilesh Kumar Maurya Director )
6 Mr. Ravin Kuishrestha Director cum CFO (upta February 28, 2023)
7 Ms Anupma Tripathi Director (upto January 31, 2023)
B Mr Biswajit Pradhan Diirector (w.e.l. February 01,2023)
%  Mr. Sushil Sinha Director cum CFO (w.e.f. March 01,2023}
10 M Manish Kumar Singh Company Secretary
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(b} Disclosure in respact of Relatad Party Transactions !

L in Em—r.:'
Key Managemant Personnel
Sr, |Particulars Joint Vantura and relatives Total
Tgrﬂﬂﬂ‘l!l! Yeaar anded / ns 5t Tﬂlﬂﬂﬂl’;ﬂlt
L] 5 Ll
2033 | Jo33 | 2033 | Jo33 | 3033 | 2033
(X} Transactions during the year .
Remuneration = - 1.35 .58 1.55 0,88
Laageg Ralfer note 1 Refar note 1 )
Bl Belaw
(I1)] Balances ss at year end
Investmants B.83 4.57 - - B.83 4,52

Mote:
1. The Groug has entered Into & Lease agresment with Indo Russian Rifles Privale Limited (a8 Joint Yenture of the Growp)

wherebry tho Group has given land measuring 8.65 acres along with building constructed on it and Plant and Machinery at a
combang measuring 50 acres on token rent of € 1/~ per annum for e period of 30 years,

(e} Disclosures pursuant to section 186({4) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Loans and Advances in the nature of ioans = 1. Nl

(d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Tranaaction enterad into with related party are made on Lerms squivalent to those that pravail in arm's length transactions,

(e} Commitments with related
The Group has nok provided any commitment (o the melated party .

(1) Transactions with key management personnel
Compensation of koy mansgement permonnel of the Groop

Particulars

[Enart-term amployes Danaiits
Terminalion banafits

TEQ mﬂ““ﬁh Ehiﬂ to k? ﬂhl‘i?ﬂlﬂﬂil EI‘!M%I I.EE ﬁ I
& amaunts disc In the table are the amounts recogn &% an axpenss during the reparting peno ed bo key

mariageamant personnel,

(@) Transaction with Gevernment and Government Related Entities
As AWELL Is a govarmment antity under thi control of Minstry of Dofoncs (Mo}, the Group has avalled exemption from detalied
disclosured required under Ind AS 24 wrt related party bransactions with government and government related entitles,

However ag reguired under Ind AS 24, following sre the ndividually significant transsctions

93% of the Group's Tumover, 100% of Trade Aeceivables and 99% of Cusbomer’s Advanoe B with respect to government and
povernmaent related entities,

Nate 30 ; Earning per share:

Fr—— Year ended August 14, 2021 to
March 31,2023 | March 31,2023 |
Earnings par share (Basic and Diluted)

Profit attributablo to ordinary eguity holders t in Crores 127 .

Weighted average number of equity shares for basie and Diluted EPS™ Mo, 15,938,015,562 52E,370,000

Nominal walug of equity shares As. ' 10,040 10,00
i s o007 0,09 |

* Rafer Note Ne, 10.2

Note 31 : Segment Reporting
The Ministry of Corparate Affairs vide notification fe 1/272014-CL-V dated 23rd February 2018 has exempted the
Govarnment companies engaged in Defence production bo the extent of application of Ind AS 108 on "Operatinfeg  ment”™.

Note 32 : Leases

A. Dperating Lease
1. The Group has entered into-a Lease agreement with Bharat Blectronics Limited whereby the Group has glven plat of land measuring 50
acres on tokon rent of T 1/-per annum for the period of 30 years.

B. Low Value Lease
1, The Group has @ken Land maasurng 4,15,083 Sq. FL. frem
Gowvernment of India on lease for 20 years ending on March 31,

2025 with
opbon of renewal by muteal consent at yeardy renk of © 0001 Crore.

2, The Group has taken Land measuring 29.42 scres of land from
Hindustan Aeronautics Limited (HAL) on lease for 30 years
ending on
Drecember 01, 2037 with option of renawal by mubeal consent  at pearty rent of © 1/~ per annum.

3. The Group has mken Land measuring 9.26 acres of land from
Hindustan Asronautics Limited (HAL) on kease for 30 years
anding on
March 17, 2043 with eption of renewal by mutual consent at yearly rent of £ 1/~ per annum,

All the above leases are considered a5 low value leases and hence no Right of Use Assets have been created,

C. Sub Leasa
1. The Group haa entered inla & Lease agreement iwleh Indo Ruddian Rifles Privats Limited (& Joint Venture af the Group) whersby the

Company has given land measuring 8.65 acres aleng with bullding constructad on it and Aant and Machinery at 8 combine maasuring 53 acres an

token rent of € 1/- per annum for te period of 20 years,
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c} Provision for expected credit losses:

#s the Group's debtors are predominantly the Government of India { Indian Defence Services, Ministry of Extemnal Affairs), Central Public Sector Undertakings
where the counter - parties have sufficlent capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is nil / negkigible; Accordingly, impairment on
account of expectsd credit losses is being assessed on a case to case basis in respect of dues outstanding fer significant perod of time as per the accounting
policy of the Growp. Further, management beligyes that the unimpaired amounts that are due is collectable in full, based on historical payment behaviour and
axtensive analysis of customer credit risk.

d} Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the rsk that the Group will encounter difficulty in measting the obligations associabed with iks financial labdlities that is settied by

delivering cash or another financial asset. Typically, the Group ensures that it has sufficlent cash on demand to mest expected operational
expenses including the servicing of financial obligations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial fiabiiities based on contractual undiscounted payments;
1 in Crores

Less than 1
Particulars 1
YEAF OF more

March 31, 2023

Trade payabies 294,19 =

financal liab 5 153.93- =

Total a48.11 -
March 31, 2022 _

Trade payables 358.53 -
Qther financial labilities 128.02 -
Tatal 516.55 -

The Group's standard contract terms provide thal, the Group receives advance payments from cusiomers pursuant to the applicable
contracts, incleding the Govermnment of India and the Indian Defence Services at the time of signing of any contract and milestone payments on
achievernent of physical milestongs, These payments are utilized to mest the Group's working capital needs (for the Group reguired to
maintain & high leval of working capital because the Group's activities are chamacterized by long product development periods and production
cycles). Furthar, payments to the Grooup by the Indian Deferce Services are reliant on the continuing availability of budgetary appropriations by
Gavernment of India and any disruptions to the availability of sech appropriations could adversely affect the Group's cashflows,

e) Market risk:

The Mimistry of Defence (Mol snd the Government of [ndia (Gol) have continued efforts to reform Defence rolatad policies such as the Defence
Acguisition Procedure 2020 (“DAP 2020") to promote private participation, a level playing field and the domestic Defence manufacturing Industry
and eco-system. While the MoD has given the highast prionty to Indigenously Designed, Developed and Manufactured {"1D0OM") products for copital
pracurement, the Group faces competition to be selected a4 the Indian production agency for such contracts. These policies have raised the
level of market comipetition in the areas in which e Group operates.

} Risk Mitigation Process:

Az & step of institutionallzing the risk management In the Group, an elaborate framewerk has been developed and the Group’s top
management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's nsk management framework. An important purpose
of the framework is to have & structured and comprehensive rsk management system Bcross the Group which enswres that the risks are being
properly identified and these risks. The risk management process includes risk Identificaton, risk assessment, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and
regular review and monitoring of risks. The Group's sk management policy aims to reduce volatility in financial statements while maintaining
balance between providing predictability In the Group's business plan along with reasonable participation In market movement,

Note 35 : Capital management:
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capltal incledes issued eguity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the eguity

holders of the Group. The primary cbjective of the Groups capital management s o ensure that it maniaing an efficient capital structure
and healthy capital ratios in arder to support Its business and maximise sharehoider value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in lght of changes In economic conditions or Us business requirements,
To maintain or adjust the capital struecture, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, raturn capial to shareholders or issue
oew shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt

Gearing ratio
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2023 |
Net debt (a) = P
Total Equity
Equity share capital (Refer note 10} 17,123.91 528,37
Dther equity (Refer note 11) {13,933,68) 2.092.20
Total Equity (b) 3,190.23 2,620.57
Net Debt to Equity Ratio {a/b) z =
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Note 38 : Restatment of Previous Financial Statemants

1 By virtue of the Memorandum of Understanding dated September 29, 2021 entered into between Presendent of India and the
Campany, the activities of Ordinance Factory Board under Department of Defence Praduction, Ministry of Defence Including assets
and liabilites, have been transferred to the Company woel. appointed date | e, October 01, 2021, The financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2022 are the first annual Ind AS financial stabtements, the Company has prepared in accordance with Tnd AS.

2 Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods anding on March 31,
2022, In prepanng these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at the appointed date Le,
October 1, 2021, the Company's date of transition e Ind AS. The Company had made certain adjustments in restating s prévious
financial statements prepared in commercial format by Defence Accounts Department, Ministry of Defence (Finance} Government of
india. Material adjustments are as follows:

a Adjustment on recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

b Adjustment on recognition of Investment 6 Joint Ventures

© Adjustment an valuation of financial assets and llabllities at their realisable value in compliance with Ind AS, Also, transition from
Cash method of accounting to Accural method of accounting also resulted into certain adjustments.,

d Adjustment on valuation of inventaories at lower of cost or realisable value,

e Adjustment on recognition of Government Grant related to Capital Expenditure as deferred income on & systematic basis over the

useful life of the assets for which It Is received,

Adjustment on derecognition of Preliminary Expenses

g Deferred Tax adjustments on Ind AS Implemaentation

=5

The Impact of the above adjustments were as follows:

Reconciliation of Equity

T _in Crores
As at
Particulars October 01,
2021 |
Equity under previous financial statement prepared in
commercial format by Defence Accounts Department, Ministry 2.934.09
of Defence (Finance) Government of India - A
Impact of valuation of Tnventaries {783.24)
Impact of recognition of Investmeant in Joint Venture .34
Impact of derecognition of Praliminary Expenses {6.94)
Tax impact on Ind AS adjustrments ;:1 89
Sub Total B (787.73)
BalanceC = A-B 2,146.36
Impact of valuation of Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 52.76
Impact af valuation of Financial Assets and Liabliities {154.48)
. Sub Total D (101.72}
Equityas per Ind ASE=C-D 2,044,649
Break up of Equity as per Ind AS
Captial Reserve 4.45
Retained Earnings 2,040.39
Total Equity as par Ind AS

3 Duwring the current year, the Company has identified certain adjustmants which pertains to previous year but not considered in the
previous financial statement. As per Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error, the Company has
restated the comparative amounts for the previous year. The nature of the prior period errors and its Iimpact on each financial
statermnent ling item has been disciosed as under:

Financial Statement Line I'tam

Assets - Increase/ (Decrease) 1 in Crores|
Property, Plant & Equipment 0.B4
Captial Work-in-Progress 0.51
Intangiblke Assets 3.38
Trade Receivable 4.93
Stock-in-Transit 0.14
Current Account with Bank 0.13
Security Deposits 1.60
Batance with Government Authorities 27.64
Advances to Suppliers {1.35)
Loan to Employees (2.08}
Assat Held for Sala EDJE!]
[Increase in Assots 53
abilities - (Increase)/Decrease 1 in Crores|
Sacurity Deposits SR
Accried Committed Liability 5.46
Trade Payables 325
Advances from Customers (0.29)
Statutory Dues {0.01)
Deferred Tax Liability (1.13)
_7.32 |
Net i | 42.85 |

4 After giving the above adjustment, Retained Earmings as on April 01, 2022 will be as under:

- % In Crores
Retained Earmings &s per previous financal Statements 2,040,359
Add: Increase due to above adjustments 42.85
Restated d Earnings as on 01, 2022 F1]
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Note 39 : Interest in Other Entity
Proportion of
Dwnership of Interest
Country of Asat | aq at March
Sr no. [Name of Entity Incorporatio | Activities | March 31,
# 2023 31, 2022
=Joint Venture
1|Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited | India [Defence [ a2.50%] 42.50%
{A) Group's Share in Contingent Liability of Joint Ventures
% in Crores
As at March | As at March
Sr no. |Particulars
: 31,2033 | 31,2033
1 [Disputed Demand - e
2|Corporate gaurantee 5859 =
3|Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debts - -
(B) Group's Share in Capital Commitments of Joint Ventures
t in Crores
8% no. |Particulire As at March | As at March
1 |Estmated amount of Contracts remaining 1o be
executed on capital account and not provided for
(MNet of advances) 0.03 x
Mote 40 : Additional information pursuant to Schedule 111 of Companies Act 2013
“Eap_l finandlal year ending on / as at March 31, 2023
Net Assets i.e. Total Assets Share in other Share in Total Comprehensive
minus Total Labllithes Share in Profit or (loms) | o e hensive Tncome neoma
Nama of Entities As o % al
As b % of As a % ol A5 a % af consalidation
cansolidation T in Crorés | consolidated 1 in Crares consolsdate 1 in Crores Totad t im Crores
net aszats Profit 40l Camprehensive
Ircome
Parent:
Advanced Weapons & Equipment
[ndia Limited 99.71% ERTRECH 64.50% 786 §4.59% T.a6
Total 959.73 % 3i81.40 G4.59% T.B6 * - 64.59%: 7.86
Adid:
Joint Ventures (Investmant as
par Equity mathad)
Inda Russian Rifles Private Limited 0.28% B.83 15.41% 4.31 15.41% 431
\Grand Total 100% 31590.23 100% 12,17 - - 100% 12.17
For the finandial year ending on | &s ot Harch 31, 2023
Net Assets Le. Total Assets Share in other Share in Total Comprehansive
minus Total Labilities ShareinProfitor (loss} | o orenensive Encome Tncome
Namae of Entities #5 % of
A5 a3 % ol As a % af As a W of consolidation
consolidation t i Crores | consolidated t in Crores consolidate 1 In Crores Totad t in Crores
et essaty Profie doct Carngrehensive
Income
Parent:
Afvanced Weapons & Equipment
Indaa Limited 99.83% 2615.05 95.18% 4.53 9. LB 4,53
Total HE"& 2616.05 GES% 4.53 - - 96.18% 4.53
Add:
Joint Ventures [Investment as
per Equity method)
Indo Russian Rifles Private Limited 0.14% 4.52 38 o1& 182 0.18
Grand Total 100%: 2512.5? 100%: 4,71 - - 100%: 4.71
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Note 41 : Additional Regulatory Disclosures as per Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013
a The Group does not have any benami property held in their name. No proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Parent and Indian subsidiaries for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made

thereunder.

b The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender or gavernment or any government authority.

c The Group has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed

under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) Rules, 2017.
d Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b) Provide any
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
11, The Group has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Group shall: a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b} Provide
any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
The Group has not invested or traded in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year.
The Group has no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax
assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey), that has not been
recorded in the books of account.
s The Group does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.
Note 42 : Code of Social Security, 2020
The Parliament of India has approved the Code of Social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may
impact the contribution by the Group towards Provident Fund, Gratuity and ESIC. The Code have been
published in the Gazette of India. However effective date has yet not been notified. The Group will
assess the impact of the Code and will record related impact in the period it becomes effective.
Note 43 : New Accounting Pronouncements to be adopted after March 31, 2023
The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yvet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, as and when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCA) has notified
certain amendments to Ind AS, through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023 on March 31, 2023. The amendments have been made in the following standards:
IndAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements is amended to replace the term "significant accounting
policies” with "material accounting policy information” and providing guidance relating to
immaterial transactions, disclosure of entity specific transactions and more.
Ind ASS
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to include the definition of
accounting estimates as “"monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.”
IndAS12
Income Taxes relating to initial recognition exemption of deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single transaction.
Other Amendments
Ind AS 102 - Share based Payments, Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations, Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments, Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers which are
mainly editorial in nature in order to provide better clarification of the respective Ind
AS's,
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Note 44 : Indigenization Corpus

Motification on Policy for Indigenization of Components and spares used in Defence platforms for
DPSUs/OFB was issued on March 08, 2019, As the guidelines from Department of Defence Production
{DDP) regarding modalities has not been received as on March 31, 2023, no provision has been made
during this period.

Note 45 : Balance shown under Trade Receivables, Trade Payable, Advance against Goods and
Services, are under reconciliation. Since the Group is a Government entity under the control of Ministry
of Defence (MoD), 93% of the Group's turnover, 100% of Trade receivables and 99% of the customer
advances is with respect to Government and Government related entities. The bill are raised on the
customers by the divisions located at various places and reconciliation is carried out on an ongoing
basis. However, management does not expect to have any material financial impact of such pending
confirmation / reconciliation.

Note 46 : In the opinion of the Board, the Group do not have any assets other than fixed assets and
MNon-current investments having a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business less than the
amount stated.

Note 47 : Events occurring after the reporting period

The Group evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior
to the approval of financial statements to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of
subsequent events and transactions in the financial statements. As of August 23, 2023, there were no
subsequent events and transactions to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.

Note 48 : Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified

"Material regroupings: Appropriate adjustments have been made in the statements of assets and
liabilities, statement of profit and loss and cash flows, wherever required, by a reclassification of the
corresponding items of income, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows in order to bring them in line
with the groupings as per the audited financials of the Group as at March 31, 2023.Previous year figures
are not strictly comparable with those of current year as previous financial statements are for the
period of 6 months only."

Signature to accompanying note no. 05 to 48 forming part of financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

For 5. K. Kapoor & Co. Rajesh Choudhary

Chartered Accountants Chairman cum Managing Director

Firm Registration No. 000745C DIN: 09282229

V.B.Singh Sushil Sinha Manish Kumar Singh
Partner Director cum CFQ Company Secretary
MembershipNo. 073124 DIN: 10059967 Membership No. 12879
Place: Kanpur Place; Kanpur Place: Kanpur

Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023 Date: August 25, 2023
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NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the Znd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of ADVANCED WEAPONS AND EQUIPMENT
INDIA LIMITED (“the Company”) will be held on Thursday, November 30, 2023 at 04.00 P.M. from the registered office of the
compary at “Ordnance Factory Kanpur, Kalpi Road, Kanpur - 208009 through Video Conferencing ("VC")/ Other Audio-Visual
Means ("OAVM") to transact the following business(s):

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To consider, and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions, with or without maodifications):

ITEMNO. 1
To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2023, along with the Board's Report, the Auditor's Report
thereon and comments of the Comptrotler and Auditor General of India (C&RAG), and management replies, thereon,

ITEMNO. 2
To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the Financial
Year 2023-24, and to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLYVED THAT pursuant to section 139(5) read with the provisions of Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), the Shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to decide and fix the remuneration and other
terms and conditions, including reimbursement of out of pocket expenses in connection with the audit work, to the Statutory
Auditors appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CRAG) for the financial year 2023- 24,

SPECIAL BUSINESS: -

ITEMNO. 3
To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost auditor appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company for the
financial year 2023-24 pursuant to Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to pass
with or without modification|s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies {Audit and Auditors Rules), 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s. Paliwal & Associates, Cost Accountants,
appointed by the Board of Directors amounting to of Rs, 2,00,000/-(Rupees two lakhs only) plus applicable taxes and
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution. ™

ITEMNO. 4
To confirm the appointment of Shri Sushil Sinha, I0FS (DIN: 10059967), as Whole Time Director (Finance) of the
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the Tollowing
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 5ection 152, 160, 161, 196, 203 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made there under, Shri Sushil Sinha, I1OFS (DIN: 10059967}, who was
appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from 1st March 2023, as per letter Mo. MoD ID No. PC-1 to
1{5)/2021/0F/DP (Plg-V) Dated 6th December, 2022 from Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Production, DTE
of Planning & Coordination DP{PLG-V), consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Shri
Sushil Sinha as Whole Time Director designated as Director (Finance} on the Board of the Company on terms and
conditions as stipulated by the Government of India and he shall be liable to retire by rotation®.

“RESOLYED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised
to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings, as may be required to
give effect to the aforesatd resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited
5d/-
Place: Kanpur {Manish Kumar Singh)
Dated: 1st Movember, 2023 Company Secretary

Membership No. FC5: 12879
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1 The Explanatory Statement setting out material facts concerning each item of Special Businesses to be transacted at
the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed herewith and forms part of
the Motice.

Z Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2023, File No. Policy-17/57/2021-CL-MCA issued by Ministry of Corporate

Affairs, Government of India dated 25.09.2023 read with circular no. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 and General
circular 02/2022 dated Sth May 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”™) the 2nd AGM of the
Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the

Company.

1 In terms of the aforesaid Circulars, the businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted by the members through the
vating system provided during the meeting while participating through VT facility.

4, Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC/0AVM for which the relevant user id and password will be shared
before the AGM.
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The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the special business mentioned in the accompanying notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO. 3:

The Board has approved the appointment of M/s. Paliwal & Associates, Cost Accountants, at a remuneration of Rs. 2,00,000/-
{Rupees two lakhs only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit to
conduct the Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of Companies (Audit & Auditors
Rules), 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the members of the Company.

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution for your approval,
ITEM ND. 4:

Your Company being a Government Company, the Directors on the Board are appointed by the President of India through
the Administrative Ministry.

Shri Sushil Sinha, IOFS (DIN: 10059967 was appointed as Director {Finance) of the Company vide letter No. MoD ID No, PC-1 to
1(5)/2021/0F/DP (Plg-V) Dated &" December, 2022 from the Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Production, DTE
of Planning & Coordination DP(PLG-Y), Pursuant to Section 161 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act') and provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, the Company appointed Shri Sushil Sinha as an Additional
Director to hold office pursuant to Section 160 of the Act.

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Shri Sushil Sinha, is in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Reselution for vour approval

BY ORDER OF THE BOQARD
Advanced Weapons and Equipment India Limited

5d/-
Place: Kanpur {Manish Kumar Singh)
Dated: 1" November, 2023 Company Secretary

Membership Mo. FC5: 12879
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e I:-jf_-ia:l - We commit ourselves to meet all the requirerments

12 of weapons and equipment of our all Armed
Forces, Para-Military Forces, Police Forces as well as
other national and International customers with
State of the Art production, meeting all quality
standards, time bound delivery of products and
outstanding after sales services.

With complete devotion and dedication in
manufacturing defence products, we pledge to

safeguard the safety and security of all citizens and
our motherland.

We commit to overcome all challenges and
establish AWEIL as a strong, reliable, progressive,
self-reliant and world class weapons
manufacturing organization.
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